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'Mr. HAUGLAND. As I say, I have not seen or heard anything offi-
cial from the Comptroller’s Office relative to the examination that

~was started on April 19, so I really don’t know.

Mr. WorTLEY. I would ask any of you, when did you first become
aware that the internal loan review program was precluded from
reviewing energy credits?

Mr. Cook. Well, I think I just heard that right now because I re-

member this spring there was a review of the internal loan review
program. Mr. Dunn reviewed that program, and energy credits
were included in the reviews that he had conducted to date, if I am
not mistaken. I also remember that he was asked if the profile of
loans of the bank that had not yet been reviewed would be in any
different distribution in terms of poor quality versus good qualit
" loans compared to the profile of the loans that had been reviewed,
and he said he had no way of knowing but he didn’t believe that
was the case. So I assume the loan review program was in fact cov-
ering energy loans and that it was going along well. It wasn’t going
as fast as we wanted it to, but he was working on a number of po-
tential chargeoffs, and he had not been able to devote as much
time to it as I think many of us would have hoped he would have
been able to.

Mr. WorTLEY. But in fact, the energy loans were being precluded
from the overall review of the credit policy.

Mr. Cook. That is news to me.

Mr. RanporrH. I was going to confirm that that is news to us.
We were not aware that it was excluded, that he made restrictions
on rev1ew1ng energy loans.

Mr. WorTLEY. I wonder if the pre31dent could comment.

Mr. BELLER. Yes, sir. I don’t know where you came by that infor-
- mation. The energy department was not precluded in my knowl-
edge, and I would add to that that the loan review function, after
we were able to get it in place, started reviewing the loans, and we
attacked those loans that had been classified by the Comptroller’s
Office first, and reviewed those loans and charged off the ones that
were classified substandard, doubtful, et cetera. That was the place
where obviously we reviewed them.

So as soon as we assembled the people to do it, that is what we
attacked, and there was, to my knowledge, we were never pre-
cluded in any way from reviewing energy loans. It was just that we
had not gotten to those reviews yet.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Barnard?

Mr. BARNARD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

~ Ladies and gentlemen, you have been most cooperative today, as
well as patient and enduring, and for that reason I will make my
questions as brief as possible.

Mr. Cook, did you know that the Penn Square Bank very fre-
quently made venture capltal loans for new oil ventures?

Mr. Cook. No, I didn’t. -

Mr. BARNARD. Let me rephrase it.

Do you have any knowledge that they made that type of loan?

Mr. Cooxk. No, I do not.

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Haugland, as a banker, and in Muskogee,
Okla.; where I would imagine you would be confronted with the
same opportunities for business as the Penn Square Bank, is it a
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customary practice for banks to involve themselves in venture capi-
tal for new wells and new drills, new rigs. . ‘

Mr. HaucLaND. Sir, we have very little oil activity in that part
of Oklahoma. So our customer base is quite a bit different than the

- banks that you would look at here in Oklahoma City.

Mr. BarnagrD. Is it not customary for those larger banks who
have been in the oil business or energy business for many, many
years to specialize not in venture capital loans but in collateral of
wells and rigs and operations that are already in being and making
a profit? :

Mr. HaugLanp. I guess in response to that, I would say that a
venture capital oil loan would be like any other venture capital,
that if there were additional collateral forthcoming to justify the
credit advance, it would be done, but do you mean just by the ven-
ture itself?

Mr. BarNARD, Well, it was pretty widely known, at least suspect-
ed that Penn Square was making brandnew loans to brandnew
people in the business, which was contrary to what I understand to
be the practice in other banks who have had many, many years of
experience in the oil-lending business. That story was written up
rather at length in the American Banker of April 26, 1982, and
somewhat corroborated by Mr. Jennings. When the gentleman
writing the article asked him if he was actually providing venture
capital, Mr. Jennings said he would like to be, noting that he was

* thinking about forming a venture capital subsidiary. It was report-
ed that Penn Square was pretty much involved in new ventures,
which I understand is somewhat contrary to normal banking prac-
tice

Mr. HAuGLAND. If it was, sir, I was not aware of it.

Mr. BARNARD. Back in 1979, we passed a bill in Congress called
FIRA, and in that particular law it required that insider loans,
loans to members of the board of directors or to correspondents,
had to be reported to the board of directors.

Was any such report ever made to you all about a schedule of
loans made to your directors?

Mr. HAuGLAND. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cook. Yes, at every meeting.

Mr. Ross. Yes, sir.

Mr. BARNARD. At every meeting that was done?

One of the things that interests me is that all of you seemed to
be very, very surprised that the bank closed. You suspected that
additional capital had to be raised and possibly according to some
of you, $4 million or $5 million might be needed, and then all of a
sudden $40 million in loans were charged off.

Mr. RanpoLPH. Someone from your bench said that.

Mr. BARNARD. You had no forewarning, no indication at all from
the Comptroller of the Currency that this requirement was going
to be made on the bank?

Mr. RanporpH. No, sir, not until the last weekend.

Mr. BarNarp. Not until the last week, and yet you had had how
many meetings with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency?

Mr. RanporpH. We as a board did not meet with them at all
during the last examination. E

Mr. BARNARD. But you had been to Dallas twice, right?
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Mr. RanporpH. Well, in 1980 and 1981.

Mr. BARNARD. But in those discussions, the ultimate results of
what could happen if you did not turn the bank around was never
discussed?

Mr. RanporpH. I don’t understand what you mean.

Mr. BarNARD. Well, general, it is like talking tough to a recruit.
They did not say something like if you do not turn that bank
aro(;%’nd we are going to close you up? Nothing like that was ever
sai

Mr. RANDOLPH. They made those comments, but as we have told
you over and over again that based upon their examinations in the
fall of 1981 and their report to us in January 1982, that we were
making progress to clear up those deficiencies that they were con-
cAermled about, further collaborated by the audltor 8 report to us in

pri

Mr. BARNARD. So you felt comfortable?

Mr. RanpoLpH. Yes, sir, we did. We felt that the bank was in fact
improving and the fact that they came in in' April of this year and
started an examination and we had no contact with any members
of that examining group until the last week, on the first of July.

Mr. BARNARD. And they felt so comfortable about it in April that
the just took a little vacation.

Mr. RanpoLpH. Well, I read the testimony that they found after
2 or 3 weeks that it was so horrible they ran to Washington with it,
but we didn’t have a chance to take a swing at the bat, so to speak.

Mr. BARNARD. Well, we are going to give them a swing at the bat
when they come before us.

Mr. Haugland, I believe that you have been very close to the
Rooney family, if I am not mistaken. ‘

Mr. HAauGLAND. Yes, sir. ‘

Mr. BARNARD. And my information is you replaced Mr. Rooney
on the board of Penn Square after his death in 1980.

I understand that there was a relationship between the Rooney
fCaomily of Muskogee and the Rowsey family of the Mahan-Rowsey

Do you know much about that relationship?

Mr. HaugLAND. 1 know both families. Mr. Rooney, deceased,
Larry Rooney, happens to live next door to the Rowsey-that-you-
are-mentioning’s father, but I don’t think that outside of that, they
serve on different bank boards.

Mr. BarNARD. Is Mr. Rooney on your board? Is there a Rooney
on your board?

Mr. HAuGgLAND. Yes, sir.

Mr. Barnarp. Which Rooney is it?

Mr. HaucLAND. The son of Lawrence Rooney.

Mr. BARNARD. Can you tell us anything about the Mahan-Rowsey
debt at Penn Square?

Mr. HaucranD. No, sir, I don’t know anything about it except
that we had an extremely large line of credit granted to them that
was a participation of credit with either Chase or Continental.

Mr. BARNARD. All right. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Chairman, I have no further questions.
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The CHAIRMAN. I am going to ask each and every one of you to
answer this question. We have been trying to get to this, -and per-
haps we will try to twist the question around.

The Comptroller’s Office was in Penn Square and indeed called
the FDIC in, alerted Chase Manhattan and Continental, finally ad-
mitted to the Federal Reserve Board, after they asked about it,
that there was trouble in the streets of Oklahoma City, particular-
ly at Penn Square Bank. .

There is a question about the fact that some customers of the in-
stitution withdrew substantial amounts of funds at the ‘‘advice of a
mystical financial consultant.”. S ,

You people are on the board, or were on the board of directors of
the Penn Square Bank. :

Did you, Mr. Smelser, can you state to this committee that the
Comptroller’s office and the representatives of the Comptroller’s
Office alerted you and apprised you of the severity of the situation
at Penn Square Bank on Thursday and Friday of the week—that
was (t)he last 2 days, the Thursday and Friday that that bank was
open? :

Mr. SmeLseR. Did they apprise us of the severity?

The CHAIRMAN. The severity of the situation and the impending
doom that laid ahead. .

Mr. SmELSER. Well, they apprised us of the severity, but I don’t
think they apprised us of the impending doom. -

The CHAIRMAN. Well, let’s put it this way. Did you feel as a
result of those meetings that at the next board meeting with the
management of Penn Square, that there was a whole lot that had
to be done that had not been done to date, despite those glowing
reports from Peat, Marwick & Mitchell and the Comptroller’s Office
- in January of 1982? ,

Mr. SMELSER. Yes. ’

The CHAIRMAN. Yes what?

Mr. SMELSER. Yes, I did feel there was a lot to be done.

The CHAIRMAN. There was a lot to be done as a result of meet-
ings on Thursday and Friday?

Mr. SMELSER. That’s correct.

The CHAIRMAN. But prior to that you were not aware of it?

Mr. SMELSER. No, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. This was the first point at which you felt it was
that serious?

Mr. SmeLSER. The severity of it, yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. And Mr. Richardson, I believe you had some
loans, rather substantial loans with Penn Square?

Mr. RicHARDSON. That’s correct.

The CHAIRMAN. Would you pull the mike a little closer? That
had to be renegotiated once Penn Square was closed, correct?

Mr. RicHARDSON. No, I just moved them out of the bank.

-, The CHAIRMAN. I am sorry, I used the wrong term. You had to go

someplace else to get those loans.

Mr. RicaarpsoN. That is right.

The CuAIRMAN. I ask you, did the Comptroller’s Office in your
opinion keep you properly apprised of the severity of the situation
at Penn Square Bank?
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Mr. RicHArDSON. I would say on Thursday they apprised us
pretty heavily. They gave us 1 week to raise enough capital, until
the 9th, to more or less stay in business.

The CHAIRMAN. OK. Prior to that.

Mr. RicHARDSON. No. That is the first meeting we had.

The CHAIRMAN. Was that the first inkling you got that thmgs
were that severe and that serious?

Mr. RicHARDSON. Yes, that is correct.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Ross?

Mr. Ross. I was out of town on Thursday the 1st, and my ﬁrst
knowing of the problem was on July 2, on Friday when I returned ;
back to town, but prior to that I had no knowledge or- any expecta-
tions as has been testified here about its closing.

The CuairMAN. Well, I think you get the most—well, not the
most, but certainly very glowing testimony and testlmony very dif-
ficult to contradict that in view of the loss you sustained.

Mr. Ross. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. So it is fair to say that until that Friday, because
you could not be there Thursday, you were not aware of the fact
that Penn Square was as severe as it was?

Mr. Ross. That is correct.

The CHAIRMAN. So either the Comptroller held it from you or hid
it from you, or the Comptroller did not know it either.

Mr. Ross. Yes, sir, I would say that is fair.

The CHAIRMAN. Is that a fair conclusion?

Mr. Ross. That is a fair statement.

The CHAIRMAN. Ms. Coe?

Ms. Cok. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. Do you agree?

Ms. Cok. I did not know anything until I attended the July 1
meeting.

The CHAIRMAN. So either those facts were not made available to
you——

Ms. CoE. They were not.

The CHAIRMAN. Or/and were hidden from you, or the Comptrol-
ler’s office did not know it either.

Is that a fair summation?

Ms. Cok. I think that’s fair.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Cook, do-you agree with that summation?

Mr. Cooxk. I would concur with that.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Randolph?

Mr. RanpoLpH. Yes, sir, I knew nothing prior to the meeting. 1
did not attend the meeting because I was out of the country. I did
learn about the need to raise capital in order to keep the bank
open from talking to Mr. Smelser by phone on Thursday evening,
and I later learned—I didn’t learn the bank closed until the follow-
ing Thursday. So I was somewhat out of touch.

The CHAIRMAN. But prior to the meetings of Thursday and
Friday, July 1 and 2, you as a rather—as a businessman, again,
whose I think business acumen is pretty good, were not aware of it.
You were not appraised of it.

Mr. RanpoLpH. No.

The CHAIRMAN. So the conclusion is either the Comptroller hid it
from you or the Comptroller did not know it either.
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Mr. RanporpH. I guess I really don’t know how to characterize
the facts.

The CaAIRMAN. Now we get to our star here, Mr. Haugland, who
is also not only a member of the board of directors but is also a
member of the financial institutions industry, so to speak.

%Vgge you aware of the severity of the situation prior to July 1

Mr. HaugLanp. Only to the extent that in our June regularly
called board meeting that our management speculated from what
he had been able to determine in his meetings with the representa-
tives of the Comptroller’s Office that our losses were going to be
somewhere in the $5 million to $6 million area. :

The CuairMAN. That was your management, right, your manage-
ment telling you that?

Mr. HAUGLAND. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. How about the Comptroller’s Office?

Mr. HaucLanD. Nothing. We knew they were in the bank and
had been there since April 19, I believe.

The CHAIRMAN. You know, you were called to Dallas a few times,
and here is what I want to know before we hear from the regula-
tors, and I am going to be straight out with it. -

You went to Dallas, and we got the impression from the Comp-
troller’s briefing that by cracky, you people on the board should
have known how bad things were because they laid it all out on
the table for you.

Do you think that is an accurate picture of the meetings that you
had in the Dallas office of the Comptroller on those two occasions?
Did anyone feel as though it was all laid out for you and made
clear to you that things were real bad?

Mr. RanporpH. I think with that meeting in Dallas they prob-
ably attempted to convey to us that there were some problems
there, and they gave us the scenario of what they wanted us to do.

But I guess I don't really know.

The CHAIRMAN. Did you come away from that meeting say, by
cracky, I am on this board of directors, I own stock.

Do you own stock or does your family own stock in the bank?

Mr. RanpoLpH. Yes, that is correct.

The CHAIRMAN. By cracky, I am going home to Oklahoma City
and I am going to talk to my fellow board members, and by golly,
we have got a lot of work to do to turn this thing around and we
have got to do it rather expeditiously. .

) D?id you have that feeling when you came home from that meet-
ing? :

Mr. RicHARDSON. I think that to some extent, yes, but then
maybe that is wrong. However, from that day on in the board
meetings we were constantly questioning the fact that we had this
letter of agreement—and how we were getting along with it, and
felt that things were getting done to work towards its solution.

Mr. SMELSER. Mr. Chairman, we speak of the severity of the situ-
ation, were we aware of it. The Comptroller classified Penn Square
as a class 3 bank and not a 4 or 5 which makes a tremendous dif-
ference as to what the supposed severity of the situation is.

The CHAIRMAN. I just repeat that Mr. Richardson says he came
back feeling things ought to be done. You know, on a scale of 1 to
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10, how excited were you about the fact that you had to come back
here, motivated, excited?

‘Mr. Cooxk. 1 remember talking to Eldon Beller and asking him
how serious the problem was, and he said it was damned serious.
He said the next step will be a cease and desist order—this was in
the summer of 1981. He said the next step was clearly going to be a
cease and desist order. But again, as I think all of us have said,
that was 1981. Then we get the examination in late 1981 and we
have got the Comptroller saying to us in January that we have
gone a long way toward solving the various items that were in the
compliance letter, No. 1, and No. 2, that there is a reasonable
chance—and that is in our minutes—I believe there is a reasonable
chance that we will get out from underneath that compliance letter
at our next audit, that things are in that good a shape.

The CHAIRMAN. So at that point you were lulled into a sense of
security? :

Mr. Cook. I wouldn’t say we were lulled because we still felt—I
mean, after all, we didn’t want to be a No. 3 bank. We wanted to
be a No. 1 ,bank. So there was still a long way to go.

The CHAIRMAN. But a number three bank in reality and in truth
is not all that bad.

Mr. Cook. At least it is not a four or a five. That is exactly right.

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Chairman, I guess we cannot resolve until we
talk to the Comptroller, how they moved from $5 million or $6 mil-
lion in capital needs to $40 million in capital needs overnight.

Maybe Mr. Beller could answer that.

Mr. BeLLer. No, sir, I can’t. But based upon the anticipated char-
geoffs that we had concluded in-house that our chargeoffs would
run in the neighborhood of $3 million to $4 million, we had identi-
fied that many problems ourselves. The first indication I had that.
it would be more than that was when I was advised by the examin-
ers that they looked like it was $6 million.

Mr. BARNARD. Now, you charged off $4 million at the end of
1981, at-your direction, I believe.

Mr. BELLER. At my direction, after I came to work for the bank.

Mr. Barnarp. But those were other than energy loans? Those
were real estate loans?

Mr. BELLER. Yes, other than energy, and those were loans that
we charged them off ourselves.

Mr. BArNARD. Did you feel that you had cleaned up the loan
portfolio at that time?

Mr. BeLLER. Inasmuch as I had been able to find within those
few short weeks. The examination continued and the examiners
continued to come up with larger numbers of chargeoffs until they
finally got to $12 million, $20 million, and I understand it ended up
somewhere in the $40 millions. I have never seen the list of the
chargeoffs yet.

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask the board mem-
bers, were you being lulled into the dream of this bank in the next
2 or 3 years becoming a billion dollar bank?

Mr. RanpoLran. No. We were programming somewhere between
15 to 20 percent growth, which was in real terms probably 5 to 6
percent if you take account of inflation. We were basically basing
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our growth on the ability to fund the capital needs from the earn-
ings of the bank rather than the need for new capital infusions.

Mr. WeBeR. Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Weber.

Mr. WEBER. It seems to me the situation is becoming a little
more clear. Based upon the testimony of the board of directors and
also Mr. Beller'’s testimony that apparently—and also the earlier
testimony that we had from Mr. Conover and buttressed by the tes-
timony that we will be getting from the regional Comptroller’s
office later today, corrective actions apparently were in place or
were being put into place that were satisfactory to the OCC as of
the September 30, 1981 examination.

The question then is how were those corrective actions evaded so
easily between October of 1981 and the period or the time of the
next examination of the bank that the OCC made in I believe it
was April of 1982, completed—the preliminary I think was com-
pleted in early May of 1982, arousing their alarm.

I think the question is, What were the corrective actions that
were taken and how were they so easily evaded during that period -
of time? And I do not know that any of you can answer that, but I
think that is really the question. ‘

The OCC is saying that the bank had the corrective, was in the
process of taking corrective actions and did not follow through, and
I do not know who could answer that question. Apparently you
were placing your reliance on a management that did not make
good on the corrections that they had agreed, the corrective actions
that they had agreed to make, and I do not know if that was the
president, the chief executive officer, or the senior loan officer in
the department of energy?

The CHAIRMAN. You are a little young to remember this, Mr.
Weber, but when I was young, every Saturday you would go to the
movies to see Tom Mix or one of those old cowboys, but you always
had to go the next Saturday to see the next issue in the serial, you
know, what happens next week.

So we are going to get as much as we can from these witnesses,
and hopefully, as we get to the next episode, we might learn a little
more,

Now, at the June 15, 1982, meeting, Mr. Patterson noted his par-
ticipation in what appeared to be a partnership. “Mr. Randolph
then inquired about possible conflict of interest. The chairman, Mr.
Jennings, stated the ethics committee reviews officer participations
as well as details of the borrowing.”

Could anyone on this panel tell the committee what members of
the board sat on the ethics committee?

Did any of you sit on the ethics committee?

Mr. Ross. No. ' '

The CHAIRMAN. Do you know who the members of the ethics
committee were?

Ms. Coe. No.

The CHAIRMAN. Does anyone know who was on the ethics
committee?

Mr. RanporpH. No, sir.

Mr. SMELSER. It is the first time we've heard of it.

The CHAIRMAN. Was it kept a secret from you?
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Mr. RicaarDsoN. That’s the first time we knew of it.

The CualRMAN. They answered your question, Mr. Randolph,
about a conflict by saying the ethics committee would take it up.

I was going to ask you what the procedures of the committee, of
the ethics committee were in reviewing potential conflicts of inter-
est, but none of you know anything about the ethics committee at
Penn Square Bank?

Mr. RanporpH. I don’t know anything.

Mr. Ross. No, sir. ;

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Beller, were you on the ethics committee?

Mr. BELLER. There was not a formal ethics committee, to my
knowledge. There was a standards and conduct directive. All offi-
cers had—— =

The CuHAIRMAN. Directive? , :

Mr. BeLLER. Yes, sir, an outline that we gave them that would, if
they were placed in any type of relationship that would give a con-
flict of interest at any time, that that should be reported in writing
to the chairman of the board and president of the bank. That is the
nearest thing to an ethics committee that existed to my knowledge.

The CHAIRMAN. But you are not aware of any ethics committee
that met in formal meetings? . .

Mr. BELLER. No, sir. ~ ~
. The CuaIRMAN. And people wonder why Penn Square had prob-

ems.

Ladies and gentlemen, we want to thank you very kindly for
your assistance. :

There might be some written questions we might submit to you
and if you think of anything else that might be helpful to the
committee, please feel free to contact us or our staffs.

But on behalf of each and every member of the committee, we
want to thank you for your assistance, your openness, your frank-
ness, your willingness to assist, and the l{elp you have given us this
morning and this afternoon. ~

The committee will be in recess for 5 minutes in order to allow
our official reporter to retool and relubricate.

This fellow is fantastic. We have had him around the country
with us. We have had him all over the place. He is just outstand-
ing. : ;

Mr. BarNARD. Is that going in the record, Mr. Chairman? ‘

The CHAIRMAN. Of course. That goes in the official record. We
asked for him to come with us because of the fact that he gets the
testimony accurately.

Ray, you have 5 minutes.

We will be back. :

Our next panel will consist of, so that they know, Mr. Frank
Murphy and Mr. Cravens, Mr. Kenworthy, Mr. Kimberling, Dr.
Margo, Mr. Mead Norton, and Bill Stubbs, and we have already
had Gene Smelser. «

[A brief recess was taken.] - ' :

The CHAIRMAN. The committee will come to order.

The Chair at this point in time would like to submit for the
record other documents that have been referred to in the question-
ing of the witnesses, and this would be the minutes of the meeting -
of the board of directors of Penn Square Bank from April 14, 1981,

97-830 0 ~ 82:- 14
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through June 15, 1982, and without objection, these will be put into
the record.

The CHAIRMAN. The Chair would also ask unanimous consent to
place into the record a communication from the Comptroller of the
Currency re Penn Square Bank from Mr. Conover, the Comptroller
of the Currency, dated August 15, 1982, and this is a summary, a
copy, rather, a formal agreement executed with the bank of Sep-
tember 1980, copies of the notice of charges of the order for cease-
and-desist order June and July 1982, and a summary of each exam-
ination report from 1976 through 1982,

1 would inform the press and everybody else not to get too ex-
cited because this is a summary of the examination reports with all
kinds of names and I1.D.’s deleted, and very frankly, I am afraid we
are going to have to ask for much more than the summary.

[The material referred to, with an addendum, appears in the ap-
pendix section as appendix C.]

Mr. SprADLING. | am Mr. Spradling, an attorney for Mr. Cravens.

With respect to the minutes first admitted, there is an error in
the minutes of the Dallas meeting. Mr. Cravens was absent and
Mr. Norton was present, and I think they have got it reversed.

The CHAIRMAN. They had it backwards.

Thank you.

At this time we have Mr. Frank Murphy, former president of
Penn Square; J. C. Cravens, Mr. Kenworthy, Mr. Kimberling, Dr.
Margo, H. Mead Norton, Mr. Stubbs, and Mr. Ron Burks.

If you gentlemen would be kind enough to rise with me.

[Witnesses sworn.]

The CHAIRMAN. The Chair would like to thank all of you again
for your assistance and your appearance here, and the members of
this particular panel have been with the institution since its incep-
tion, and it will be very helpful to get a real clear history of this.

And I think I would first like to ask Mr. Murphy, since he has
been with the institution or connected with it for a long period of
time, if you would be willing to tell us or give us a brief recap of
the history of the bank from the time you joined I believe in the
1960’s, a very brief one.

TESTIMONY OF FRANK MURPHY, FORMER PRESIDENT OF PENN
SQUARE BANK; J. C. CRAVENS, KEN L. KENWORTHY, C. F. KIM-
BERLING, DR. MARVIN K. MARGO, H. MEAD NORTON, BILL
STUBBS, AND RON BURKS '

Mr. Murpny. Yes, Mr. Chairman. I joined in January 1961 as as-
sistant vice president. In September 1961 I went into commercial
loans as vice president. In April 1964, the executive vice president;
in January, I believe, 1965 until the present, then last year, as vice
chairman.

The CuHammMAN. Now, you became at any time between 1964
when Mr. Jennings left the bank and went to Fidelity and 1975
and 1976 when he regained control and returned, was the bank
under any level of criticism from the Comptroller of the Currency’s
administrator, or from the Comptroller of the Currency?

Mr. MurpHY. No letter of administration, no, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Any cease-and-desist orders?
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Mr. MurpHaY. No, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. In other words, the bank was functioning proper-
ly as far as the Comptroller’s office was concerned? Your reports
were relatively unexeiting?

Mr. MurpaY. I would think operating above average, I would like
to believe. :

The CHAIrRMAN. Now, could you tell the committee your impres-
sions of what changes occurred at the bank subsequent to the
return of Mr. Jennings and his assuming control?

Mr. MurpHY. The primary change was directing the bank into
the energy field. That has been at the peak.

The CHAIRMAN. This was a rather substantial or dramatic
change in direction, was it not?

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, it was.

The CHAIRMAN. Compared to what the bank had been doing pre-
viously.

Mr. MurpHY. Very much so.

The CHAIRMAN. What was your reaction to this right hand turn,
80 to speak, or 180 degree turn?

Mr. MurpHY. Well, I guess I am known as pretty conservative. I
felt that with the proper direction and proper loans there would be
nothing wrong with it, even though I am conservative.

The CHAIRMAN. When did you indeed leave the institution?

Mr. MurpHY. Sir?

The CHAIRMAN. When did you leave Penn Square?

Mr. MurpHY. When the FDIC—I was advised T was no longer on
the payroll.

The CHAIRMAN. The minutes reflect considerable discussion of a
former officer, Mr. Thomas Orr, and the problems he had caused
prior to his resignation in 1981, :

Could you tell us what was his function at Penn Square?

Mr. MurpHY. Mr. Orr was an executive vice president over com-
mercial loans, excluding energy.

S The SHAIRMAN. And do you know who brought him into Penn
quare?

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, sir, Mr, Jennings.

'l The CHAIRMAN. We have heard references this morning to horse
oans.

Was Mr. Orr involved in what is known, in these horse loans?

Mr. MurpaY. Well, we didn’t think so, but apparently it has
turned out that way, yes. ‘

The CHAIRMAN. And were other members of the board or officers
of the institution involved in these horse loans?

Mr. MurpHY. Not to my knowledge, sir.

The CHairMaN. Now, again, he seems to have had problems.

Is he the gentleman about whom letters went to the Comptroller
in complaint?

Mr. MurpHny. Yes, sir. '

The CuHalrMAN. Do you know what the sum and substance of
those complaints were? : ;

Mr. MureHY. The sum and substance, no, sir, I do not.

The CHAIRMAN. You do not know what the allegations were?

Mr. MurpHY. Allegations, direct knowledge, I do not. Hearsay,
yes, but direct knowledge I do not.
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fThe CHAIRMAN. Maybe we can get that from the Comptroller’s
office. : ,

Tell me, Mr. Murphy, would you be good enough to inform us as
to how long you had been acquainted with Mrs. Evelyn Wood -who I
believe served as an assistant to Mr. Jennings?

Mr. MurpHY. I have been acquainted with her from the time she
became a secretary originally to Mr. Jennings.

The CHAIRMAN. And when would that have been? 4

Mr. Murpny. Four or five years ago maybe. Maybe longer.

9The CHAIRMAN. Subsequent to his return to Penn Square in
1975?

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. And to the best of your knowledge she came on
board and worked for Mr. Jennings throughout?

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. That period of time?

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. If the committee members will allow, I am just
getting this in handwriting myself. I will go through with some of
these members their involvement and then open up for the other
members, and then that way maybe we will have a better handle.

Now, Mr. Stubbs, you have been a director since 1964?

Mr. Stusss. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. And you, therefore, were with the bank since
1964 and 1974 prior to the change of direction?

Mr. StuBBSs. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. And then you were on from 1975 until the
demise, so to speak, on July 5 and 6?

Mr. StuBss. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Could you give us your impression of the direc-
tion the bank took; the difference between the manner in which it
functioned prior to 1974 and subsequent to 1975—a very capsulized
version? _

Mr. Stuess. I was on the board from 1964 to 1974. The bank was
basically a real estate bank and I am in the real estate business,
and that is the reason I was on the board. I offered to resign when
Mr. Jennings and his group bought the bank and he requested that
I stay on, and I did.

And it did take a complete change and go into the energy busi-
ness, which was very foreign to me. And what I could see from sit-
ting on the board, it seemed like it was a very profitable venture
for the bank.

The CHAIRMAN. Let me ask you this, Mr. Stubbs. Were you pres-
ent at the Dallas meeting in 19817 C

Mr. Stusss. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. With the Comptroller?

Mr. StusBs. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Did any of the directors at any time say to the
Comptroller of the Currency—the people at that meeting—what is
our authority as far as the control of management is concerned
and do we have the power to remove management if we feel it is in
the best interest of the institution?
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Mr. Stusss. Yes, sir. I think that was reflected in such minutes
with Mr. Smelser, asking him, and he told us that if we did not
feel—I am sorry; I have got laryngitis——

The CHAIRMAN. See if you can get a little closer.

Mr. Srusss. That if he did not feel that we could move the people
that we could resign from the board.

The CaaRMAN. This is what the Comptroller told you? -

Mr. Stuess. I am afraid he said that, yes.

The CHAIRMAN. The Comptroller, when asked——

Mr. Stuess. In the minutes.

The CHAIRMAN. In other words, when asked how you could re-
prove management if you felt that in some instances management
was poor, the answer was well, one way would be to resign from
the board? , ‘

Mr. Strusss. Yes, sir. He said that.

! The CHAIRMAN. That is a most unique way of solving the prob-
em. ‘

Now, Mr. Cravens and Mr. Norton, you were the two that we
had a little dispute about. We again want to thank you for your
appearance here. You two have been with the bank for a long
period of time.

Let me ask, because you were there both before and after the
original tenure of Mr. Jennings and then his return.

Mr. NorToN. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. In your opinion, was the board of directors kept
sufficiently informed about the affairs of the bank by management
subsequent to 1975?

Mr. NorToN. You will have to talk a little bit louder. I am hard
of hearing. : ‘

The CHAIRMAN. Do you feel as though you were sufficiently in-
formed about the manner in which Penn Square Bank was: being
opergted after 1975, when Mr. Jennings returned, until July of this
year

Mr. NorToN. Well, before Mr. Jennings came there it was pretty
open, but after he got there, why it was not so open. In other
words, he did not explain a lot of things to us.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Cravens?

Mr. Cravens. Well, I am one of the original directors of the bank
and I am speaking more or less for Mead Norton and myself. We
are just advisory directors. I have been a nonvoting director since
inception, except I was a director until we sold out our interest in
1974, ’I believe it was, when we sold the majority interest to Jen-
nings’ group.

To my knowledge, and I guess I believe that of Mr. Norton, our
greatest knowledge was of the early years of the bank, we do not
know much about it after it became out of our control. I concur
generally with General Randolph and Mr. Cook’s comments. I will

“be happy to answer any questions that the committee may have to
the best of my knowledge.

The CuHAIRMAN. Dr. Margo, you have been on the board since
1965, is that correct?

Dr. Margo. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. I tell you I must compliment you because prior
to coming to Congress I did a lot of work with workman’s comp
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with orthopedic surgeons and I have to have orthopedic men be-
cause of a back condition and I know how busy you are and the
fact that you were able to spend time on the board of this bank I
compliment you.

Tell me, do you feel as though the documents and the informa-
tion provided to you by management of the bank subsequent to
1975 allowed you or gave you sufficient knowledge so that you
could in an intelligent and responsible manner carry out your
duties as a member of the board of directors of that institution?

Dr. Marco. Well, at the time I thought I was getting enough in-
formation, but all of the information we received was at the board
meetings only. It was always recommended to us at the end of the
meetings that we not take home any of this information and keep
it there in our board manuals, and that seemed reasonable.

And so we very seldom, if ever, had any material to take home
and peruse and study. :

The CHAIRMAN. For instance, let me ask you this. Did you ever
see the management letter from Peat Marwick -and Mitchell that
cited the fact that a great number of steps should be taken to fur-
ther improve the institution that was in oh, perhaps mid-1982?

Dr. MaRrGo. I believe that was in the June meeting and I do not
remember having that, no, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. The previous panel told us that it was mentioned
in passing, that a synopsis or a summary——

Dr. MARGO. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. But you never saw the actual letter?

Dr. MarGo. I don’t remember seeing it, no, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. The recommendation of the Comptroller’s office,
you signed the letter of agreement in Dallas, correct?

Dr. MARGO. Yes. '

The CHAIRMAN. Did you get a copy of that letter to take home
with you—that agreement?

Dr. MARrGo. No, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Did you ask for a copy?

Dr. MARrGo. No, sir.

Th?e CHAIRMAN. Would it have been helpful to you to have a
copy?

Dr. MarGo. Well, in hindsight it would have been.

The CHAIRMAN. Well, you tell me you never asked for a copy.
Tell me why did you not ask for a copy? It is a rather lengthy
agreement. Frankly, I have read it a few times and I have a good
memory, but a half an hour after I read it I do not remember each
and every point in-that letter.

Dr. MarGo. I assumed again that it was something that we
should not be taking out. It was not public information. Therefore,
they did not want it to get out into the public hands.

The CHAIRMAN. Yet you remember the board, you have, you are
looked upon as a responsible individual since you are elected to
that board. Don’t you feel as though you were trustworthy enough
to take that material home, and particularly you as a doctor? Just
thiﬁlg’ of the responsibility you have under your Hippocratic oath,
right?

Dr. MarGo. Yes, sir. There was only one copy that I know of and
to my knowledge none of the members got a copy.
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The CHAIRMAN. That is most unfortunate.

Mr. Kimberling, you came on the board in 1981?

Mr. KiMBERLING. In 1963.

c Th;: CHAIRMAN. And at that time you were treasurer of the CMI
orp?

Mr. KEnworTHY. That is me.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Kenworthy. I am sorry.

So you came on board in August of 1981?

Mr. KENWORTHY. I came on board in September. I was elected in
August. '

The CHAIRMAN. Your first meeting was September?

Mr. KenworTHY. That is correct. .

- The CHAIRMAN. And that was immediately after the July 1981
meeting at the Comptroller in Dallas. Were you told about the
bank’s problems prior to joining the board? :

Mr. KEnworTHY. Yes. I was told that the bank was under a
letter agreement and had 10 points and were making progress
toward those.

The CHAIRMAN. Who gave you that information?

Mr. KenworTHY. Eldon Beller.

The CHAIRMAN. By the way, who asked or who was it that invit-
ed you to join the board?

Mr. KENworTHY. Eldon Beller.

The CHalrMAN. But I have here information that during the
board meeting August 11 when Mr. Jennings was recommending
your election as director, the minutes state the following: ‘“Jen-
nings repeated Mr. Kenworthy’s background. Mr. Beller noted Mr.
Kenworthy’s knowledge of financial matters would be of special
benefit to the board and from the asset and liability side.” So you
ha:d both of them recommending you, so to speak. You could not
miss.

Now you, I think, except for two instances, attended every board
meeting from there on, right?

Mr. KEnworTtHY. To my knowledge, yes.

The CHAIRMAN. And there were extensive discussiors about pass-
through loans and overdrafts in those meetings?

Mr. KENwORTHY. Yes, there was.

The CHAIRMAN. The June board meeting—that is the next-to-the-
last one before the bank was shut down—you raised questions
about the sudden changes and increases in loan loss reserves.

Mr. KENWORTHY. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Is that correct?

Mr. KENWORTHY. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. Would you share with the committee your im-
pressions of the board meetings and the adequacy of the informa-
tion you received at these meetings?

Mr. KENworTHY. They were—from the moment I began until the
last June meeting the information increased. The directors ap-
peared to discuss the information in greater depth at each board
meeting. It was an improving information, to my knowledge.

The CHAIRMAN. You heard me ask Dr. Margo about whether or
not that letter of agreement that had been signed—incidentally, it
had been entered into even before you went on the board—but
when you were told about it.
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Mr. KENwORTHY. Yes, it was.

The CHAIRMAN. Did you ever see a copy of that actual letter?

Mr. KenworTHY. No, sir. v
" The CuairMAN. Did you ever ask to see a copy?

Mr. KEnworTHY. No, sir. ,

The CHAIRMAN. Would it have been helpful to you to see a copy,
or to have a copy, so that you knew which direction the institution
was taking, whether they were complying with the requirements of
the Comptroller?

Mr. KENWORTHY. It was my understanding that that was the
blueprint for Mr. Beller to work against in the bank. It was also
iny understanding that they were making progress against that

etter. ’

The CHAIRMAN. The minutes reflected both you and your compa-
ng, CMI, were borrowers at the bank. Could you tell us the status
of your loans? Were any of them participated out or did they stay
with Penn Square? ,

Mr. KENWORTHY. Personal loans or CMI?

The CHAIRMAN. The CMI loans.

Mr. KeENworTHY. The CMI loans, they are both—both in the
bank and participated out.

The CHAIRMAN. What committees of the board did you serve on?

Mr. KENwORTHY. I was elected to the audit committee this year
in March. -

The CHAIRMAN. How about the ethics committee? Were you ever
on the ethics committee? '

Mr. KenworTHY. No, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Was anybody on this panel ever on the ethics
committee?

Mr. KeNworTHY. No, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Did anybody on this panel—were they ever
aware of the existence of an ethics committee?

Mr. KENwORTHY. Only as it was mentioned.

The CHAIRMAN. As it was mentioned earlier this morning?

Mr. KENWORTHY. Yes, sir.

19’(13‘2131‘;-: CHAIRMAN. Mr. Kimberling, you have been a director since

Mr. KIMBERLING. Yes. v

The CHAIRMAN. And do you have stock holdings in either Penn
Square Bank or the holding company, the parent holding company,
First Penn?

Mr. KIMBERLING. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. And would you describe those for us?

Mr. KiMBERLING. I have 450 shares of stock, I believe, in the
holding company.

The CHAIRMAN. And in the bank itself?

Mr. KiMBERLING. None. ,

The CHAIRMAN. Are you involved in the partnership that is still
in the Penn Bank Tower? ,

Mr. KIMBERLING. No, sir. . ,

The CHAIRMAN. Do you have any relationship with Kimberling’s
Inc., a supermarket concern?

" Mr. KiMBERLING. My son is the operator of those and I have
some interest in them.
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The CHAIRMAN. Do you have any personal loan from Penn
Square Bank? - .

Mr. KimMBERLING. No, sir. ‘ .

The CHAIRMAN. Do you know if Kimberling’s Inc., the supermar-
ket chain, does?

Mr. KiMBERLING. Yes. They have one loan,

The CHAIRMAN. Are there any loans to any partnerships that you
are a part of or have an interest in with Penn Square Bank? ,

Mr. KiMBERLING. Only the supermarket loan.

The CHAIRMAN. Do you know what the status of that loan is?

Mr. KIMBERLING. It is current,

The CHAIRMAN. You have faith in your son?

Mr. KiMBERLING. Yes; sir. ~

The CrAirMAN. OK. On June 15, 1982, meeting, however, the
minutes state that you were not at this meeting. Mr. Murphy com-
mented on Kimberling’s loan, 15-0055, noting he expects its over-
draft to be cleared in a week or 10 days. Do you have any familiar-
ity with that?.

Mr. KiMBERLING. Yes, sir. The reason it was an overdraft, we
were in the process of selling a supermarket and it did not go as
soon as we thought. And so we made some—paid some bills to
shake the deal.

The CHAIRMAN. Selling anything at this point in our economy is
difficult. «

Lastly, Mr. Kimberling, did you or any company you are in-
volved in make any large withdrawals in the last few weeks prior
to the demise of this institution?

Mr. KiMBERLING. No, sir. '

The CHAIRMAN. And lastly, Mr. Burks, would you be good enough
to tell the committee a little bit about your background and busi-
ness background?

Mr. Burks. I went to Stanford University and graduated from
Harvard Business School and have spent the major portion of my
business career in real estate activities, primarily in regard to the
financial aspects of the real estate practice.

S The ‘(?JHAIRMAN. Now when did you become a director of Penn
quare? : : : :

Mr. Burks. In February 1980.

The CHAIRMAN. February 19807

Mr. Burks. Yes.

' The CHAIRMAN. And do you have any interest in any of the cor-
porations or partnerships involved in the construction of the build-
ing that was to be named Penn Bank Tower?

Mr. Burks. Yes, I did. :

The CHAIRMAN. Could you describe that for us? ,
Mr. Burks. I would be happy to. I am the general partner of a
limited partnership which is entitled “Penn Bank Tower Inves-
tors.” This partnership contributed some $4.6 million toward the

equity of the construction of the Penn Bank Tower Building.

The basic structure of the transaction was based on the %4.6 mil-
lion equity contributed by the limited partner and the general
partners and some $32 million of construction financing provided
by Seattle First National Bank. The composition of the limited
partnership was such that to the extent that a tenant in the build-
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ing would occupy space in the building then he would have a right

to participate to the extent of having to come up with his percent-

_age of the equity required, his percentage of the loan guarantee
that Seattle First and, of course, his lease in the building.

The CHAIRMAN. This is somewhat almost akin to a condo-type?

Mr. Burks. It really is. That really was the kind of concept. For
instance, if—I have precise numbers for you which I could give
you, but just in terms of round numbers for simplification, one
floor of the building approximated approximately 5 percent of the
?pace of the building. The building was 22 stories, 300,000 square
eet.

So that if an individual signed a lease for one floor, for 12,000
square feet, they would have had to come up with approximately 5
percent of the $4.6 million in equity, which would have been ap-
proximately a quarter of a million dollars. They would have to
have personally guaranteed 150 percent of their pro rata share of
the construction loan. ,

So, let’s say, here is this hypothetical tenant that is leasing a
floor which approximates 5 percent of the building and he would
have had to have guaranteed 7%z percent or 150 percent of his pro
rata share. He would have had to have guaranteed 7% percent of
the $32 million construction loan personally. :

In addition, he would have had to have personally guaranteed
the lease, which was a 10-year lease. All the leases in the building
were the same, with the exception of the bank’s. The bank’s space
was—the bank’s lease was 20 years, and all other tenants were 10.
So that individual who was signing the lease was on the hook for
essentially— if a floor, using round numbers again, if a floor leased
- for $20 a square foot and it comprised 12,000 square feet, that
would a quarter of a million dollars a year in lease payments, and
it was a 10-year lease with the rent escalating 5 percent a year.

But even if it did not, the individual would be responsible for
some, in excess of $2.5 million in lease payments over the term.

The CHAIRMAN. Let me ask you this and see if I understand this
correctly. Who is the general partner?

Mr. Burks. If I could, I am the general partner.

The CHAIRMAN. That means that no matter what happens with
the Penn Square Bank, you are still on the line as the general
partner.

Mr. Burks. That is correct. ,

The CHAIRMAN. As I think most of us here understand what a
general partner is and limited partners and the liabilities that
accrue to the general as opposed to some of the limited partners, so
that the failure of Penn Square Bank does not inure to or enhance
your position as a general partner. In fact, I do not think I envy
you very much.

Mr. Burks. Well, I think on the basis of the number of telephone
calls that I have received from people who want to buy the build-
ing, they seem to infer that I am in somewhat precarious position.

The CalRMAN. Well, I hope you get your price. [Laughter.]

Let me ask you this. You attended quite a few of the meetings.

Mr. Burks. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. And as a matter of fact you did attend the 1981
and 1982 meetings at the Comptroller’s Office in Dallas.
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Mr. Burks. Yes, sir. .

The CuairmaN. How about giving us, as a fellow New England
student—I did not get to Harvard, but I got to Boston University.

Mr. Burks. I understood you were in the neighborhood.

The CHAIRMAN. As a neighborhood boy who has done well, you,
Mr. Burks, what is your impression? Do you feel you were getting
adequate information from the Comptroller’s Office and that you
were kept fully informed by management of what was occurring at
Penn Square Bank? ;

Mr. Burks. That is two questions. Let me try and answer the
first one. Let me start out by saying that prior to 1980 I had never
served on a board of directors of a bank and so had no real stand-
ard of comparision with what kinds of information a person should
get and should not get.

And I was obviously coming on the board in February 1980 and
going down to Dallas that summer. Things were already in motion.
To be honest, I never questioned the fact of the amount of informa-
tion that the Comptroller should be providing the bank directors.

I did feel, frankly, that the summer meeting with the Comptrol-
ler, I reviewed my notes of that meeting. I took fairly specific notes
at that meeting and time and again Mr. Poole reiterated that the
real problem with Penn Square Bank was the growth of the bank
and the capital and that in fact if it were not for the issue of ade-
quate capital within the bank that the bank would not have been
placed in the special projects area. And, as a matter of fact, my
notes indicate Mr. Poole mentioned that three different times
during the course of that meeting.

So I left the meeting very concerned about the direction of the
bank and the situation in which we found ourselves and the high
growth rate. Very frankly, the energy industry in Oklahoma and
the economy in Oklahoma up until very recently has been going at
a fairly rapid rate compared to other areas of the country and so
while we were concerned about the level of growth, we felt like it
was somewhat symptomatic of the economy in which we were oper-
ating.

And in the summer meeting of 1981 I would say really the only
thing that I would disagree with in terms of any of the outside di-
rectors that made any comments prior to, in the group prior to us,
was. just one slight remark that was made as to the summer of
1981 meeting being very harsh. I understand that the minutes re-
flect that Mr. Poole was very harsh with the board.

But I came away from that meeting with a very good attitude
and feeling about their confidence and knowledge of Mr. Beller and
Mr. Preston, who they had known for some time. So I had a high
degree of confidence. :

In regard to the amount of management information that we re-
ceived as directors, once again I really was not aware of what a
bank director should be receiving. As several people have pointed
out, I was—I really did not like the situation of not being able to—
of always keeping the bank information at the bank. It is very dif-
ficult to have information presented to you and then taken away
and you never see it again.

But I feel like and felt like that the reports that management
provided, especially after Mr. Beller came, that there was a high
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degree of confidence on the part of the board of directors that we
relied on Mr. Beller’s background and experience. We relied on his
commitment to be tough and to be strong and to bring areas that
had been uncontrolled to bring them under control. And there was
a high degree of comfort.

The CHAIRMAN. Now were you aware of the fact that Mr. Beller
was doing his utmost but that he had his hands tied behind his
‘i)lack? Iddo not know if you were here earlier today, were you, when

e cited——

Mr. Burks. That comment of Mr. Beller’s came as great a shock
to me as it did to the previous outside directors that were on this
panel and, I would imagine, as it did to the people that sit at this
table right now.

The CHAIRMAN. As a matter of fact, would it not be rather diffi-
cult to really do things in that institution when you are hamstrung
in that manner and a major portion of that portfolio you are not
allowed to touch, so to speak?

Mr. Burks. It would be very difficult.

The CHAIRMAN. Very difficult.

Incidentally, I would point out to you that there is a booklet, and
there are quite a few of them out there, an official booklet, some
put out by the Federal Reserve Board, some by the regulatory
agencies, this by a former Chairman of the FDIC, Mr. Robert Bar-
nett—‘Responsibilities and Liabilities of Bank Directors.” It is a
very tiny book, $8.50. I will admit it is expensive. It was published
in 1980 and I do not get a profit out of it. [ am not trying to sell it.

But there are publications available from the regulatory agencies
as well that perhaps you might get for nothing, but they do outline
the responsibilities and liabilities of bank directors, and I think it
would be very helpful and I wish that more—how many of you
here are aware of the fact that these are available to you?

[A show of hands.]

The CHAIRMAN. All right, you are all aware of it? Swell. I am
really not trying to sell this, really and truly.

Mr. Burks, are you involved in various other enterprises  other
than Penn Square or in partnerships or in companies in which you
are a stockholder or director, where other officers of Penn Square
or directors of Penn Square are also involved?

Mr. Burks. I am involved in four different partnerships, of which
the Penn Bank Towers is one partnership. There are three other
partnerships of which I am the general partner and in which there
are limited partners, of which there are Penn Square Bank direc-
tors and officers involved as limited partners.

The CHAIRMAN. Is Mr. Jennings involved in some of these?

Mr. Burks. Yes, he is. '

The CHAIRMAN. What type of businesses are those? You are talk-
ing about three other partnerships?

Mr. Burks. Those businesses are three hotels with one partner-
ship, also owning real estate and previously owned an office build-
ing that we sold a couple of years ago.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Leach.

Mr. LEacH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Murphy, when you were president of the bank, did you also
have authority as either chief executive officer or chief administra-
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tive officer? Would you describe your functions the same way as
Mr. Beller described his, or were they very different?

91%%1‘; MurpHY. During which period, sir—the 1964 to 1965 or after
19757

Mr. LeacH. Please begin with the first period.

Mr. MurrHY. I was the chief executive officer and chief adminis-
trative officer from, say, 1965 to 1975. After 1975 Mr. Jennings was
chief executive officer. I was chief administrative officer. I saw that
on a call report one day. I did not know I had been appointed that.

Mr. LeacH. Were you as surprised as the rest of the directors at
the reading of the various duties of the. president as compared to
the head of the petroleum division and.the chairman of the board?

Mr. MurpHY. I certainly was, yes.

Mr. LeacH. Have you ever known of a bank structured that way,
where the president had such a limited role? ,

Mr. MurpHY. Well, I operated that way for a while, yes. I must -
says in other banks I do not know, sir.

Mr. LeacH. Mr. Burks, you stated that the chief problem of the
bank was lack of capital and too much growth, but Mr. Conover,
head of the Comptroller’s Office, testified before us in Washington
several weeks ago, that the bank was repeatedly warned of illegal
banking activities. Was this board ever informed of the fact that
illegal practices—by illegal I mean violations of the banking law—
were occurring? B

Mr. Burks. We were informed that there were some violations of -
the law at the summer of 1980 meeting, and I was extremely
shocked that a bank upon which I was a member of the board of
directors had violated any law.

Mr. LeacH. It is one thing to say abstractly we are dealing with a
problem of a lot of growth and not quite enough capital. Many good
companies as well as good banks in America deal with that prob-
lem all the time. In fact, I cannot think of a. company that says it
has too much capital. But there is a distinction between a problem
that is abstract, that is dealt with in the Harvard Business School
case study method all the time and a corporation in which the U.S.
Government tells the board of directors that violations of law are
occurring. I am just wondering how seriously the board of directors
took those descriptions. .

Mr. Burks. I took that comment very seriously and it disturbed
me a great deal and I did not mean to minimize the violations of
the law that Mr. Poole cited that day. I merely meant to indicate,
which my notes reflect, that Mr. Poole said that the Penn Square
Bank would not be under the administrative letter if it were not
for the single issue of capital.

Mr. LeacH. I appreciate that and I do not want to stress it too
much. Frankly, I think that in terms of the outside directors we
are perhaps spending more time than we need to, Mr. Chairman. It
is the inside directors who I think will provide the most interesting
insights into this problem. I suspect many of you outside directors
are going to be embarrassed as to your pocketbooks and some per-
haps as to your judgment, but I doubt very much if many of you
will suffer any embarrassment to your reputation.

I think it should be stressed that when something goes wrong, a
lot of very good and very decent and very reasonable people get
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tainted. In this case, it appears that the vast majority of people
should suffer no damage to their reputations in a situation which
frankly, has upset the Nation’s whole banking system. While there
is some suggestion of less than perfect ethical behavior on the part
of some insiders, that certainly does not apply to the vast majority
of those associated with this bank.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Annunzio?

Mr. ANNUNzio. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I do not have any questions. I do not want to go over the same
ground that we have been over. 1 look at the witness list and we
are only about halfway, but just one comment.

I take it that after listening to the panel, the last group of direc-
tors—outside directors—and this panel, I just get this feeling that
some of you or most of you think that the closing of the Penn
Square Bank was a mistake by the Comptroller of the Currency,
that things were really not as bad as the Comptroller pictured
them to be, and that this is similar to an “Alice in Wonderland”
story, despite the fact that millions and millions of dollars were
lost’ and the Comptroller warned about the $41 million and a
couple of directors here that lost a couple of million dollars and
hundreds of thousands of dollars and bad loans all around the
country.

How many of you feel that the Comptroller made a mistake
when he closed the bank?

Mr. MurpHY. Sir, with the information I had on July 1—I was
out of town that week and was called back in—at the meeting on

July 1, when the cease-and-desist order was issued, the require-
ment of $30 million in capital given until July 9, the loan losses as
shown at that time, which in my opinion some of them are not
losses—that is a personal opinion—I, from that, what happened
after that, I do not know. I left town again and came back in and
heard it on the news—the 10 o’clock news July 5.

I was shocked, of course.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. That is why I detect this, Mr. Murphy. That is
the reason I detect this feeling all morning that nobody knew what
was going on.

Mr. MUrPHY. Unless there is a lot of changes between the first
and when the decision was made, which I am not aware of, it
should not have been closed. The shareholders should have been
given the opportunity to raise the capital and change management
if they wanted to—fire Frank Murphy or some of the others. That
would be fine. '

But I do not think—to save the bank I do not think an effort was
made to try to save it. That is my personal opinion, sir.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. Were there any other comments? Let’s get this
thing out in the open.

Mr. Stuses. I think we definitely needed to have an effort to
save the bank and I think there were commitments already made
to cover the—cover $40 million instead of $30 million. I lost
$800,000 in that bank myself and I had all the faith that we could
keep it going.

Mr. ANNUNzIo. How much worse would it have been, Mr. Stubbs,
if you got rid of Mr. Patterson and Mr. Jennings and the bank had
remained open? The Comptroller, after all, could have recommend-
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ed that both of these gentlemen get out. How much worse could it
have been? :

er. ]STUBBS. It could not have been this bad. [Laughter.] [Ap-
plause. ~ :

Mr. ANNUNzIO. Anybody else? Mr. Burks? :

Mr. Burks. One of the things that I still cannot understand is
the reason why. -

Mr. Annunzio. Let’s get it out. That is right.

Mr. Burks. Why the Comptroller did not make some of the infor-
mation available to management. I do not understand why the
Comptroller did not have some conversations with the Federal Re-
serve before this took place. ,

I read in the testimony before your committee that it came as a
surprise during the last week or so. Just 2 or 3 days before the
bank was closed the Comptroller found out that there were 150
credit unions that had $250 million in Penn Square Bank. I think
the ramifications of the decision that the Comptroller of the Cur-
rency made, I think it would be very interesting to have those ex-
posed to the light of day. , ,

Mr. ANnNuNzio. You know, Mr. Burks, when he appeared before
the committee I asked him if he knew of any banks that were
going to close on the weekend, and our hearings were on, I think it
was on a Thursday. So the weekend was coming. I said can you
give me some advance information? Are you going to close any
banks? And he did not know of any. But a few days later I read in
the Wall Street Journal—that is how I got my information, and I
am a senior member of the House Banking, Finance and Urban Af-
fairs Committee—that he closed a bank in Abilene.

Mr. BARNARD. That was an aberration. [Laughter.]

Mr. AnnunNzio. Right. But the point I wanted to make here was
they pumped in a lot of money at Abilene and kept it open.

Mr.HBURKS. We were prepared to do that here in Oklahoma City
as well.

Mr. Stusss. We were going to do it with private capital. They got
the FDIC loan. We were going to do it with private capital.

Mr. ANNuNzio. Thank you. '

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Weber.

Mr. WEBER. To the best of your recollection, was there ever an
occurrence where the chairman or anyone else on the management
team suggested that the board would voluntarily declare the bank
insolvent? v

Dr. Margo. No.

Mr. KiMBERLING. No. S
I};Ir. WEeBER. There was never any discussion about that possibil-
ity? ‘ -

Mr. KiMBERLING. No.

Dr. MarGo. No.

Mr. MurpHy. No. :

Mr. Burks. My memory escapes me exactly, but on the afternoon
of the 4th, Mr. Jennings made a statement fo the board that based
on certain events that had taken place he had thought that the
bank was technically——'-and I am not sure what the definition of
“technically solvent” or “technically insolvent” is—but said that
the law was such that it was his responsibility to notify the Comp-
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troller of the Currency at such time that he thought that the bank
was insolvent.

He advised certain people—and it was in a board room and some
of the board had come and gone; it was not like  the board was in
session all day long. I happened to be at the bank that entire day
and certain people had come and gone, but he came in and said it
is my belief, based upon the information that we have because of
all of the publicity in the newspapers and in the media, that there
was a run, that there was in fact a run on the bank and that it was
his opinion that the bank was probably technically insolvent and
that it was his responsibility to notify the Comptroller.

Now I am just telling you what I heard. Mr. Jennings was gone
for 30 or 45 minutes meeting with a representative of the Comp-
troller’s office, and to the best of my knowledge came back to the
room and said the Comptroller does not accept our position, that
the bank is insolvent. It is the Comptroller’s position that the bank
is solvent and that the Federal Reserve is willing to lend up to $27
million to protect a run on the bank, and that the bank will be

_open for business on Tuesday.

Mr. WeBER. What day was that? Do you have any idea?

Mr. Burks. That was Friday.

Mr. WeBER. Which would have been July 2?

Mr. Burks. Yes, sir.

Mr. WeBEr. And was that an official meeting of the board of di-
rectors?

Mr. Burks. I can't reallir1 tell you. There were certain of the di-
rectors that were around the bank. The meeting started at 8 in the
morning, as I recall, and certain people came and left. As T recall,
that was midafternoon or so.

I had a subsequent conversation later that afternoon with a gen-
tleman who, I believe, was the chief lending officer of the Federal
Reserve, who advised me that the Federal Reserve was in fact
going to support Penn Square Bank and I walked him to his car as
he was racing to the airport, and we shook hands and he said he
would see me next week. And I said I look forward to seeing you,
with the thought that Penn Square would open on Tuesday morn-
ing.

Mr. WeBER. I believe that the chronology is that on that same
day the OCC sent a letter to_the FDIC formally requesting assess-
ment of the prospect for an FDIC-assisted transaction and merger
or something of that kind. And then it was on July 5, 1982, that
the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City indicated that it was not
prepared to extend further credit, and that was the day that the
insolvency was declared.

Mr. BUrks. I am not sure I understand the disagreement in fact. -

Mr. WEBER. I am not saying I disagree with anything you are
saying at all. I do not want to recount the statement that I made to
the earlier panel, but it does seem to me that we have got a failure,
a problem of trust, I guess—who trusts whom.

You are being charged as a board of directors with the failure to
exercise your powers as directors who control the operations of this
bank. You were relying upon the officers to get that job done. I be-
lieve probably the officers were a major part of the problem. You
signed an agreement—and I guess most of you were signatories to
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the formal agreement dated September 9, 1980. Are there any that
were not on the board at that time? :

Mr. KENwoRTHY. I was not. : , o

Mr. WEBer. Mr. Kenworthy, you were not a signatory, but were
aware of it when you came on the board later. v

One of the provisions of that agreement was not to grant addi-
tional loans unless current and satisfactory credit information was
available and the loans were supported by appropriate collateral
documentation. )

One of the other points of that agreement was to revise the lend-
ing policy and establish procedures to monitor and enforce adher-
ence and, very frankly, in October of 1981 the Comptroller of the
Currency, as a result of its examinations, thought the bank was on
the right road to correcting or to putting corrective procedures into
practice. After having given the board great warnings—at two of
the directors’ meetings at least—they felt that you were on the
right road.

I think the board felt it was on the right road to correcting the
situation. You were relying on the officers, Mr. Beller and Mr. Jen-
nings and Mr. Patterson. Mr. Beller tells us in effect this morning
that he was relying upon Mr. Jennings and Mr. Patterson.

And I think that what needed to be done was to put into place
some procedure for an independent review of the actions of the offi-
cers by a committee of the board of directors or agents that report-
ed to the board of directors and had the power to review and con-
trol the actions of the officers specifically and could override the
officers’ actions in that way. o :

Apparently there was no such procedure. Am I correct that you
had no independent group that was overriding the decisions of the
officers? I guess I do not have any further questions.

The CHalRMAN. Thank you.

Mr. Burks, since you were asked to bring certain documents with
you today, are the documents that we requested available?

Mr. Burks. Yes, sir, they are,

The CHAIRMAN. Would you be good enough to provide them to
the committee at the conclusion of your testimony? Well, we will
take them now. Thank you for your cooperation.

Prior to going to my colleagues, one question. The previous
panel, we went back and forth on this. Now I am informed and I
would like to ask this panel—I am informed that when a copy of
the examiner’s report was sent to the bank there is a signature
sheet attached and it is the duty of each director to review the ex-
amination report and to sign the sheet attesting to his or her
review. The examiners then check that signature sheet at the next
exam. ‘

Mr. Stubbs, have you signed the signature sheet on the examin-
er’s report?

Mr. Stusss. I think, if I recall correctly, that the examination
would be reviewed at the board and passed around and everybody
sign it. , :

The CHAIRMAN. And then everybody would sign the signature
sheet to the effect that they had either reviewed or had reviewed
for them? S

Mr. StusBs. It was reviewed for us.

97-830.0 - 82 - 15
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The CHAIRMAN. By management?
Mr. Stuses. By management and then passed around and we
. signed it.

The CHAIRMAN. In other words, management told you what they
wanted you to know about the examiner’s report? Let’s be honest
now, Mr. Stubbs.

Mr. Stusss. I never ever read the report. ‘

The CHAIRMAN. You were told what they wanted to tell you
about it, right? I mean, you are a $700,000 or $800,000 loser in this
situation.

Mr. Stusss. More than that. i

The CHAIRMAN. Do you think maybe you should have read those
reports rather than have them just summarized for you?

Mr. Stusss. Maybe I am easier to con than Continental is. I do
not know. [Laughter.] ,

The CHAIRMAN. You have got some sense of humor, taking the
bath that you took, if you can still laugh about it. :

Mr. Stuess. I would rather laugh than cry.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. You know, in Congress we have a procedure
known as the signing of a conference report that is passed around
for all the members of the conference; and 80 percent do not know
what is in that conference report.

Mr. BARNARD. Frank, don’t tell it all. [Laughter.]

Mr. ANNUNzIo. Don't feel so bad.

Mr. Stusss. Thank you, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. I assure you that there are very few Members of
Congress who have lost the kind of money you have lost for not
reading a conference report. .

Mr. Barnard. ‘

Mr. BArRNARD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Cravens, you and Mr. Norton are indicated as advisory board
members. Why is that so?

Mr. CRAVENS. Well, it is automatic when you are 70. That is in
the bylaws.

Mr. BARNARD. You do not have the same function and responsi-
bilities as the other directors?

Mr. CraveNns. We have no vote, no.

The CHaIRMAN. They do not get paid, either.

Mr. BARNARD. I would doubt that, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Cravens, I know you are speaking somewhat for Mr. Norton.
Your membership on the board dates back to what date?

Mr. CrRaVENS. I was one of the original organizers of the bank.

Mr. BARNARD. One of the original organizers. Then I think that
you and Mr. Norton and Mr. Murphy, your membership is dated
back to the early 1960’s, right?

Mr. MurpHY. | joined the bank in January 1961, sir, and became
a board member in 1964, I believe it was.

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Stubbs, I believe you were an early member of
the board.

Mr. Stusss. Frank came on in 1963 and I came on in 1964.

Mr. BARNARD. Did it disturb you gentlemen that after the change
irlrl1 olr)'garllii?zation in 1975 there was a change in modus operandi of
the bank?
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Mr. Cravens. Well, I thought there was a very enthusiastic
bunch in trying to do something.

Mr. BArNARD. You did not question at all the thrust of the new
enthusiastic bunch?

Mr. Cravens: Well, I kind of figured I was a little old fashioned.

Mr. BarNARD. Do you still feel that way about it?

Mr. CravENs. That I was not keeping up with the modern times.

Mr. BARNARD. But you felt that it was worth a go, right?

Mr. Cravens. Well, I do not know. I lost about a half a million in
it too.

Mr. BArNARD. That is hindsight, isn’t it. What about you, Mr.
Murphy? Did you express any dissent about the new thrust of the
management?

Mr. Murpny. I say dissent? No; I cannot say I dissented, sir. Pre-
viously I was more conservative.

Mr. BArRNARD. Well, hadn’t this modus operandi been consider-
ably different than the previous operation of the bank?

Mr. MurpHY. More aggressive, yes, sir.

Mr. BArNARD. Well, did you consider the concentration of loans
that was developed? Did you think that was healthy for the bank?

Mr. MurpHY. Concentration with proper loans I felt would be
healthy.

Mr. BARNARD. What about the lack of diversity?

Mr. MurpHy. It depends upon which area you are in. When real
estate is up, you should be in real estate, and I am not saying 100
percent. :

Mr. BarNARD. Do you remember the experience that some great
banks had in the country during the era of REIT’s?

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, sir, I sure do.

Mr. BaArNARD. Wasn't that a problem of concentration and not
being aware of the marketplace?

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, it was. '

Mr. BARNARD. Would you go so far as to say that it is an exam-
ple of poor bank management to concentrate in one particular area
of loans?

Mr. MurpHY. Well, I personally would not dwell on that. I never
did. But I did accept the philosophy—Mr. Jennings being from Oil
Patch and all—and I had confidence that he knew what he was
doing, sir. '

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Stubbs, you and Mr. Kimberling, how did you
feel about this change in direction of the bank? ‘

Mr. Stusss. I was not adverse to oil. I was strictly real estate
and I did not feel qualified to express myself on it. The profits
looked great and the interest rates were high and nobody could
afford to pay the interest rates but the oilers anyhow. I thought we
were dropping a little too much real estate myself.

Mr. BARNARD. Let me ask Mr. Burks, was the board brought up
to date from time to time as to how active brokers were in finding
deposits for the institution? ‘

Mr. CraveNs. No, sir.

Mr. Burks. I was never aware that the bank utilized brokers.

Mr. CravENS. We never heard that.

Mr. BARNARD. And yet they were paying brokers 100 or 200 basis
points for deposits brought into the bank. From time to time were
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you able to see the makeup of deposits such as the concentration of
credit union deposits in the bank?

Mr. Burks. Absolutely not.

Mr. BarNARD. Did any of you on the board except Mr. Murphy—
I presume you knew about.the brokers’ activities.

Mr. MurpHY. I knew that. Yes, sir.

Mr. BARNARD. Did any of the other members of the board under-
stand how broker deposits functioned?

Mr. Stusss. No. ,

Mr. Barnarp. They are very expensive, you know—very expen-
sive deposits to bring in.

Mr. Chairman, I have no further questions.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Wortley.

Mr. WorteLey. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. ;

Mr. Murphy, just for the record, what is the fee for-a director’s
meeting?

Mr. MurpHY. $400 a meeting if you attend.

Mr. WorTLEY. $400 a meeting.

Mr. MurpHY. Yes, sir. ‘ 4

Mr. WorTLEY. That is about the same fee which prevails all over
Oklahoma City area in other banks? '

Mr. Murpay. I have no idea, sir.

Mr. WorTLEY. Mr. Burks, I wonder if you could straighten me
out on some information I have here. According to some annual re-
gorts you had a number of interests with Bill Jennings and Carl

wan—for instance, First Penn Corp. You owned about 5.9 percent
and Jennings owned 26.7 percent and Swan 7.6 percent.

Peachtree Hospitalities—you seem to be equal partners, the
three of you—Jennings, Swan, and yourself had one-third interest.
The Chi-Chi property in Atlanta, at least at one time you owned
about 11 percent and Mr. Jennings around 25 percent and Mr.
Swan 21 percent.

What is this Skirvin Plaza Investors? You had a 1 percent inter-
est and Mr. Jennings had about 16 percent; and Copeland Energy
you owned about 5 percent and Mr. Swan about 23 percent; and
Northwest Investors you owned around 23 percent-plus and Mr.
Jennings about 15 percent.

Would these be reasonably close figures as to common endeavors
that you shared with these other gentlemen?

Mr. Burks. Yes, sir. Those are reasonably close percentages.

Mr. WorTLEY. I would imagine that those various business en-
deavors did some of their banking at least with Penn Square.
Would it be safe to say?

Mr. Burks. To the best of my knowledge, Mr. Wortley, the
amount of business that was done with Penn Square was very, very
minor and I would be happy to go down with you, if you would like,
the list of each one of those entities and describe the financial rela-
tionships, if you would like.

But from the time I went on the board of directors it was a per-
sonal policy of mine to limit the amount of business that I did with
Penn Square Bank to the absolute minimum and my major bank is
another bank here in Oklahoma City.

The CHAIRMAN. Would the gentleman yield on that?

Mr. WoRTLEY. Yes.
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The CHAIRMAN. By investment are you talking about shares of
stock in the bank or the holding company?
- Mr. Burks. Yes, sir.

Th?e CHAIRMAN. Did you also have deposits in Penn Square at the
time?

Mr. Burks. Yes, sir.

The CHaRMAN. How did you do? , ,

Mr. Burks. Well, I don’t know whether it is good or bad, but I
was not in the position to have lost the amount of money that some

08130 (;iid, but we had two different accounts which exceeded

100,000. , v

The CrHalrMAN. All of those records are available to us. Did you
or any of your—do you mind, George?

Mr. WorTLEY. Go right ahead, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN. Did you or any of your businesses have any de-
go'sits in Penn Square that were removed within the last 4 or 5

ays?

Mr. Burks. No, sir.

_The CHAIRMAN. You were not one of those lucky ones who had
the benefit of the unnamed financial consultant?

Mr. Bursgs. I personally deposited $80,000 in Penn Square Bank
on Wednesday or Thursday of the week before it closed.

The CHAIRMAN. Was that a brand new account?

Mr. Burks. No, it was an account that I had maintained. While
it was an account that—it was one of my company accounts—I did
maintain a number of business accounts at Penn Square Bank.
But, as I said, my borrowings at the bank were very, very modest.

The CHAIRMAN. But the point is that you lost too.

Mr. BURks. A great deal.

The CHAIRMAN. That does not help the others who lost.

Mr. Burks. Misery loves company, I guess.
~ Mr. WorTtLEY. Thank you, Mr. Burks, for your very forthright
answers. : ‘

Mr. Burks. You are welcome.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. Mr. Chairman, could I ask each of the witnesses
one question with a yes or no answer?

Mr. Stubbs, could the bank have been saved, yes or no?

Mr. Stusss. Yes.

Mr. ANNuNzIio. Mr. Kimberling?

Mr. KiMBERLING. I believe so, yes.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. Dr. Margo? -

_ Dr. MarGo. I am not sure. I was not there at the last two meet-
ings.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. Mr. Murphy? :

Mr. MurpHY. From the information I had, yes.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. Mr. Burks?

Mr. Burks. I have no knowledge of the information that the
Comptroller had at his fingertips in making the determination that
the loan losses were $50 million. I do know that that figure, as late
as 2 or 3 days before the bank closed, was as low as $22 and the
number was bouncing around like a ping-pong ball.

‘Mr. AxnNuNzio. Mr. Kenworthy?

Mr. KENwORTHY. I have no knowledge.

Mr. ANNUNZzIO. Just your opinion.
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The CHAIRMAN. Is what you are saying that once you went on
the board that rather than borrow from Penn Square, either your-
self or the partnerships in which you are involved, you went to
other institutions? You were better off avoiding any conflicts?

Mr. Burks. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Is it safe to assume that your involvement—be-
cause I had the same questions—that as far as borrowing from
Penn Square are concerned they were de minimus? You provided
us with volumes of documentation.

Mr. Burks. I would be more than happy to provide you with de-
tailed information, but it certainly is my position that my borrow-
ings with Penn Square were very negligible.

Mr. WoRTLEY. Your personal borrowings or the borrowings of
these institutions I just recited?

Mr. Burks. Both.

Mr. WorTLEY. In other words, are you also saying that those in-
stitutions never borrowed any money from Penn Square Bank?

Mr. Burks. As I said before, I would be delighted to give you a
detailed description. I would not want to say never, but I can tell
you that it is very minimal and I will be happy to provide as de-
tailed an information as this committee would like. '

Mr. WoRTLEY. Maybe just a bottom line item, if I could ask you.
At the time Penn Square was closed, did any of these organizations
I just mentioned owe any money to Penn Square Bank?

Mr. Burgs. One company, called Copeland Energy, of which 1
was a very small investor, I am not sure even what their borrow-
ings were with the Penn Square Bank, so I would hate to make
any—I do know that they borrowed from a correspondent. North-
west Investors had no borrowings, had their borrowings from Liber-
ty National Bank. Skirvin Plaza Hotel had $110,000 laundry lease
with the Penn Square Bank, which was at a market rate and
which I was asked to give— I have got $10 million of financing on
the Skirvin Plaza Hotel and $110,000 at Penn Square Bank.

I have got $10 million of financing at Northwest Investors and
virtually none at Penn Square Bank.

So they are modest numbers.

Mr. WorTLEY. Do you think that business relationships that you
may have enjoyed with Mr. Jennings and Mr. Swan in any way
might have impaired your ability to exercise some independent
judgment as an outside director of the Penn Square Bank?

Mr. Burks. Well, let me speak to that question. You indicated
two individuals and I would like to speak to the two individuals as
opposed to just one question.

Mr. Swan has had a long relationship with Mr. Jennings and so
anything that I was involved in with Mr. Swan was a result of his
close and long-term friendship with Mr. Jennings, and any of my
investments with Mr. Swan were extremely minor, as I think the
information that I have provided you will show.

In regard to my ability to be an objective director of the Penn
Square Bank, I think the record will show that I had more money
invested in Penn Square Bank than Mr. Jennings had invested in
any of my real estate projects of which he was a limited partner. I
believe that I was able to indicate to him total objectivity.
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Mr. KENworTHY. T have no opinion.

Mr. ANNUNzI0. Mr. Cravens?

Mr. CravVENS. I do not have an opinion.

Mr. ANNUNzI0. Mr. Norton?

Mr. Norron. No opinion.

Mr. AnNunzio. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN. I want to thank all of you for assisting us here
today. And for those who suffered such losses, it is not easy, and
unfortunately it is part of the process. And your presence here and
your assistance has been deeply appreciated. Thank you.

Now we will ask Jim Blanton, the managing partner, and Dean
York, engagement partner of Peat Marwick and Mitchell, to please
join us.

[Witnesses sworn.]

TESTIMONY OF JIM BLANTON,; MANAGING PARTNER, AND DEAN
YORK, ENGAGEMENT PARTNER, PEAT, MARWICK, MITCHELL &
CO., OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLA,

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Blanton and Mr. York, we want to thank
you for your appearance here today. We would like to inform the
committee or remind them of the fact that a friendly subpena was
issued to these gentlemen to appear. They have, however, indeed
been most cooperative. They have submitted a statement that I
would like to place in the record at this point. If there is no objec-
tion, we will put your entire statement in the record at this point.

[The statement submitted for the record follows:]
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SraTEMENT BY JAMES D. BLANTON, MANAGING PARTNER, PEAT, MARWICK, MITCHELL
& Co., OKLAHOMA CrTy, OKLA., AUGUST 16, 1982

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

1 am James Blanton, managing partner of the Oklahoma City office of Peat,
Marwick, Mitchell & Co. I served as out»firm's partner in overall charge of
oﬁr relationship with First Penn Corporation and its subsidiaries, principal of
which was Penn Square Bank. With me today is one of our partners, Dean York,
who was in charge of our 1981 audit of First Penmn Corporation and Penn Square.

With banks as with ali clients, the code of ethics governing our profes~
sion dictates that we not discuss ﬁublicli‘confidencial client matters. , We are
able, however, to discuss Penn Square with you today because we appear pursuant
to your subpoena.

Your staff asked that we provide a chronology of our relationship with the
Bank, a relitionship which began ten months ago. This statement reviews that
chronology in brief. ‘

Penn Square Retention of Peat Marwick

During the Spring of 1981, the Bank hired several new seﬂior executives.
We were later to learn that recruitment of .new management talent was a part of
the Bank's response to the critical findings of the Office of the Comptroller
of the Currency during prior examinationms of the Bank.

Certain of the new senior officers who joined in 1981 -~ including Mr.
Eldon Beller, as President and Chief Administrative Officer -- came to Penn
Square as experienced bank executives from dther banks in the area which are
clients of Peat Marwick. We knew Mr. Beller and many of his colleagues to be
respected, professional bankers. They in turn knew our firm, our services, our
people and our reputation. As you may know, Peat Marwick serves clients of all
sizes in all industries around the world, We are particularly knownm, however,

as a leader among accounting firms providing services to the bankiﬁg industry.

5y



227

In November 1981, Mr. Beller contacted us to discuss ‘the possibility that
‘Peat Marwick consider serving as independent auditors for the parent company
and the Bank. Important aspects of the discussions included three matters:

(1) The Bank's Response to the Agreement Between
the Board of Directors and the Comptroller

Mr. Beller advised us that the Bank was operating under an Administrative
Agreement with the Comptroller requiring changes in various areas noted by the
Comptroller's prior examinations. His mission, as he explained it, was to do
what was necessary and appropriate to satisfy the regulators' concerns.
Additionally, he wished to improve the Bank's policies,  procedures and prac-
tices to sustain its continued growth and profitability consistent with sound
banking practice. He indicated that the Bank's independent acéouncing firm
would perform the annual audit and also be asked to provide professional
services needed to assist management in establishing improved accounting pro-
cedures, controls, and information systems to better manage the Bank's growth.

(2) The Prior Auditors, Arthur Young & Company

During these discussions we obtained the prior audit reports and noted
that while the 1979 report was unqualified, the 1980 report reflected a quali-
fied opinion by Arthur Young. The Arthur Young report indicated that they were
unable to satisfy themselves as to the adequacy of the reserve for possible
loan losses at December 31, 1980 "due to the lack of supporting documentation
of collateral values of certain loans."

As is customary, we contacted Arthur Young' to discuss their relationship
‘with the parent company and the Bank and to inquire' of any disagreements or
problems they might have had in serving this client. ' They indicated they had
served this client for several years with a gooﬂ professional relationship,

free of significant problems. They cited the qualification in their 1980
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report to be certain we were aware of it. They also indicated that in accord-
ance with usual practices there would be no problem in our reviewing their
working papers whenever we desired.

We have seen reports in the media which imply that Arthur Young was
"firedh because they gave a qualified opinion in 1980. We have never had that
impression. Based on eQerything we were told by that firm, and by Penn Square,
they were not "fired" because of their qualified opinion. We believe we were
engaged at a time when the new president and the new management team were doing
their utmost to bring to bear all necessary resources, both within and outside
the Bank, to remedy the past problems.

During our discussions, we advised Penn Square that if the conditions
Arthur Young encountered had not been corrected, we would also qualify our
report for 1981,

(3) Peat Marwick Independence

The requirements of our firm and profession specify that we must be
independent of our clients before serving as auditors, In terms of client
banks, this means, among other things, that our partners should not have
unsecured loans with a client bank in excess of ten percent of individual net
worth.

Since our office serves a number of banking clients, Penn Square was,
until late 1981, one of the banks where our paftners could borrow money with no
independence concern. Hence, sgveral 9f our partners had loans at Penn Square.

As is our usual practice, we asked our Executive Office in New York for
advice on the steps to téke to ensure our independence. After consultation
with our Executive Office, we advised the Bank that the loans must be sold by
the Bank to non-client banks to ensure that Pehn Square would not be at risk of

loss.
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The Bank sold the partners' loans to non-client banks. During the audit,
we satisfied ourselves that such loans were out of the Bank.
After thorough discussions of these and other matters we agreed to accept

appointment as the independent auditors.

The 1981 Audit

Our audit of the financlal statements was as of and for the year ended
December 31, 1981. Oﬁ the other hand, the Arthur Young audit was as of and for
the year ended Decembef 31, 1980. At no time did we have any quarrel with the
qualified opinion on their 1980 audit and our report disclosed the existence of
their 1980 opinioﬁ with its qualification.

Our audit of the 1981 fimancial statements was conducted in accordance
with general}y accepted auditing standards. as promulgated by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In accordance with these standards
and based on our evaluation of internal controls, our audit procedures were
principally substantive in nature. That is to say that we focused on account
balances at or near year end and performed procedures, on a test basis,
designed to verify such year-end balances. So, for example, we obtained
written confirmations directly from selected borrowers and depositors as to
their account balances.

As I am sure you know, Penmn équare had sold many loans, without recourse,
to other banks. Once sold, these loans were no longer assets of Penn Square
but were assets of the purchasing bank. Accordingly, these loans were no
longer in the financial statements of Penn Square. We did, however, check the
accuracy of Penn Square memorandum records on loans sold to other banks by
‘obtaining written confirmations from the purchasing banks of the amount of the

loans they had purchased from Penn Square.
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As part of the 1981 audit, we spent considerable time reviewing the
adequacy of the Bank's "allowance for possible loan losses”. We noted the Bank
had established "a loan review function as a part of the Credit Review
Department. This Department was established in September‘1981 to review all
significant loans in the Bank. Its objective was to identify and evaluate all
problem loans and use such information to assist management in correcting the
problems where possible and to establish the "allowance for possible loan
losses" at the proper level. This ongoing process was the basis of the Bank's
"allowance" recorded as of December 31, 1981,

In our audit, we reviewed information; including financial and other data,
on selected borrowers, principally those loans which were past due or had other
indications of problems, to assess the risk of loss in the loan éortfolio.
Much like the Comptroller's examiners, we categorized such loans by our evalua-
tion as to risk of loss. After sﬁmmarizing this information, we satisfied
ourselves that the "allowance for possible loan 1§sses" at December 31, 1981
was a reasonable estimate by management of possible loan losses in the loan
portfolio at that time.

From our review of the Arthur Young workpapers we ascertained that the
"certain loans" which were the subject of their qualification in 1980 and to
which they referred as lacking supporting documentation of collateral value
aggregated approximately $14,700,000 or about 7% of the total loans of the Bank
at December 31, 1980.

Our audit work in 1981 disclosed that subsequently 12 of these loans
totalling approximately $3,000,000 were completely or substantially paid-off.
Of these loans, $800,000 were charged-off in 1981. Other of these loans had
little, i1f any, documentation problems in 1981 due to follow-up by management
to correct deficiencies. Those loans that still had documentation problems
were considered in assessing the overall adequacy of the allowance for possible

loan losses at December 31, 198I.
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As part of its ongoing monitoring process, the Comptroller's office in
October 1981 conducted an 'examination to follow up on progress made in correc-
ting deficiencies noted by them in prior examinations. Their report indicated
that ‘although significant problems remained, improvement was reflected in all
areas and commended the Directors for their efforts in recent months.

During the course of our audit, we also noted the improving picture with
respect to the Bank's operations, procedures, policies, credit review, and loan
administration. While a definite improvement had occhrréd, the Bank still had
problems with much still to be done. Areas which we believed needed attention
and further improvement were covgred in our extensive 22 page management letter
to the Bank's Board of Directoré ~= a document separate from the audited state-
ments.

This management letter contained our specific recommendations with respect

to the many problems of the Bank, including:

o loan administr;tion, and specifically loan review and docu~
mentation;

&) organization structure;

) written policies and procedures and related employee training;

) internal monitoring and reporting to the Board of Directors; and

o increased internal auditor effectiveness.

While these were important areas to the Bank, they did not, in our view,
significantly impact the . Bank's financial statements at December 31, 1981 or

our opinion that such statements were fairly presented.

The independent éuditor's function is to determine whether the finanéial
statements including the notes theretb, as prepared by management, fairly
present the financial' position and results of operations in accordance: with
generglly accepted accounting principles for the reporting peridd. The facts
‘disclosed in the Bank's 1981 financial statements include:

o the provision for possible loan losses in 19814was $6,343,000 as

' compared with $1,407,830 in 1980,

0 loans charged\ off 'in 1981 were $4;835,557 as compared with

$617,401 in 1980, !

‘o the allowance for possible loan losses at December 31, 1981 was



232

$4,141,447 as compared  with $2,004,587 at December 31, 1980,

After the audit work on the financial condition as of December 31, 1981,
was completed in March 1982, S0 copies of the audit report were delivered to
First Penn Corporation and the Bank, and our 22 page management letter to the
Board was subsequently delivered.

The Bank, as you may know, produced and distributed an annual report for
1981. This report contained limited financial data but did not contain the
full set of financial statements or our accountant's report or that of Arthur
Young for 1980. As the Bank is not publicly held, ii: is not required to

present this information in its printed &annual report.

After the Audit

We had involvement with the Bank management following delivery of the
report, principally on financial systenms consulting and tax matters. Our
contact with the Comptroller's examiners before they closed the Bank was
limited and we have had no commut;nication with them since then as to the

problems they found.

We did have one meeting on July 1, 1982, with management of the Bank who
informed us that one of our partner's loans, which had been sold to another
bank, apparently had been repurchased by Penn Square Bank. This repurchase
occurred without. our knowledge and was completely contrary to our prior under-
standing with the Bank. Immediately after being made aware of this matter, our
partner arranged to repay the Bank in full.

Neither the Comptroller nor the FDIC have indicated to us specifically why
they concluded that the Bank had to be liquidated.

We appreciate this opportunity to provide a brief overview of our audit of

Penn Square., I will be pleased to answer questions that you may have of us.
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The CHAIRMAN. I think you are both aware of the fact that there
are two primary areas that we would like to inquire into. And
indeed, you have also been cooperative prior to today with staff in
prov1d1ng us information in these areas. And so I would at this
point, with your statement in the record, just approach the loan re-
lationship situation.

Mra?BLANTON. Mr. Chairman, may I read my statement into the
record?

The CHAIRMAN. Well, it is in the record already. If you want to
summarize it, I am just trying to get along with the situation, We
have put the entire statement in as presented. It is one of our
standard procedures. OK?

Mr. BLaNTON. Yes, sir.

The CuairMAN. Now, you have provided us with memorandum
relating to loans to Penn Square Bank with various individuals
with Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.; correct?

Mr. BranToN. That is correct.

The CHAIRMAN. What were the origination dates on the loans
discussed in your memos? By “memos”’ I mean the memo from
Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. in New York to you here in Oklaho-
ma Clty, dated December 30, 1981.

Mr. BuanTon. There were, to my recollection, approximately six
different loans. There were three loans to one partner in our firm.
There was one loan to another partner in our firm. I don’t know
the exact dates, but I believe they were in 1979 and 1980. There
were two additional loans that were made to a group of partners.
One loan was a line of credit that I believe was in place about the
latter part of August. The first draw was in September.

The CHAIRMAN. Of?

Mr. BLanTON. 1981, ,

The CaHAIRMAN. Would that be Doral Associates?

Mr. BLANTON. Yes. Both of those are Doral Associates.-

The second loan was committed to, I believe, in about September
of 1981. It was a permanent financing loan, if you will, a mortgage
on a project. And it was funded and closed in January of 1982.

. The) CHAIRMAN. Were these loans subsequently sold, the Doral
oans?

Mr. BLANTON. Yes, they were.

'lI‘l;e CHAIRMAN. Do you know when that occurred the date of the
sale

Mr. BranTon. I don’t know the exact dates. I believe they were
both sold. It is my understanding that the permanent loan, the
mortgage, was actually sold when it was closed, that presumably it
was never on the books of the bank. The first loan, the equity loan,
was sold, I believe, in January.

il(‘lhe CHAIRMAN. Do you know to which institutions these were
80,

Mr. BLanTon. It is my understanding that——and both of those
were Doral loans—that they were sold to Utica Bank, the Bank of
New England, I believe, and Citizens Bank in Muskogee.

The CHAIRMAN. And were these loans sold in thelr entirety? And
does Penn Square have any remaining interest?

Mr. BLANTON. Penn Square has no interest.

The CHAIRMAN. Were they nonrecourse sales?
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Mr. BLANTON. Yes. :

The CHAIRMAN. Has Penn Square Bank ever bought back any of
these loans or taken back any of these loans whether they be the
Doral loans or the other loans referred to in the memorandum?

Mr. BLaNTON. It is my understanding that one of the loans that
belonged to one of our partners did get returned to Penn Square
for collection or renewal and was not reparticipated.

The CHAIRMAN. Do you know which one that was?

Mr. BLanTON. It was approximately, I believe, a $300,000 loan.

The CHAIRMAN. And to whom was that one? I see $50,000 to Dick
Turner; $600,000 to Marshall Snipes

Mr. BLANTON. It was one of the loans to Mr. Snipes.

The CHAIRMAN. And that was repurchased by Penn Square?

Mr. BLANTON. It was returned to Penn Square.

The CHAIRMAN, And where does it stand now?

Mr. BraNToN. It has been paid. '

The CHAIRMAN. So there is no loan outstanding from Penn
Square to any of the Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. people?

Mr. BLanTON, That is correct. .

The CHAIRMAN. The memo from your New York office dates De-
cember 30, 1981. And that memo describes what has to be done to
assure independence. Do you know when your New York office was
asked to provide the advice concerning this issue?

Mr. BranToN. From my memory, I don’t know the exact date. It
was late November.

The CHAIRMAN. Then it would have been about the:time that
Arthur Young was terminated, November 20, 19817 ‘

Mr. BLanToN. Yes. My recollection of the facts was that it was,
in fact, before Arthur Young was terminated.

The CHAIRMAN. But as a matter of fact, the independence issue
was resolved subsequent to Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. having
been retained by Penn Square? By that I mean the memorandum
of independence.

Mr. BLanToN. The memorandum that you have there was dated
after we were retained. ,

The CHAIRMAN. December 30, 19817

Mr. BLanToN. Yes. But the independence issue, we believe, was
resolved prior to our engagement as auditors.

The CHAIRMAN. Do you have your material? I think there is a
typo here. We have a memorandum, and I would like to put these
in the record, but before I do, I would like to correct this. There is
the December 31, 1981, memo from Mr. Guinan to Mr. Blanton.

Mr. BLanTON. Correct.

The CHAIRMAN. And then there is a March 4, it says, 1981, but I
think it should be 1982 memo to the file from C. D. York, the en-
gaging partner. :

Mr. BLANTON. If that is dated in 1981, you are correct.

The CHAIRMAN. That is a mistake, is that not correct, because it
indeed tells us what you have just been telling us about the loans
have been participated out, Doral to Utica, and to Idaho First Na-
tional Bank of Boise? '

Mr. BLANTON. Yes, that is correct. : .

The CHAIRMAN. And another one, a line of credit to Citizens Na-
tional in Muskogee, Okla. '
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Mr. BLANTON. Yes.

The CuAIRMAN. So the record will show that there is a typo in
that. And at this point I would ask unanimous consent that both
those memoranda be put into the record.

[The material referred to follows:]

97-830 0 - 82 - 16
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Peat. Manwick. Mitchell & Ca

To: J. D. Blanton Date: December 30, 1981
Office: Oklahoma City Steno: as

From: J. M. Guinan ) _ Enc: -
Office: Executive cc: C. E. Graese - Executive

L. E. Levy - Executive
. Independence Files
Independence - Borrowings from Financial

Subject: LN
Institutions

Personal

This memorandum summarizes our discussions regarding certain loan arrangements that
partners in your office have with Penn Square Bank, a new audit client. The loan
arrangements have been grouped into three separate categories below for ease of
discussion. All of the loans described herein were negotiated with the Bank prior to it
becoming a client.

In connection with a real estate venture, a group of partners have a $2.3 MM loan with
the Bank. Eighty percent of the loan is secured by a first mortgage on the property; the
remainder is guaranteed personally by the partners involved. The loan is material to the
partners, but not to the Bank.. Penn Square Bank currently has arranged to fully
participate out the loans to nonclient financial. institutions. It would service the loan

for the nonclient. The Bank would bear no risk for default because the participation:

_would be without recourse. The participation arrangement should be completed by
December 31, 1981, the Bank's fiscal year-end. As we discussed, an independence
problem would not arise if the above arrangement were completed as proposed.

A partner has a loan of approximately $50,000 for a partnership investrnent which is
secured by those partnership assets and which he personally has guaranteed. Under
AICPA and Firm independence rules, this type of unsecured loan would not create an
independence problem if the loan were not o exceed ten percent of the partner's net
worth. It is my understanding that the loan amount is below the ten percent threshhold;
therefore, no independence problem exists with regard to the subject loan.

Another partner has three separate loans that total $600,000. The loans relate to various
investments and are secured either by investment assets or by the partner's personal
guarantee. The loans are material to the partner's net worth. None of the investments
involves participation with prohibited companies or persons. The partner intends to pay
off the loans within six months. . As we discussed, the appearance of independence would
not be impaired if the partner were to pay ofi the loans prior to the year-end of.the
Bank. In no event, however, should the pay off period extend beyond the date of our
initial accountants' report. If the partner were unable to pay off the loans within that
time period, he would have to obtain a letter of credit frorn a nonclient bank to support
the loans. If the client were to fully participate out the loans similar to the
participation arrangement discussed above, the appearance of independence also would

not be impaired.
==
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I Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Ca

CONFIDENTIAL
To: - File Date: Maxch 4, 1981
Office: ‘ Steno: . jk ’
Frgm:- 1 C. Degn York Enc:
Office: Engagement Partner e

Subject: Independence re: Penn Square Bank

In response to the instructions from John Guinan in his memo dated December 30, 1981,
regarding the Firm's independence with Penn Square Bank, a new client, I am satisfied
the following has occurred: .

(1) The Doral Associates related loans in which the partners of the office
equally participate amount to the following with the related actions
taken by the Bank: ’

o The interim first mortgage loan which approximates $1.6 million
on a real estate project in Oklahoma City has been fully partici-
pated to Utica National Bank & Trust Co. in Tulsa. Plans are to
make the permanent loan with the Idaho First National Bank in
Boise, Tdaho.

o The line of credit of $1. million t"o Doral Associates has been
participated to Citizens National Bank of Muskogee.

(2) A $50,000 loan made by Pick Turmer for an oil and gas personal invest-
ment is not considered to be material to Mr. Turner's net worth.

(3) The loans to Marshall Snipes, which approximates $600,000 to his in-
terest, to the extent material to his net worth, have been participa-
ted out of the bank on a nonrecourse to nor-client banks.

All of the above was.reviewed with Mr. Rick Dunn, Executive Vice ‘President, on this

date. 1 am satisfied the above arrangements conform to the spirit of Mr. Guinan's
memo and that the Firm is independent of Penn Square Bank and its related entities.

d,/v/ @
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The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Leach.

Mr. LEacH. With reference to the Arthur Young audit statement,
which they qualified, how unusual is it to have a qualified state-
ment on a bank audit?

Mr. BLaNTON. My reaction is that it probably would not be that
unusual.

Dean, would you feel differently? :

Mr. York. Well, I would only say that a qualified opinion, while
it is unusual, it certainly does occur.

Mr. LeacH. When I look at the Arthur Young contract dated
January 6, 1981, it makes specific mention that they would be look-
ing at the possibility that illegal acts might have occurred. When
you audited the bank, did you find that any illegal acts had oc-
curred? ~

Mr. BLanToN. No, we did not.

Mr. LEacu. Were you aware that the Comptroller’s Office had re-
peatedly warned the bank about violations of the banking laws of
the United States?

Mr. BLANTON. Yes.

Mr. LEacH. Would you call a violation of the law an illegal act?

Mr. BLANTON. I think the way that we would interpret that—and -
let me say that we were, as we said, aware that those were techni-
cal violations as opposed to someone knowingly or willingly violat-
ing the law.

Mr. LeacH. The Comptroller of the United States has talked
about repeated violations of the banking laws of the United States.
As a banking committee, we write legislation in the banking area,
and we have a high respect for what we do. Repeated violations of
law are something that one raises one’s eyebrows about. And I
think that this would be particularly the case from an auditor’s
perspective.

None of us knows how this situation is going to unfold, but cer-
tainly there are widespread rumors that activities have occurred
here that go beyond the realm of bad judgment into the realm of
conflict of interest and, very possibly, if not probably, violation of
the law. Did you find any indication of this at any time during
your audit?

Mr. BranTton. No, we did not.

Mr. LEacH. When you prepared a second audit that explained
your major audit, it indicated some negative things at the bank.
Did you consider including part of this in the public audit?

Mr. BLanToN. We only conducted one audit and rendered our
opinion on the financial statements. The management letter, which
I presume you are referring to, was a byproduct of that one audit.

Mr. LEacH. You probably heard mentioned by a number of public
directors of the bank that they had a good deal of confidence in
how the bank was doing based upon your audit of the bank. Do you
think they had reason, based upon your discussions with them, to
be concerned otherwise? In particular, one director asked at a
board meeting whether there was anything that should be brought
to the attention of the board of directors, and he indicates that you
said no. Do you recall that question being asked, and do you recall
your response?
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‘Mr. BranTtoN. I don’t specifically recall that question being
asked. Obviously, there were many things in our management
letter that were of importance to the board and areas that they
needed to direct their attention to. But I think:it would be fair for
the board to say that when we met with them to briefly discuss the
results of the audit, that we gave them the impression of an im-
proving picture. And I presume that maybe that is what he is re-
ferring to. , » .

Mr. LeacH. But you do not think that any member of the board
has the right to feel somewhat misled by a failure on the part of
the auditors to stipulate that things were not perhaps as good as
they might have been? '

Mr. BLanTON. I believe that we—well, as I said, we advised the
board of an improving situation which is what we believed.

Mr. LEACH. Sometimes improving situations mask troubles. One
can say that some parts of the situation were improving and new
people were brought in to handle certain things. But in terms of
bank assets being leveraged, in terms of loans being made with per-
haps less than adequate documentation, one might argue that the
problem was not improving but worsening. Even if it were improv-
ing, things could still have been very, very bad.

Mr. BLANTON. Yes, that is correct. Let me clarify what I mean by
“an improving situation.” Not that the bank’s financial condition
was improving, because we looked at it only at one date, but that
they were addressing those areas that the Comptroller had criti-
cized bank management for and that they were making improve-
ment. '

Mr. LeacH. Perhaps I am confusing roles here. You are respons-
ble for the figures, and the Comptroller is responsible for the struc-
tural things like whether or not there are enough people in place.
Are you saying that there was no improvement in the figures but
that with respect to what the Comptroller was concerned about
there might have been improvement in some areas?

Mr. BLanToN. I am not quite certain how to answer that. Let me
try. The context of the Comptroller’s report, as I recall it, was that
the bank had numerous administrative problems. It is also my rec-
ollection: of that report that although the Comptroller did have
classified loans, that they were not of such a magnitude that we
were concerned. Our own evaluation of the loans on December 31,
and the Comptroller, his review was either September 30 or
October 31, was that we had classified loans in excess of what the
Comptroller had. ‘

Mr. LeacH. How many banks does your office audit?

Mr. BranToN. We provide auditing, tax, and consulting services
to approximately 50 banks.

Mr. LeacH. Of the 50 banks, how many have loans with inad-
equate documentation in the same proportion as Penn Square?
Would you say that Penn Square was average in terms of its docu-
mentation problems, or substantially worse than average?

Mr. BLanToN. Worse than average.

Mr. LeacH. Out of the 50 banks, would you place it 20th from the
bottom or at the bottom?

Mr. BranToN. I am not sure that I know the answer to that. Cer-
tainly, it was worse than average.
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Mr. Leach. Just barely worse than average?

Mr. BLANTON. It was substantially worse than average.

Mr. LeacH. Do you know of any bank that is worse?

Mr. BranTon. I don’t have the basis: for knowing the details of
the other banks. I personally do not audit the banking clients.

Mr. LEacH. Have you ever personally audited a worse bank in
terms of documentation?

Mr. BLanToN. I personally have never audited any bank, includ-
ing Penn Square.

Mr. LeacH. Why are you before us? \

Mr. BLaNTON. Well, T was hoping to read my statement, or at
least portions of it, to somewhat explain my role. I am managing
partner of the office.

Mr. LeacH. Has your office ever audited a bank with worse docu-
mentation? _ _

Mr. BranTon. I don’t know the answer to that, but I suspect we
have audited, perhaps not banks, but companies whose records
were as bad or worse. ' ’

Mr. LEacH. But no bank? You cannot think of a bank?

Mr. York, can you? o

Mr. York. I can say, yes, that I have. , ,

Mr. LEach. How many? How many have you audited?

Mr. York. Because I am speaking from personal knowledge, I
can think of one.

Mr. LeacH. Out of 5 or out of 507

Mr. York. Out of the client base that is in our office.

Mg Leacs. Do you compete with other auditing firms to get cli-
ents? i

Mr. BLanToN. Yes, we do. '

Mr. LEacH. When you take on a firm that has had a qualified
audit report and you give an unqualified audit report, you bear an
extra burden of responsibility, particularly when you take over for
one of the reputable firms—and yours is one of the reputable
firms—in America. Do you agree that you bear an extra burden?

Mr. BranTtoN. No, sir, I think that our responsibility lies with
our opinion. In other words, we have responsibility for our opinion
regardless of what the previous auditors did.

Mr. LeEacH. Was there any in-house dissent? Did anyone in your
firm say that this ought to be a qualified audit or that there might
be something going on beneath the surface that appeared to be a
violation of the law? ,

Mr. BLanTtoN. No, sir.

) 1\{)[1'. LeacH. There was no dissent? This was a unanimous opin-
ion?

Mr. BuanTON. Yes, sir.

Mr. LeEacH. I have no further questions.

. The CHAIRMAN. No one on your examining team saw anything at
Penn Square that they felt was a violation of the regulatinns or the
statutes that apply? '

Mr. BLaNTON. I did not. Are you asking about my answer to Mr.
Leach’s question? Was it the same question?

The CHAIRMAN. I changed the question slightly. Would you
answer the question?
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Mr. Yorg. When you speak of violations of the law, one that is
commonly referred to by the Comptroller is in the area of legal
lending limit violations. And, yes, those did occur in the bank, we
1(iid o(})serve them; and we did comment on them in our letter to the

oard.

The CHAIRMAN. Were you aware of the participations that were
indeed supposedly nonrecourse and yet it now appears as though
they were recourse participations?

Mr. York. Yes, we were aware of one of them.

The CHAIRMAN. You do not think that there is anything illegal
about that to label them nonrecourse, whereas in reality they were
recourse? : ,

Mr. BLaNTON. We were not aware of any participations with any
understandings that they were not nonrecourse. It was our under-
standing that all participations were nonrecourse.

The CHAIRMAN. Did your people observe the fact that there were
a number of nonrecourse loans that had been repurchased by Penn
Square from the upstream banks? .

Mr. York. I was not aware of a number of them. As I can recall,
I can think of one loan that did come back to the bank that we
reviewed.

The CHAIRMAN. Just one?

Mr. York. Just one that I can think of.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Annunzio.

Mr. ANNUNzIO. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Weber.

Mr. WEBER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Did you have any discussions of your yearend audit report with
the Comptroller of the Currency’s office, with the OCC?

- Mr. BLanToN. No, we did not.

Mr. WEBer. Were you aware that they made an examination of
this bank on March 1 of 1982 and that in their findings they report
that the external audit was unacceptable to the examiner?

Mr. BraNTON. I am not aware of that. That is the first that I
have heard that.

Mr. WEBER. You are not aware whether they were referring to
the external audit of Peat Marwick or not?

Mr. BLaNTON. I don’t know what they’re talking about. We have
had virtually no communication with the Comptroller or the FDIC.

Mr. WEBER. You know, I was looking at, on May 4, 1982, a confi-
dential report to the board of directors of the bank from Peat Mar-
wick. It is quite a few pages long, 20 pages or so, giving recommen-
gatiﬁns on management procedures that should be improved and so
orth.

And there is a statement on page 5 that it says, in summary, vir-
tually every significant area of the bank has been reviewed and
changes have either been made or in process. :

And on page 20 of the report, the bank has made great strides in
correcting or improving practically all of the areas addressed in
this agreement of September or the administrative agreement that
had been entered into between the board and the Comptroller of
the Currency. ,

.. You know, it was at that very same time that the Comptroller of
the Currency was engaged in another examination of a bank that
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was leading, in their own words, to uncovering serious problems
with the bank. :

What that says to me is that the board of directors was receiving
very, very mixed signals here. On the one hand they were being
told by people, their own officers and Peat Marwick, that every-
thing was coming along just fine. And on the other hand there
were these things going on with the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency that indicated things were quite different.

Specifically, did you know the president had no control over the
lending functions of the department of energy or the energy
department, the energy lending, and that was being carried out by
Mr. Jennings and Mr. Patterson?

Mr. BLANTON. It may be necessary to ask Mr. Beller. But as Iin-
terpreted Mr. Beller’s comments was that Mr. Jennings had the au-
thority to override him on lending decisions. I did not interpret,
nor was it our observation, that Mr. Beller did not have authority
over the operations of the Energy Department.

Mr. WEBER. So you, in fact, did not know the differentiation of
responsibilities between the president and the chairman? ;

Mr. BranTon. Well, I think that it has been represented that 80
percent of the banks lending activity was devoted to energy and
Mr. Beller had no involvement over that 80 percent. That was not
our understanding or observation. That is not my understanding of
his comment.

It was my understanding that if Mr. Jennings could override Mr.
Beller on making an energy loan; that was my understanding of
the comment. If he is here, perhaps we need to ask him.

The CHAIRMAN. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. WEBER. Yes, I would.

The CHAIRMAN. I think the gentleman and I both heard Mr.
Beller read his instructions from the CEO and the chairman of the
board. Were you here when he read those?

Mr. BLANTON. Yes, I was.

Mr. WeBer. My recollection, Mr. Chairman, was_very clearly
that Mr. Patterson reported to Mr. Jennings and Mr. Beller report-
ed to Mr. Jennings. , ‘

The CHAIRMAN. And Mr. Beller was told that as far as energy
loans are concerned, don’t you worry about them, we are taking
care of them. :

Mr. WEBER. I want to get back to the differences between the
Arthur Young report on the 1980 audit and your findings. In the
1981 audit, Arthur Young qualified their report on the basis that it
was the adequacy of the reserves for possible loan losses due to the
lack of submitting documentation and collateral values of certain
loans. That was the reason why they qualified their report.

You have, in turn, in your report found, I quote, “that the bank
formed a loan review function and adopted a formalized approach
to the evaluation and documentation of credit: risks within the loan
portfolio,” and went on to say that this satisfied your judgment.

That was not satisfactory to the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency. But can you explain what improvement there had been
in the evaluation of the loan reserves as the result of what you call
the formalization of that systematic analysis and so forth? How did
that actually work to the benefit of the bank, or did it work at all?
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Mr. York. In our judgment, it was in place and working, ac-
knowledging the fact that the people who came to the bank to es-
tablish that review function came basically in September of 1981.

They had in place people with the background in credit review
and evaluation. They had established their own internal proce-
dures as to how they would classify loans internally, how they
would relate those classifications to the reserve for loan losses, and
help management and the board establish the necessary reserves.

We certainly noted that. And very frankly, Arthur Young, the
previous auditors, did not have that to review.

Mr. WeBkRr. I would yield back, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Barnard.

Mr. BARNARD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. York, I presume you had the largest part to play in the
report to the board after your initial examination. Is that true?

Mr. York. Yes. I signed the firm’s reports.

Mr. Barnarp. Have you had any second thoughts about that
since this time? Do you think that you should have probably been
stronger in your recommendations of some of the things that you
found in the examination of the bank?

Mr. York. Well, certainly, when you read the newspapers now,
you might surmise that. The problem that I am still dealing with,
and I think a lot of people are dealing with, is factually why the
bank was closed. We understand that the Comptroller classified $40
million or whatever the number is in loans, which caused the bank
to become insolvent. v

Mr. BARNARD. Well, at the time of that examination, you did
know, of course, about the administrative agreement? ;

Mr. York. Absolutely. ,

Mr. Barnarp. What is the general approach of Peat Marwick
and Mitchell when writing an audit report about revealing admin-
istrative agreements? -

Mr. York. To my knowledge, there are banks that are under
other administrative agreements. It is my understanding generally.
I have never seen those disclosures made, for some good reasons. If
you make those kind of disclosures in financial statements, since
public confidence is such that that type of disclosure, in essence,
could trigger some kind of run on the bank.

Mr. BarnarD. Well, would you kindly interpret this to me? As I
understand it, this is a footnote that is on the audit reports. It is in
the work papers.
- Mr. York. This was a memorandum written by the manager on

engagement regarding the letter of agreement. Since that agree-
ment did exist and we were aware of it; in one of my review notes,
as I recall, I felt like that it needed to be addressed as a matter of
import as far as the audit goes, but not from the standpoint that
the administrative agreement would require disclosure.

In footnotes to financial statements, that is not a typical disclo-

- sure. .

Mr. BarNaRD. But what you wrote—and I would like for you to
read it into the record—it seems to be pretty substantial to me as
far as your opinion of the operation of this bank. Could you read it
into the record for us, please? 1
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Mr. York. I will try. This copy is not real clear. I believe it says
something to the effect—may I take just a moment and look at this
to make sure I am reading the same thing?

The directorate of the bank signed an administrative agreement with the Comp-
troller. Until Mr. Beller became president of the bank in 1981, the bank remained
in total noncompliance with the agreement.- Presently, the bank is in substantial
compliance with the agreement and expects to be released from it during the next
ongoing examination.

Due to the fact that the new management has worked so vigorously towards cor-
recting the situation that led to the issuance of the agreement and the fact that
they expect to be released from it shortly, it is not necessary to disclose the agree-
ment in the footnotes to our report.

Reading on: ‘ :

In order to ensure that substantial compliance existed, PMM examined all areas
of agreement either through review and observation or inquiry of personnel. All
areas appear to be satisfactory with the exception of occasional lending limit viola-
tions and a substantial number of loan document exceptions which the bank is
working on vigorously to correct. :

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. York, in the fourth line of that, is it not true
that the word “total” was originally in that, and it was struck out
and the word “substantial”’ written over it?

Mr. York. That is correct.

Mr. BarNARD. In other words, originally it read ‘“Until Mr.
Beller became president of the bank in May of 1981, the bank re-
mained in total noncompliance with your agreement. At present,
the bank is in total,” and then that “total” was scratched out and
“substantial compliance” with the agreement? Right?

Mr. York. That is correct.

Mr. BARNARD. But the question I asked you originally was, you
did lgot feel that this was important enough to be in the report
itself? ‘

Mr. Yorg. No. And I am not sure it would ever normally be,
merely because of the existence of an administrative agreement.

Mr. BArNARD. Well, what happened to these poor institutions
that put money in there, relying upon your report? You think that
they would have had the same attitude about this bank if they had
seen that the auditors had said that they were in even substantial
noncompliance?

Mr. York. I don’t how they might interpret that.

The CHAIRMAN. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. BARNARD. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. Does Peat Marwick and Mitchell audit any
credit unions?

Mr. BraNTON. We do not audit any credit unions in Oklahoma
City out of the Oklahoma City office.

The CHAIRMAN. I mean in the United States of America.

Mr. BLanToNn. I am very sure we do.

The CHAIRMAN. Do you audit any savings and loans?

Mr. BLaNTON. Yes, we do.

The CHAIRMAN. Do you think it is possible that some of those you
audit, that your firm audits, may have had funds in excess of
$100,000 at Penn Square Bank?

Mr. BLANTON. It’s possible. .

The CHAIRMAN. I thank the gentleman for yielding. I would not
be too happy if I were they.
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Mr. BarNARD. Mr. York, another question I would like to ask
you about your report. On page 8 of the management letter it says,
“after reviewing the new organizational chart which is currently in
the process of implementation” and I emphasize this “there is only
one recommendation that we wish to make” and 1 will read on
very hurriedly:

The oil and gas division is quite large and has several key personnel reporting to
the senior vice president in charge of the department. Because of the relatively
large span of control which now exists and the variety of tasks performed within
the department and particular talents of the department head, we recommend that
the organization of this key department continue to be reviewed.

The review should be made from the staridpoint of continuing to improve the ad-
ministration of the day-to-day activities of the department and yet capitalize on the
strengths of the department head and his relationship with key loan customers and
upstream correspondents. For him to maintain these relationships and effectively
administer the department may be unrealistic as the bank continues to grow.

Do you think possibly on reflection you might want to make that
a little bit stronger? I presume we are talking about Mr. Patterson
in that statement; is that correct?

Mr. York. That is correct.

Mr. BARNARD. Would you care to answer that?

Mr. York. Well, I feel like our recommendation is still good
today because of the span of control that he did have and all of the
things that Mr. Patterson was doing.

Mr. BARNARD. On another subject, let us talk about the adequacy
of loan loss reserves. In a memo written during March, Mr. York, I
believe that you discussed the adequacy of Penn Square’s loan loss
reserves. The memo states that:

In connection with our review of the loan charge-offs for 1981 and our review
made to determine the adequacy of the reserve for 1981 there was nothing specifi-
cally noted that would indicate the 1980 reserve was materially inadequate at that
point in time. .

One could surmise because of the large charge-offs which occurred in 1981 that
perhaps the 1980 reserve was inadequate at that point in time. However, on review
of wllzla:c1 happened during 1981, this would not necessarily be the conclusion that one
wou. raw, :

So I ask the question, was it your opinion today that the 1980
reserve was understated, according to Peat, Marwick, Mitchell &
Co.’s formula?

[The memorandum referred to follows:]
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Client: TFirst Penn Corporation and Penn
Square Bank, N.A.

From : C.D. York, Engagement Partner

Subject: 1981 Accountants' Report

Because 1981 was our first year to audit the Company and its related entities,
principally, Penn Square Bank, it was necessary for us. to refer to the prior
auditor's report which was qualified. Arthur Young's qualification was

quite unusual due t6 the fact they qualified their opinion on the basis

of a scope restriction because they were unable to satisfy themselves as to
the. adequacy of the reserve for loan losses dye to certain collateral infor-
mation being insufficent for their purposes. Naturally it was necessary on
our part to consider their qualification in relation to our opinion on the
1981 financial statements.

After much review of the professional literature regarding auditors reports
and qualified opinions, I was unable to find an example of the particular
problem that we have. In considering our opinion for 1981, first I deter-
mined that we are satisfied that the 1981 balance sheet is fairly stated. I
am satisfied we will give a clean opinion on the 1981 financial position
without any problem. The next question is, due to Arthur Young's qualifi-
cation, should it have any impact on our opinion on the 1981 results of opera-
tions. In analyzing this particular problem the following was considered:

1. AY's qualification did mot indicate they were satisfied
or dissatisfied with the reserve for loan losses. Their
qualification only indicated they could not make a deter-
mination as to the adequacy or inadequacy and accordingly
resulted in their "except for" opinion.

2.  Management of the Company and the Bank maintain. that, in
their opinion, the 1980 reserve for loan losses was suffi-
cient. This is borne out by a number of statements made
by management in their offering document for the sale of
stock in November 1981.

3. In connection with our review of the loan chargeoffs for

1981 and our review made to detérmine the adequacy of the
reserve for 1981, there was nothing specifically noted that
"would indicate the 1980 reserve was materially inadequate

at that point in time. One could surmise, because of the
large chargeoffs which occured in 1981, that perhaps the 1980
reserve was inadequate; however, on review of what happened
during 1981, this would not nécessarily be the conclusion
that one would draw. Several things were noted in our re-
view of 1981 such as: .

o The Bank's senior management changed considerably
with the addition of a new president, a new execu-
tive vice president in charge of credit and coliec-
tion and a new executive vice president in.charge
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of finance.
o The establishment of a loan review department.
o A formalization of their approach as to how the
reserve for loan losses should be reviewed and
adjusted periodically.

Also, in reviewing what happened in 1981, we noted that the federal
examiners' report had a number of classified loans in their examina-
tion of early 1981. However, such classifications, insofar as losses
and doubtful loans, was not in excess of the reserve which was esta<
blished at the end of 1980. It was also noted that whén Mr. Beller,
the new bank president, came on board he took a very conservative

view of the loans they had reviewed internally.. If loans were deter-
mined to be anywhere near doubtful in collection, he pldced them on a
nonaccfdal status and gave them a very conservative classification
which in turn caused an upward adjustment in the reserve for loan
losses. Also, if in their view, a loan could not be recovered in the
very near term, the loan was charged -off and litigation was immediately
instituted against the borrower; even though they knew, and subsequent~
ly, it has occurréd there were significant recoveries to be had on
such loans, In reviewing the prospectus that the Bank prepared -as of
September 30, 1981, it was noted that the reserve for loan losses was
about $2,600,000. Subsequently, due to a softening in the local eco-
nomy, and particulariy the energy industry, the Bank believed it was
necessary to increase the reserve for potential problems that appear

to exist in the loan portfolio.

So, in reviewing what happened in 1981 with respect to the reserve
for loan losses, it appears to me that the Bank's new management is
taking a much stronger stance in it's estimation cf the reserve and
has adjusted the reserve upward to recognize potential losses in the
loan portfolio which are more visible due to the change in the economy
in the latter part of 1981 as compared to what the picture was at the
end of 1980.

Consequentl¥, my conclusion is that the change in the reserve is just
a natural progression of the estimating process which management. must
continually undertake. - Although, I do recognize that the attitude of
senior mangement now is probably different than it was in 1980; how-
ever, this is still a part of the estimating process.

In summary, it is my opinion that what we have is a situation where
management has certainly improved its documentation of ,their rationale
for maintaining the reserve for loan losses at a certain level. It
was also obvious to me and our staff, during the course of the audit,
that the Bank's system of loan review and documentation of credit and
collateral has certainly improved over the prior vear. In the course
of our review and evaluation of the loans, we were able to have at

our disposal .documentation and and information with which to make a
review of the individual loans. -Management also uses such information
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to help determine the necessary adjustments to the reserve on a
quarterly basis.

In view of the foregoing, it's my opinion that the 1981 adjustments
made to the reserve for loan losses are part of the normal estimat-
ing process. Management's opinion as to the adequacy of the reserve
at the end of 1980 further confirms' that whatever happened in 1981
is again reflective of the estimating procéss and the actual occur-
ances during 1981. As a result of our review and tests of the re-
serve including the above information, I believe that we can give

an opinion on the 1981 results of operations.

In order to help bridge the gap between AY's qualified opinion for
1980 and our clean opinion for 1981, I felt that'it was necessary
to have language in our opinion drawing the readér's attention to
footnote 4 of the financial statements which discusses improvements
made in 1981 in the formalization of their approach to evaluating
the reserve and related documentation. Such language was added
immediately following our reference to AY's qualified opinion. The
location of the reference, I believe, should be there as opposed to
a middle paragraph in order to immediately draw the reader's atten-
tion to the fact that something has changed in 1981 as g compared
to 1980. While professional literature speaks to middle paragraphs
where an emphasis of a matter is concerned, I believe, in this case,
the notation of that reference is best shown immediately following
our reference to AY's qualification as opposed to a middle paragraph.

)

Due to the unusual natite of these reporting problems, I consulted
with various of my audit partmers as to what they thought about the
problems encountered and my recommendations as to how to handle them.
I spoke ‘with Hugh Hyde, bank partner in the Houston office, Mr. Jack
Noftsger, our audit PIC and Mr. Jim Blanton, the managing partner.
After discussing the various points mentioned herein with them, they
all indicated that my assessment of these problems and the resulting
resolutions were acceptable.

o
Copl e
s
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Mr. York. Do I believe that the 1980 reserve was understated?

Mr. BARNARD. Right. .

Mr. York. Not necessarily, no.

Mr. BARNARD. What about the 1981 reserve?

Mr. York. I am aware of no information to this date as to why
that reserve would be inadequate.

Mr. BARNARD. According to the information that we have, Penn
Square in each instance, did not reserve nearly the percentage that
most banks did against its substandard loans or the next classifica-
tion, doubtful loans. It did reserve 100 percent of its loss loans. But
the percentages of substandard and doubtful were far less than
what the normal average was: ‘

Do you know any reason why that was done?

Mr. York. No, I don’t. The whole area of loan review, as you can
appreciate, is a highly judgmental area, and there are different
rules of thumb that are used. g

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Chairman, I have no further questions.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Wortley.

Mr. WorTLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

In the scope of your audit of a client, what portion of the loan
portfolio do you verify?

Mr. BLanTon. We took the total loan portfolio of the Penn
Square Bank. We performed tests of that portfolio in total, but
they were only tests. In other words, we did not verify every loan.
The total population was the portfolio of Penn Square Bank.

Mr. WortLEY. How much of the loan, how much of the Energy
Department, since that was about 80 percent of the portfolio?

Mr. BLanTON. It was in the total population, so the entire energy
portfolio had an opportunity to be tested.

Mr. WorTLEY. And you did not find any deficiencies in it, and
you were satisfied with what you saw that these loans were in good
shape that were on the books and were verified? :

Mr. BLaNTON. Our review of those loans was to form an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, which we did; not to. dis-
cribe the energy portfolio in particular, some of the energy loans
were classified in our examination.

Mr. WorTLEY. In view of the fact that the Comptroller of the
Currency was critical of the Penn Square Bank, do you feel that
the internal controls of Penn Square were adequate?

Mr. BraNTON. No, sir. We don’t believe that they were adequate.

Mr;? WorTLEY. Well, did you criticize them in the public state-
ment?

Mr. BranTON. No, sir.

. Mr.? WorTLEY. You only criticized them in the management
etter?

Mr. BranToN. That is correct. ‘ o

Mr. WoRTLEY. Do you think that is fair to the public? And is t}
a custom of the profession? ‘ o

Mr. BLanToN. I am not sure that I can determine what is fair
unfair to the public. I can say that it is a normal procedure to issul
a management letter, and that we do not address in the financia
statements or in footnotes all of the problems of a client.

Mr. WorTLEY. Well, do you not feel that you have a responsibili-
ty to someone other than your client, in this case Penn Square? Is
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the whole purpose of an audit not to make certain that things are
verified and the public is adequately informed of it, and sharehold-
ers and investors and depositors?

Mr. BLaNToN. Penn Square Bank was a privately held bank. We
were engaged by and to report to the board of directors. We did not
report to depositors. We did not report to the public. We reported
only to the directors of Penn Square Bank.

Mr. WorTLEY. But was not your audit report, in turn, passed on
to depositors?

Mr. BrantoN. To my knowledge, our audit report was not passed
on to depositors. ;

Mr. WorTtLEY. What was the distribution of the report then? Who
would get it? :

Mr. BLanToN. We delivered 50 copies of our report to the board
of directors. We would assume that that report was for the use of
the directors, and we would presume that the report would prob-
ably be requested by the upstream banks. The bank itself, as far as
putting information to whomever, they produced their own slick, if
you will, annual report, with pictures. It did not include a complete
set of financial statements. It did not include our opinion, nor did
it include Arthur Young’s opinion. =~

[The documents referred to will be found in the appendix section
.as follows: Appendix D, Penn Square Barnk, N.A., Annual Report,
1981; appendix E, Penn Square Bank, N.A., Annual Report, 1982;
appendix F, filings of First Penn Corp. with the Federal Reserve
Bank, received in Records Section, June 4, 1982, which includes
amendments to organizational documents, First Penn Corp. min-
utes of special shareholders’ meeting, Tuesday, June 14, 1981, and
consolidated and parent holding company financial statements
with Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. report thereon.]

" Mr. WorTLEY. It did not include your statement at all?

Mr. BLaNTON. That is correct. :

Mr. WorTLEY. Is that the custom for most banks?

Mr. BLanTon. If a bank is publicly held, then it is required to
produce an annual report in accordance with the rules of the SEC.
Penn Square, not being publicly held, was not required to do that.
In other words, a publicly held bank would include a complete set
of financial statements, the auditor’s report, and other manage-

- ment information that are required to discuss the operations of the
bank. And those are SEC rules. Where you have a private company
or bank, they generally don’t publish anything. But. in an instance
like this, I can’t recall any specific examples, but, yes, this is done.
It is not that unusual.
~ Mr. WorTLEY. Well, in other words, your audit is only for their
prsrnal gratification? It went nowhere else?
% NTON. Our audit was for the board of directors, and that
ceported to. If I might distinguish, we were not a part of
ing document. So from our viewpoint, well, if we were
an offering document, then we would, in fact, know that in-
s were going to rely on it. That was not the case here.

.. WorTLEY. I yield back the balance of my time. I am finished,

. Chairman. ,
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The CHAIRMAN. If it were indeed going to be part of an offering
do?cument, what would you have put in there that you did not put
in?

Mr. BLANTON. If it were——

The CHAIRMAN. Say, you were auditing Chase Manhattan, and
that is publicly held; right?

r. BLANTON. If it were an offering document, it would have fi-
nancial statements in it, as we have reported. But it would also
contain other disclosures by management.

The CHAIRMAN. I am talking about Peat, Marwick, Mitchell &

Mr. BLanToN. If it were an offering document?

The CuarMAN. If your report was going to be part of an offering
document, tell me what you would have done.

Mr. BranToN. If our report were going to be part of an offering
document, it would be the same set of financial statements, assum-
ing that it met regulatory requirements. From time to time there
are differences. For example, the SEC wants certain information,
or perhaps the Federal home loan bank wants certain informa-
tion. :

Basically, our product, or our opinion on the financial statements
would be the same, with one exception, and that is that they would
require our consent to the use of our opinion. To obtain our con-
sent for the use of our opinion, we would presumably have insisted
that other disclosures be placed in there by management, some-
thing so that an investor would be aware of all events up to the
date of his investment.

The CHAIRMAN. Would that include the letter of agreement with
the Comptroller of the Currency?

Mr. BLaNTON. I don’t know.

Mr. LeacH. Would the gentleman yield?

The CuairMAN. I would yield to the gentleman.

Mr. LeEacH. The chairman asked a question earlier as to whether
you audited any credit unions that might be involved. Are you re-
sponsible for auditing any activity of geattle First, of Chase Man-
hattan, or of Continental Tllinois?

Mr. BLaNTON. Our firm is the auditor for Chase Manhattan.

Mr. LeacH. In this instance, did you have any contact with your
firm regarding the audit of Chase Manhattan, and would you have
given any information to Chase Manhattan that might have been
relevant to them?

Mr. BranToN. To my knowledge, we gave no information to our
firm regarding that. '

Mr. LeacH. If you knew what we presume is new knowledge in
comparison with 6 months ago, what are your obligations as an
auditor? Would that information be immediately given to your firm
in New York as relevant to Chase Manhattan’s audit?

Mr. BLANTON. My response would be no, that we would not give
information. I have never encountered that. So in a real-life situa-
tion——

The CHAIRMAN. You have never encountered it. You encountered
it right here. You have it right here. Are you wearing blinders?

Mr. BLanToN. While we were doing the audit of the Penn Square
Bank, we didn’t share anything.

97-830 O - 82 - 17
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The CHAIRMAN. You were not aware of the fact that there were
numerous classified energy loans in Penn Square Bank? _

Mr. BLanTON. Are you asking did we notify our New York office
after conducting our examination?

The CHAIRMAN. Excuse me. I am asking you if you were aware of
the fact that there were numerous classified energy loans at Penn
Square Bank.

Mr. BLANTON. As of what date?

The CHAIRMAN. During your audit.

Mr. BLanToN. I don’t believe that there were numerous classified
energy loans as of the date of our audit. ,

The CHAIRMAN. Were you aware of the fact that Penn Square
was paying the interest on behalf of borrowers on participation
loans that had been sold upstream to Chase Manhattan and to Con-
tinental?

Mr. BLanToN. Yes, we were aware of that. We discussed it in our
management letter.

The CHAIRMAN. You were aware of that?

Mr. BLANTON. Yes, we were.

The CHAIRMAN. You do not and did not feel an obligation, there-
fore, as an auditing firm to inform Chase Manhattan of the fact-
that this bank in Oklahoma City was pulling the wool over their
eyes on some of those participation loans that they purchased from
Penn Square?

Mr. BranTon. I don’t believe that you can conclude that if they
were advancing interest on these participations that they were
pulling the wool over anyone’s eyes without knowing why the
advance was made.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Blanton, Mr. Blanton, please, please. This is
one of the problem areas. Mr. Beller stated earlier that as a result
of the December 8 memorandum that has been placed in the record
that there was over $2 million of interest that was paid to up-
stream banks on loans that were nonperforming loans, and some of
these moneys were going to your other client, Chase Manhattan.

And there is only one reason to do something like that, and that
is so Mr. Patterson and his colleagues could continue selling par-
ticipations to upstream banks. Otherwise, if too many of the loans
were found to be nonperforming, they could not continue their
sales around the Nation, could they?

So to say that that was not improper, that they were not pulling
the wool over Chase Manhattan’s eyes, you are maybe hoping they
were not. But I think perhaps you should think twice about that
one. ;

You have two clients, and I think maybe you think you did not

have an obligation to the borrowers or rather to the depositors who

put sums in excess of $100,000 into Penn Square. But it seems to

me that since your firm was collecting fees from both Chase and

g(:,nn Square, that you might have had some kind of obligation
ere.

[Witnesses conferred.] \

Mr. BanTon. I think Mr. York can add to that. Some of those
advances were investigated, the information available to us indicat-
ed the practice was decreasing and there were some reasons for
those instances where it was continuing.
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Mr. York. Yes. We also read the memo that you had presented
this morning to you. We looked at that area as well. We inquired
and reviewed what management was doing, and still felt that it
was the type of thing that should still be a subject matter in our
management letter, which we covered. -

The CHAIRMAN. What do you mean, a subject matter? What is
that? Absolution? I mean you say you are forgiven for your sin, we
will make it a subject matter rather than a sin?

Mr. York. No.

The Cuairman. Well, what do you mean by “a subject matter”’? I
mean something is either right or it is wrong.

Mr. York. And it was wrong from a viewpoint of good business
practice.

The CaairMAN. OK. Well, why call it a subject matter? Why not
Jjust say it is wrong? I mean this obfuscation and semantics and all
of that, let us talk English that the people in Oklahoma and the
people in Rhode Island and Georgia and Iowa can understand
rather than some gobblydegook?

Now, Mr. Blanton, you know those 50 copies you say you deliv-
ered to the board of directors because it is a privately held bank; is
that correct?

Mr. BranTON. Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. You are not aware of the fact that the people at
Penn Square dealing with brokers gave your reports as well as
those of Arthur Young of those money brokers who, in turn, cited
those, your reports, to people, credit unions, S&L’s around this
Nation who put enormous sums of money into this institution
based on your audit reports, since that was all that was available
to them?

Do you mean to tell me you are not aware of the fact that your
reports are used by brokers for that purpose and by the people at
Penn Square Bank who were attempting to get large deposits into
that institution?

Mr. BraNTON. I have read newspaper reports that money brokers
had copies of our financial statements.

The CHAIRMAN. And this is the first time it ever occurred to you
in your career with Peat Marwick and Mitchell that your reports
of Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. were used in this manner by fi-
nancial institutions, whether it be Penn Square or any. other insti-
tution that you do auditing for? Did this come as a complete and
total surprise to you, like the fact that when you get to be 10 years
olcllwvou find out there is no Santa Claus?

r. BLANTON, Because there were two sets of financial state-
ments that we discussed, I do not know whether the credit unions
had the financial statements that we issued or the financial state-
ments that the bank issued. Obviously, I do not know what the
bank did with those financial statements.

The CHARMAN. You have heard of Xerox machines?

Mr. BLANTON. Yes, sir.

' The CHAIRMAN. I have a letter here that was handed to me.

Mr. Leach. Will the gentleman yield to me? ‘

The CHAIRMAN. Yes.

Mr. LeEAacH. At any time, whether directly after the audit or up
through late June, did you talk to your office in New York with an
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understanding that they might talk to Chase Manhattan about dif-
ficulties at this bank? :

Mr. BantoN. To my knowledge, we never initiated any calls to
our New York office concerning Penn Square Bank.

Mr. Leacn. How about vice versa?

Mr. BranTon. It is my understanding that our New York office
did call us and ask that we perform certain procedures with re-
gpect to their participations that were being serviced by Penn

quare.

Mr. LEacH. At what time was this?

Mr. BLaNTON. In March.

Mr. LeacH. In other words, by virtue of the fact that Peat, Mar-
wick worked as an auditor for both banks, Chase came to have ear-
lier knowledge of this particular bank’s situation?

Mr. BLaNnTON. Not to my knowledge. To my knowledge, no one in
our office involved with Penn Square Bank ever initiated any calls
to Chase or to New York.

Mr. LeacH. But you indicated a moment ago that your office in
New York initiated a call to your office here.

Mr. BLaNTON. They asked us to perform certain procedures.

The CuaIrRMAN. I feel as though now we are in General Hospital.

[Laughter.]

The CHAIRMAN. What do you mean by a certain procedure—I
mean, is this a blood transfusion or a transplant or a bypass? Could
you be more specific?

Mr. BLanTON. When we audited Penn Square Bank we were
looking at Penn Square’s portfolio, not the participations. They
asked us to perform similar types of procedures with respect to par-
ticipations.

The CuAamRMAN. Your New York office, on behalf of Chase Man-
hattan? :

Mr. BranTON. That is correct.

Mr. LeacH. Earlier you indicated that if you came upon prob-
lems, you would not feel it your obligation to inform Peat, Marwick
in New York and to inform Chase. Is that your position? Do you
think that intra-company obligation is something that the auditing
community is going to have to look at very carefully in terms of its
future procedures?

Mr. BLanTON. Mr. Leach, as the chairman pointed out, yes, that
did happen in this instance where Penn Square was closed, but we
had no advance notice to give our New York office that it was
coming.

All T am saying is that that never became an issue, and to my
knowledge, I don’t ever recall that being an issue on any client. So
I guess what I am saying—my response would be I think that we
probably would not notify, but I have never encountered it.

Mr. LeEacH. I understand exactly what you are saying. I suspect
that this might become a problem in your intracompany discus-
sions. It poses a very serious philosophical dilemma for the compa-
ny as well as for the auditing profession.

Mr. WEBER. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. LeacH. I would be happy to.

Mr. WEBER. It seems to me you could do us a favor if you would
restate, as best you understand it, what are the rules of ethical
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conduct that pertain to the accounting profession so far as the con-
-fidentiality of client information is concerned.

I assume that you keep all confidences of the client just that,
confidential, between you and the client only. Is that correct?

Mr. BranToN. That is correct.

Mr. WEBER. And the thing that clouds the issue here is that we
may be dealing in an area of civil fraud or actual illegality, and the
question is at that point, do you maintain the confidentiality of
those potential violations of law from other people who may be af-
fected by that information, I assume. Is that the way you read that
question also, or that problem?

[Pause.]

Mr. WEBER. Can you answer?

Mr. BLanToN. I am thinking. I really do not know the answer to
- that question. It obviously has been the subject of much debate
among accountants. ,

Mr. WeBER. You are in a situation of a conflict of interest. You
are representing two clients who have conflicting interests. The in-
terest. of the one client is to keep the information totally confiden-
tial. The interest of the other client, of course, is to be informed.

Mr. BranToNn. I think that I can safely say that it is our firm
policy that we do not ever discuss the condition of one client with
anlc{)tger client. And I do not think that that was the question being
asked.

The CHAIRMAN. Let me rephrase the question for you. No. 1, I do
not think that accountants are in the stead of attorneys or doctors.

Mr. BraNTON. That is correct.

The CHAIRMAN. You do perhaps have a code of conduct within a
profession.

Mr. BLaNTON. That is correct.

The CHAIRMAN. But you do not have an immunity, say, where if
you were brought into a courtroom.

Mr. BLanTtoN. That is correct.

The CramrMAN. Don’t you really face the dilemma, in this in-
stance, when indeed, that which is happening at Penn Square has
a very direct relationship, as we found out, on Chase Manhattan?
Both of whom are your clients. I would suspect that the fee for au-
diting Penn Square doesn’t begin to compare with the fee Peat,
Marwick, Mitchell & Co. gets for auditing Chase Manhattan.

Now, it is not as though Chase Manhattan says, We want to
know about the internal workings of this competitor institution. .
What you are faced with here is a situation where they are dealing
with each other; there is an interaction, a business relationship,
and the health of one affects the health of the other.

Don’t you really have a compounding of your dilemma because
gee, if the people at Chase Manhattan say to themselves, Why
didn’t that Oklahoma City group of Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.
let us know what was happening or what was going on at Penn
Square, when they knew that this would affect our losses at Chase
Manhattan, also being audited by Peat, Marwick. ’
"~ Mr. BranTON. Mr. Chairman, you are assuming that we knew
what was going on at Penn Square.

The CHAIRMAN. I think that is because I am told you are an ex-
cellent firm.
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Mr. BranToNn. You are assuming that we have knowledge of
what the Comptroller found during his examination.

The CuAIRMAN. Mr. York said he was aware of the memo of De-
cember 8 about what was happening on those participations. That
is not an assumption. I am not assuming, sir.

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Chairman, would you yield for a minute?

The CuairmaN. I would be happy to.

Mr. BArRNARD. Mr. Blanton, what was the substance of the in-
quiry from the Chase Manhattan Bank? Was it about a specific
participation, or was it about general participation policy? Can you
tell us what that inquiry was? :

Mr. BLanToN. Mr. Barnard, I would like to decline to answer
your question, only because we are getting now out of the discus-
sion of Penn Square and into a discussion of Chase Manhattan.
And I am not free to discuss Chase Manhattan,

Mr. BarNarD. Well, may I just differ slightly in saying that we
are really talking about what information is privy to Chase Man-
hattan and not privy to other people who also stand to lose.

The CHAIRMAN. And excuse me, we are talking—the question is
directed to the situation at Penn Square, not Chase Manhattan.
What was that procedure?

Mr. BARNARD. In other words, we were talking here about an in-
quiry that the Peat, Marwick, & Mitchell Co., office in New York
made to the Oklahoma City office as a result of a Chase Manhattan
inquiry. Was that about a specific participation loan or was it
aboxlllt a?general participation policy? You don’t think you could tell
us that?

Mr. BLanToN. I do not believe I could tell you that.

Mr. Leacs. If you would yield, Mr. Barnard.

Mr. BARNARD. Yes.

Mr. LEACH. Was this request based upon a standard audit of
Chase Manhattan, or was it a request based upon some concerns
reflected by Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.?

Mr. BranTon. I do not know the answer. If I did know the
answer, I do not think I could say. ‘

J.T%le CHAIRMAN. Do you want to state that question again for me,
Jim? ‘

Mr. LeacH. The question was whether this was a standard oper-
ating procedure stemming from a normal audit of Chase, or wheth-
er dit was a special request growing out of a nonstandard audit pro-
cedure.

The CHAIRMAN. If the gentleman would yield, I would like to
rephrase his question. Actually, the question was propounded ebg'
Mr. Barnard, and the question was, you were asked as you stated,
“to perform a procedure’ at Penn Square relative to participation
loans. Is that not correct? 5

Mr. BuaNTON. That is correct. ' ‘

The CHAIRMAN. I think I am quoting you. Is that correct?

Mr. BLanToN. That is correct.

The CHAIRMAN. We are now asking you to tell us whether that
procedure had to do with participations in general, whether it re-
lated to the December 8 memo about prepayment of interest,
whether it was on a particular participation. You now tell us you
don’t feel you can answer, but the Chair at this point would state
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to you, sir, that this committee is investigating the failure of Penn
Square Bank, a matter of which we have jurisdiction and, indeed,
the responsibility to look into to see if any changes in legislation or
bank regulatory procedures or processes are necessary.

Your answer to the question would help this committee, and
would be invaluable to this committee and necessary to this
committee to carry out its duties. The Chair rules that the question
is pertinent and directed to the situation at hand. I would respect-
fully request on behalf of this committee that you, indeed, answer
the question.

[Witness conferring with counsel.]

Mr. BranToN. Mr. Chairman, my counsel has advised me that we
would be pleased to discuss any information concerning Chase only
if we can obtain Chase’s permission first.

Mr. BaArRNARD. Mr. Chairman, I don’t believe we are asking any-
thing about Chase.

The CHAIRMAN. Excuse me. Let me ask you this question. The in-
quiry to perform a procedure, did it come from Chase Manhattan
or from Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. in New York?

Mr. BranTtoN. I do not know the answer.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. York? I assume Mr. York is the gentleman
who performed the procedure.

Cl.}\/[r. York. It is my understanding that the request came from
ase.
Co’l“?he CHAIRMAN. Directly or through Peat, Marwick, Mitchell &

Mr. York. Through Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.

Mr. LEacH. Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Leach.

Mr. LeacH. This is a very interesting area of concern and of
philosophical import. Since we are going to be holding additional
hearings, however, and given the position of the gentlemen present
and their counsel’s advice, I would suggest that we postpone fur-
ther consideration of this issue. To press the point at this time
could be unnecessarily embarrassing both to the witnesses and
their company, which is one of the great American auditing firms.
With the understanding that this matter will be pursued further, I
recommend that we not pursue it at this time.

The CramrMAN. Well, if we don’t pursue it, Mr. Leach, I think
that by the same token, it leaves unanswered from this moment
forward the fact that Chase Manhattan asked that certain proce-
dures be performed in March of this past year.

We were told by the Comptroller in a briefing by the Comptroller
and the FDIC that they informed—the Comptroller didn’t inform
their office; that they, in turn, informed Continental Illinois and
Chase Manhattan and the others until 6 or 7 days before July 5,
the date the D-Day here.

We are finding out that it appears as though Chase Manhattan,
through some ESP—which in this instance I.don’t criticize; I think
it is great of Chase Manhattan—that they had some inklings about
the fact that maybe procedures ought to be performed here at
tl;"enn Square to try to learn a little more about these participa-

ions.
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It appears that Chase Manhattan may have been privy to some-
thing through the Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. route back in
March of this year. If we want to leave that hanging-—and certain-
ly I want to assure Mr. Blanton and Mr. York that we will not
leave it hanging for ad infinitum, because this committee does
pursue these things. If you want to leave it hanging and you make
a conscious decision that you are better off letting it hang out there
unanswered than to face up to it now, perhaps then we will allow
you to leave it hanging.

[Witness conferring with counsel.]

Mr. BranTtoN. Mr. Chairman, let me just make this statement.
To the best of my knowledge, no one in Peat, Marwick, Mitchell &
Co. in Oklahoma City had any conversations with any individual
from Chase Manhattan specifically concerning Penn Square. To my
knowledge, no one in Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. in Oklahoma
City initiated any discussions with anyone in our New York office
to discuss specifically Penn Square Bank.

I would be pleased to——

The CHAIRMAN. But you are leaving one—let’s go this way. To
your knowledge, did anyone at Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. in
New York City initiate any discussions with personnel in Peat,
Marwick, Mitchell & Co. in Oklahoma City relative to performing a
procedure in Oklahoma City? That is one you did not include.

Mr. BLaNTON. As I stated earlier, we would be pleased to discuss
1}:lhat matter, but we feel that we need the consent of Chase Man-

attan.

Mr. LEacH. Mr. Chairman?

The CuHAIRMAN. Just let me get an answer to this. He told me to
his knowledge, no one from Chase contacted Peat, Marwick, Mitch-
ell & Co. in Oklahoma; no one from Oklahoma contacted either
Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. or Chase. Now I am saying did
anyone from Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. New York contact
somebody at Peat, Marwick, Oklahoma City relative to performing
a procedure at Penn Square on participations?

Mr. BLanToN. I have already answered that question, that yes,
we were contacted by New York.

Mr. Leaca. Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN. Yes?

Mr. LeacH. I certainly understand the dilemma you gentlemen
face in wanting to discuss this with your client. It would be my
suggestion at this point, given the potential for contempt citations,
that the representatives of Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. relating
to Chase Manhattan be invited to testify at a future hearing to re-
solve all of this.

The CHAIRMAN. May the Chair just state that I wanted to get it
clear on the record, because of his last reply, that there was com-
munication. I didn’t want to leave it hanging that there was not. 1
am satisfied that we will have—certainly, there are going to be fur-
ther hearings on this, and not only for the benefit of Peat, Mar-
wick, Mitchell & Co., but for many others who are happy to testify,
ordwho were unhappy to testify today or didn’t want to testify
today.

I want to make it very clear that we are going to be chatting
with them in the months ahead, and maybe the years ahead. There
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is too much of this case that has to be cleared up that we are not
going to forget about it.

Mr. Barnard, do you have any further questions?

Mr. BARNARD. No, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN. Does anyone else have any questions of these
witnesses?

[No response.]

Let me ask you this, Mr. Blanton and Mr. York. You have heard
the panel preceding who testified that in their opinion, Penn
Square should not have been shut down on dJuly 5. You were here,
weren’t you?

Mr. BLaNTON. Yes.

Mr. York. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. Now, you are the auditing firm. Do you agree or
disagree with that panel? Do you feel that Penn Square should
have been shut down and this unusual procedure entered into by
establishing the special deposit insurance bank? Or should that
hal;re l;een triggered, or do you think other means should have been
taken?

Mr. BLaNTON. Because we do not have the facts that caused the
Comptroller to reach his decision as of that date, let me say this. If
the Comptroller had closed Penn Square Bank on December 31,
1981, then I believe that would have been done in error.

The CHAIRMAN. Thank you, gentlemen. At this time, I would ask
unanimous consent to have placed in the record the two documents
from Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co; one dated June 14, 1982, ad-
dressed to Mr. James Gunter, executive vice president, Penn
Square Bank; and the other dated May 4, 1982, board of directors,
Penn Square Bank in Oklahoma. Without objection, so ordered.

[The documents referred to follow:]
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Certified Public Accountants

. . First Oklahoma Tower
Peat, Marwick, Mitchell&Ca Oklzhoma City, Oklahoma 73102

June 14, 1982

CONFIDENTIAL

Mr. James J. Gunter, Executive Vice-President
Penn Square Bank, N.A.

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Dear Mr. Gunter:

In commection with our examination of the financial statements of Penn
Square Bank, N.A. as of Dece@bet 31, 1981, we noted certain matters relating to
the Bank's system of internal accounting control and accounting procedures that
we wish to call to your attention. In your consideration of the items men-
tioned in the following paragraphs, please understand that our recommendations
are intended to assist you in the presentation of and accountability for the
Bank's assets, liabilities, income and expense accounts. An effective system
of 4internal accounting control and operating procedures should help guard
against any igregulariiies that our test work may not disclose. The efficiency
and effectivenes§ of Bank personnel are determined by adequate managerial

policies and periodic reviews of such policies and employée performance.

As you read this letter, please bear in mind that its purpose 1is to
supplement our letter which was issued to the Bank's Board of Directors on May
4, 1952. Also, please consider that we have not reviewed the Bank's internal
accounting .controls since March 19, 1982, the date of completion of our field-

work in the Bank, and therefore, we may not be aware of changes subsequent to

that date.
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GENERAL
As noted in our previous letter, the Bank's growth rate over the last few .
years has been phenominal. This type of rapid expansion normally increases
processing requirements and tends to stretch existing persomnel. This in turn
‘increases the opportunity for errors to occur, processing short cuts and the
circumventing of existing internal controls. The remainder of this letter will
speak to individual areas of the Bank which we believe merit your attention;
hovever, we urge you to continually be aware of and make improvements in other

areas of the Bank where controls may have been weakened during this period of

rapid growth. -

OPERATIONS
Efficient workflows ‘are esseprial to any organization to ensure and
maintain excellent customer satisfaction. The following items are intended to

enhance the Bank's abllity to process items orderly and efficiently.

° Require all departments to release work immediately to the Proof
Department. - This will assist the department. in méeting impor-
tant deadlines and reduce the late afternoon volume;

o Clean checks of all staples, rubber bands, paper clips and other
fasteners prior to delivery to the Proof Department to avoid
rehandling the items and to reduce the number of rejected items;

<} Encode " account numbers on unencoded deposit and withdrawal
tickets at the funds receiving areas to assist in assuring that
the encoded number is correct and to encourage the use of
pre~encoded customer deposit slips;
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Estabiish procedures. in all funds receiving areas to prepare
{tems for MICR encoding by arranging items in proper sequence
before sending them to Proof;

Prepare a notice of missing documents for inclusion with the
customer's monthly statement when an item or items are missing
from the statement. The notice should explain that an item is
missing but to prevent delay, the ~statement is being mailed.
The potice should continue with a statement indicating that
should the customer need a copy for tax purposes, .to circle the
needed item, return the statement to the Bank and a copy will be
forwarded as soon as possible. This procedure will reduce the
amount of time necessary for research and filmwork;

Review the types of wmanually prepared reports to the reports
produced by the data processing system. When the same or
similar information is available from the  system, the manual
reports should be deleted;

Close select departments to outside calls (bookkeeping, proof,
tellers, etc.) except during posted operating  hours. This
allows individual departments td prepare and process the bulk of
their work without disruptions;

Encourage customers to properly endorse all checks with name and
account number. This procedure reduces bookkeeping research
time for deposited items returned;

Request a program change in order to automatically assess
insufficient .check charges through the data processing system.
This, method decreases the amount of time required to manually
handle the items and decreases the number of paper items in the
system. In addition, it requires positive officer response to
waive insufficient charges, improving controls over excess
waivers; T

Revise the overall Bank policy regarding NSF items. We realize
that the Bank will mot collect 100% of the income generated and
that special arrangerents have been made for zero balance type
accounts or customers who maintain substantial balances in other
accounts;

Establish a cut-off time im which loans may be brought to the
note area for same day processing. This will assist the note
departments in forwarding their work to proof in a timely
manner; .
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o Discontinue manually posting payment activity on the reverse
side of commercial notes. This is time consuming and unneces=-
5317.b Depar_tmen: %ersonnel indicated that an account history
can be requeste rom the processor's aut
received the following day; and omatel sjsten and

o Relocate operational departments (bookkeeping, proof, tramsit
data processing, etc.) within close proximity of each other. At’:
the present time, these departments are located in separate
sections of the Bank, creating disruptions in the efficient flow
of work. This recommendation is currently being reviewed by the
senior operations officer.

CASH MANAGEMENT
The realization of any bank's eami_nvg potential is dependent upon the

effective management of its earning assets. An overall goal for employing Bank

assets effectiv an average of 907 of total assets in an

.

ing capacity.

) Due From Bank Accounts - The Bank continually monitors the
activity of its primary correspondent banks in order to maintain
balances to compensate for services performed. At the same
time, it was indicated that "due from" accounts with little or
no activity were reviewed periodically. We recommend the Bank
review these relationships and eliminate or reduce balances
where possibleg

o Clearinghouse Cash Letter - At the present time the Bank does
not make,6 a cash letter send to the 10:00 A.M. clearinghouse
exchange. The Bank's check volumes may be significant enough,
due to holdovers and early morning mail, to indicate an oppor-
tunity may exist to reduce float by making an additional send to
the clearinghouse exchange. We understand this option is
currently being evaluated;

o Large Item Procedures - The Bank should ensure that large item
procedures are clearly defined and understood for all funds
receiving areas, by documenting the procedures and reviewing
them periodically with the staff who processes these items.
Additionally, the money manager should monitor areas where large
jitems are normally received to ensure that all large items are
jdentified, pulled and processed in time to meet key deadlines.




The following represent opportunities for possible improvements in the area of

LOANS

loans (commercial and installment):

o

During our examination, we noted the following with respect to depositor

As of December 31, 1981, the Bank was approximately two months
behind on preparing its daily commercial loan reconciliationms.
We recommend that the loans and their related interest be
reconciled on a daily basis without exception and that an
officer scrutinize and approve each reconciliation. Subsequent
to year end, the Bank corrected, in varying degrees, many of the
problems that plagued this process; however, we urge the Bank to
devote a great deal of attention to this area until the recon-
ciliation process is operating smoothly.

A formalized daily reconciliation of installment loans (prin~

cipal and interest) is not being consistently prepared. Per-
sonnel within the department should be required to prepare daily
a formalized reconciliation on a standardized form. Once this

a supervisor in the department should be performed.

reconciliation is complete, a subsequent review and E‘ﬁyro%} by

On certain participated loans, we noted that the Bank had
maturity dates on certain of the notes and corresponding partici-
pation certificates which did not correspond. The Bank should
consider improving procedures in this area to ensure such dates
are the same on future participated loans.

DEPOSITOR ACCOUNTS

accounts:

o

There was no supervisory review and approval of the demapnd and
savings accounts reconciliations. Such a review would encourage
a more timely recognition of errors or unusual reconciling
items.

Although all depositor account reconciliations are being per-
formed timely, they only reconcile dollar amounts. The Bank
should consider instituting a requirement in the reconciliation
process that a reconciliation of the number of accounts be
performed in addition to reconciliations of dollar amounts.
This procedure will ensure that accounts are not inadvertently
or purposely dropped from the system and the dollars transferred
to another account.

s
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OTHER !
The following represent other areas of the Bank where improvements can occur:

o The Bank sometimes releases loan collateral without requiring
proper authorization and documentation of the released items.

o The Bank does not always prepare reconciliations of all "due
from bank” accounts on a timely basis. Procedures should be
implemented to require that such accounts be reconciled on a
current basis.

[ The control logs for travelers checks in both the main bank and
drive-in bank were not posted up—-to-date on the day of our
surprise count. Also, it was noted the log had only a grand

total with no denominational break down. We recommend a review
of policies in this area for possible improvement.

* k k kK k k %k %

Jim, we trust these operational comments ‘will be of benefit as you continue to

improve the Bank's financial controls and procedures.

Very truly yours,

' C.

C. Dean York; rtoer

cc, Mr. Bill Jennings
Mr, Eldon Beller

Board of Directors
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Certified Public Accountants
| S |
. . First Okiahoma Tower .
Peat, Marwick,Mitchell &Ca. . Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102
(405) 239-6411
X May &, 1982
CONFIDENTIAL '

The Board of Directors

Penn Square Bank, N.A.

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Gentlemen:

Recently, we completed our examination of Penn Square Bank, N.A.'s financial
statements for the year ended December 3l, 1981 along with the coasolidated

financial statements of First Pemn Corporation (collectively referred to herein

as the Bank).

Because this was the first year for us to be associated with the Bank, we spent
considerable time reviewing such areas as the Bank's organization, pciicies,'
procedures, information systems, internal reporting, income tax strategies, data
processing, internal acf:oun:\ing controls, etc. The topics as o}xtlined herein are
the result of such review.

i

|
“Out recommendations are designed to address the broader issues which confront

management that have been brought about by the Bank's phenomenal growth over the
past five years. These recommendations, if adopted, will enhance the Bank's
security over its assets and depositor accounts and increase overall profita-

J‘ bility and control of the organization as a whole. Matters which relate directly
f

to accounting procedures and internal controls of an operational nature are
covered in a separate letter to Mr. James J. Gunter, Execurive Vice President of

Finance. A copy of such letter will be made available to you.
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After reviewing the letter, we recommend that you ask Bank management to respoqd
to the various recommendations and indicate in writing which recommendations will
be implemented and the reasons for those which are rejected, if any. Also, 2 time
frame should be established for implementation of the recommended procedures.
Periodic progress reports should be made to the Board and/or Audit Committee as to
the progress the Bank is making with its implementation schedule. However, as new
controls and procedures are considered, please bear iq.mind that organizational
changes and effective systems of internal control evolve over a period of time and
the cost-benefit of such changes must be eyaluated Hy management and the Board
prior to impleméncacion. - ‘

Gentlemen, you have the overall responsibility for the financial health of the
Bank and protection of its assets. We trust the recommendations herein and our
involvement with your organization will be beneficial as each of you fulfill your

duties as directors.

OVERVIEW

Presently the Bank is the fourth largest bank in Oklahoma City with assets in
excess of $400° million. Three years ago, assets were only $100 million which

indicates the Bank’s remarkable growth in such a short time.

Typically when an institution experiences rapid growch of this magnitude, tremen-

dous stress is placed on virtually every aspect of the Bank to keep pace, but in

particular, it is difficult on personnel and support. systems. Penn Square has

beer no differenr in feoelinma tha orwoce af ire wamid cennrk
N
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The positive results of growth are generally obvious -and occur almost immediately
with accelerating growth in assecs,‘deposi:s and increased profits.
there are usually negative aspects to growth if the growth is not carefully
controlled. Such negative aspects are not so obvious and take longer /to surface.
The negative aspects to }he Bank's virtually uncontrolled growth ¢ulminated in

1980 and early 1981 with a qualified audit report for 1980 and a. critical bank
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examiners' report from the Comptroller's office in early 1981.

The more significant problem areas within the Bank which caused

were:

Inadequate asset, liability management;
Poor liquidity;
No monitoring of credit and collection;

Large number of loan collateral documentation deficiencies and
technical violations;

Rising loan losses;
,
Inadequate financial management information;

Support systems in the commercial and energy lending area could not
keep pace with the loan volume. As 2 result, the details of commer-—
cial loans along with accrued interest were very difficulc to
reconcile to the general ledger control accounts;

Numerous extensions of loans for both principal and interest were
made with no cash payments required of the customer;

Many of the Bank's best loans were participated upstream to large
correspondent banks which often lefc the lesser quality loans omn
the Bank's books. The Bank's loan volume at year end was between
$1.5 billiom and $2 billiom, most of which had been participated
with other banks;

.
However,

these reports
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[} Inadequate information with respect to customer balances, profita-
bility and his total relationship with the Bank; .

o Numerous lending limit violations;

o Large overdrafts on which fees were often waived;

-] Insufficient level of equity capital to support the Bank's growth;
and

-] Inadequate internal monitoring through committees of the Board and

management to set policy, follow-up and measure results.

These and other problems were only symptoms of the larger problem. Due to the
Bank's unparalleled growth, there were insufficient numbers of personnel to cope
with the growth and a corresponding lack of experienced senior management to

direct the efforts of departmental persomnel.

During the second quarter of 1981, the Bank's senior management. responded to these
problems by making a commitment to do whatever was necessary to correct the
problems and hring the Bank's growth under control. Some of the steps taken which

have been quite visible to us were:

° Hiring of a new president who had experience in a large bank.

-] Hiring. of additional senior managemeat all with large bank
experience to support the president in the areas of:

~ . .Loan administration, credit and collection
- Finance
- General legal counsel
o Hiring of additional supervisory personnel and staff to support the

new senior management as well as additional personnel to adequately
support existing departments within the bank. This meant the
hiring of personnel ranging from senior loan officers to file
clerks.
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] The Bank's number of personnel more than doubled in a nine month
period from a level of approximately 160 to a level of almost 325 by
December 31, 1981.

[-] Internal committees of the Board and senior management have been
formed to set policy and monitor performance. /

[} Some of the Bank's policies have been formalized in writing while
others are in the process of being férmalized.

-] Procedures manuals are in the process of being written.

[} A credit department has been established to review and evaluate .
loan collection and documentation.

) Controls have been placed’on the making of new loans and the exten-
sion of existing loans.

o A process has been established fdf.determining the necessary level'

of the loan loss reserve and the related monthly -provision.
° Controls over letters of credit have been established.

[ Criteria has been established for the charge off of loans and the
placement of loans on a noninterest accrual status.

o An gsset, liability program has been established with the related
review of liquidity.

o Finanecial controls have been improved and the accounting department
significantly strengthened.

o The Bank's current and long-term financial management information
needs are currently being reviewed with an action plan to make the
necessary charges in a cost-effective orderly fashion.

-] The Bank's entire organization structure has been reviewed from top
to botteom with conséquent changes made which are in the process of
being implemented.

In summary, virtually every significant area- of the Bank has been reviewed and

changes have either been made or are in process.
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During the course of our audit of the Bank for 1981, we had an opportunity to work
with virtually all of the Bamk's new senior management and many of the new
supervisory personnel. Without exception we have been highly impressed with their
professional banking knowledge and ability to bring about change in their area of
responsibility. It appears to us that the Bank has put together, in a very short
time, an outstanding management team which has the skills to bring the Bank's
growth under control. But more importantly, they have the talent to take advan-
tage of the growth the Bank has achieved to date by strengthening the existing
asset base and use it to develop a long-term program of controlled growth and
profits. The positive changes which have ocgyrred in less than ome year have been
. truly remarkable and impressive, '
As mentioned in the first part of this letter our remaining comments and recom-
mendations are designed to help the Bank bring about further change and/or to
encourage the changes which are already underway. Such comments and recommenda-
tion;vshould also help the Bank further formalize and structure its program for

changes and improvément in the Bank's operations and performance.

These comments have been reviewed with senior managemént to emsure that factual
content is correct. In the process of such review, it was gratifying to note
there were few comments which we had that management had not previously considered
or was in the process of reviewing. In short, tﬂere were no surprises of signifi~

cance.



One of the characteristics of a high performance bank is having clearly defined

goals and objectives for growth and profits with the necessary short and long
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PLANNING FOR CONTROLLED GROWTH AND PROFITS

Goal Setting and Long Range Planning

range plans for achievement of such goals.

As the Bank considers a variety of changes throughout the organization, we recom=
mend that the Board of Directors and senior management consider the need to
formalize thé Bank's goals and objectives with the related short and long range
plans for achievement. Also, in conjunctianﬁith such strategies, the Bank should

consider establishing budgetary comtrols over all genefal ledger accounts and

‘cost centers for certain departments of the Bank.

Establishment of a formal planning process and budgetary controls will provide the

Bank with multiple benefEts_and allow the following to occur:

-]

Penetrating questions are asked by both members of the Board and
senior management as to what the organization is now and where would
they like for it to be in the future. Co

Careful analysis is made of the organization's strengths and weak-
nesses.

Realistic and measurable goals and objectives are set with a plan
for periodic monitoring and reporting to the Board on the Bank's
progress. §

Management develops a short and lomg range strategy for the
achievement of its goals. '

Reward systems are reviewed and oftenm revised cto encourage the
achievement of established individual and departmental goals.
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e
There is no question that organizations perform better whem they have a clear
understanding as to where they are going and a well developed plan to get there‘as
opposed to organizations which just operate from day-to-day and let the future

take its course.

While we recognize the Bank has begun to address the area of long range planning
and budgetary control, we urge you to continue the progress on perhaps a more
formalized basis. By doing so, we believe it will be easier to treat longer range
organizational problems on an overall basis rather than by the traditional piece~

meal approach. .

Organizational Structure

Recently, the Bank's organizational structure was revised for the effect of new
additions of senior and intermediate levels of management personnel which was

mentioned earlier. As a result, new positions and even new departments have been

created.

/

While the organizational changes are still in an evolutionary state, we urge that
senior management and the Board continue to review the organizational structure
and personnel positions and ask yourselves "is it right now and for the future, or

does it need revision?"

After reviewing the new organization chart which is currently in the process of

implementation, there is only one recommendation we wish to make.
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The 0il and Gas Division is quite large and has several key personnel reporting to
the Senior Executive Vice President in charge of the department. Because of ‘the
relatively large span of control which now exists, the variety of tasks performed
within the department and the particular talents of the departmenf head, we
recommend that the organization of this key department comtinue to be reviewed.
- The review should be made from the standpoint of continuing to improve the admin~
istration of the day-to-day activities of the department and yet capitalize on the
strengths of the department head and his relationships'with key loan customers and
upstieam correspondents. For him to maintain these relationships and effectively

administer the department may be unrealisitic as the Bank continues to grow.
,

Policies and Procedures

Guidelines for the operation of a bank -or any organization are generally set
through policies established by the board of directors and senior mapagement.
Specific procedures are then designed by management and staff to implement the
various policies. In some organizatioms, policies and procedures are informal and
.
most often communicated orally or through internal memos. 'However, as an organi-
zation grows in terms of volume of business and number of persomnel, such informal
means of communicating important operational matters becomes less and less

efficient and effective.
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The above described method has been the way in which the Bank has operated with
fespect to the sectiné of policies and implementation of related procedures.
However, with the Bank's rapid growth, principally in the past three years, it is
becoming more necessary to formalize old policies and establish new omes along

with the necessary procedures to carry out the various policies.

At the present time, the Bank has under its employment a systems group which is
responsible for reducing to writing all policies and procedures which govern

operations in various areas of the Bank. This is, indeed, a positive effort, for

approximately a year ago the Bank had practically no manuals in any areas. As the
Bank continues to complete the various manuals for each area of the Bank, we urge

you to consider the following:

o As the systems personmel go into an area to formalize the policies
and procedures in writing, an officer from that area should be
assigned to work closely with this group. This will allow indi~
vidual areas of the Bank to lend valuable input to the systems group
during the formulation of that area's policies and procedures.

o When the policies and procedures have been written in a certain
area, management should consider having the internal audit depart-
ment perform a detailed review of the policies and procedures of
that area before presentation to the Board for their approval. This
will help ensure that the policies and procedures provide for
proper controls in each area.

o As procedures are being developed, management should strive to
design them to be functionally oriented rather than written for an
individual's duties. This approach will provide more flexibility
as the Bank continues to grow.

Completion of the policies and procedures manuals in each irea of the Bank and

required compliance with them by all bank personnel will allow the Bank's opera-

tions to flow more smoothly and provide the Bank with stronger controls in each
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Profitability

In the past, the Bank has not established formalized performance goals such as:

return on average assets,

return on equity capital,

ratio of capital to assets,

earning assets as a percentage of total assets,
ratio of loans to deposits,

interest spread,

liquidity ratio,

etc.

0O0O0O0OO0OO0OOCO

With today's volatile interest rates and inflationary pressures which the Bank
must operate within, the establishment of such measurable performance goals

becomes a necessity in order to momitor and control the Bank's growth.
When establishing these goals, management must recognize that profitability
levels of the Bank should be higher than most banks of similar asset size pri-
marily due to the large loan portfolio which the Bamk is currently servicing for

correspondent.banks and the related fee income generated therefrom.

’

Although the Bank has performed work in some of these areaé; we encourage further

development of matters such as the following:

° Review the pricing of all products and services.

[ Determine the actual profitability of the Bank's large customer
relationships. '

o Consider revising Bank policy with respect to service charges for

overdrafts and NSF items. It appears to us that some customers have
taken advantage of the Bank in this area.




21

o Determine the direction of the Bank's trust department., Our
limited analysis indicates that it will continue to be a loss center
for some time. '

o Establish an overall goal of maintaining an average of a percentage

of total assets (say 90%) in earning assets.' This is especially

" important since the realization of the Bank's earming potential is
dependent upon the effective management of its assets.

° As the Bank considers improved operational efficiencies chroughout
the Bank, there are a number of ways in which improved workflow and
controls can be achieved in the processing of items. Specific
suggestions have been made in our letter to Mr. Gunter.

REPORTING AND MONITORING SYSTEMS

Internal Monitoring Reports

’

As described in the diagram at Appendix A, the "dontroi'enviroumeﬁc" of the Bank
in its simplest form consists of the Board and. senior management setting policies,
goals and objectives for the organization with the related wonitoring and
reporting systems established to monitor adherence to policies and measurement of

N

performance.

I3 .
Naturally, for proper monitoring to occur, the Bank must have a good information
system to meet the needs of the various levels of management and a well organized
and managed internal audit department to review and test adherence to policies and

procedures and report exceptions noted to the Board and senior management.
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At the present time the Bank, aided by the consulting division of our firm, is
determining whether it is receiving the necessary reports to adequately monitor
the operations of the Bank. This is a vital question facing the Bank, which
should receive a high priority until the management information needs of the Bank
have been determined and an action plan agreed upon as to how such needs will be

net.

Completion of this project will allow the Banmk to determine the following:

o Determine what information is necessary which will allow management
to properly mouitor bamk operatioms.

-] Once this is determined and cost estimates are developed, the Bank
can decide whether it needs to establish a data processing functionm
within the Bank, leave it at Fidelity Bank as a service bureau
operation or a combination of the two.

° The Bank will then be able to formulate alternatives and ultimately
establish the necessary system along with relaced data processing
equipment which will benefit the Bank in the short and long run on a
cost-effective basis.

Reports to the Board of Directors

Although you as Board members are receiving various financial reports at the
monthly meetings, we believe that the presentation of additional financial
information would be beneficial. We recommend the following as improvements in

this" area:

o The Board has been seeing financial information for only the Bank.
We recommend that the Board also receive consolidated financial
statements of First Penn Corporation. Such information represents
the true financial picture of your financial instituction as a whole
and presents the only meaningful financial results from a stock-
holder point of view.
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o A presentation of asset yield and cost of money trends over a period
of time should be presented to help you monitor the actual "spread”.
made by the Bank on its interest margin. A proper management of
this spread has a direct impact on the Bank's profit objectives.

o After management establishes a budgetary system, they will be able
to present to you a comparisom of actual financial results compared
with the corresponding budgeted data on a monthly basis, Such a ..
report should also contain explanations of material variances
between budgeted and actual information.

o The loan administration area of the Bank presently prepares an
excellent "problem loan list" and a related .calculation of the
necessary loan loss reserve. We believe this information will be an
excellent addition to your board reports and should be presented to
you ou at least a quarterly basis. Because the level of the Bank's
reserve for loan losses has a direct impact on earnings, you should
be familiar with the rationale ag.to how the level of the reserve is

determined at any point in time.

[ Many times the presentation of financial information in the form of
illustrated graphs is beneficial to the readers of such informa-
tion, This provides the preparer of information an opportunity to
provide the reader a view of asset, income and expense, yields and
cost of money trends over an extended period of time in a clearer
but much less detailed presentation. Virtually all the measurement
goals which the Beoard establishes can be reported effectively
through the use of various types of charts and graphs. We encourage
the  use of such presentation due to the trends which are highlighted
and the time savings achieved when having to present and read a
large variety of financial data. :

Increasing Internal Audit Effectiveness

.The Internal Audit Department is an important and intégral part of the monitoring
process. They serve as your "eyes and ears" to determine how well the rest of the

Bank is following established policies and procedures.
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For any internal audit functiom to be effective, it must have direct and visible

support from the Board in order for ‘them to have the proper stature within the

organization. Their reports to the Board should receive due consideration and

significant exceptions reported should be appropriately dealt with in a decisive

and timely manner. The audit department also requires input and direction of the

Board with respect ‘to their annual audit program, areas which require emphasis or
’

special projects in areas where the Board gequires more information. At the same

time, the audit department should be accountable to thé Board for their budget of

time and money to operate the department versus amounts actually spent.

;
The Bank has an active internal audit department of six persons. To improve their

effectiveness, we recommend the following:

o The development of a complete internal audit program which spans
the entire year and is approved annually by the Board's audit
committee. Such a program should relate audit risk to time spent
and be comprehensive enough to cover all significant areas of the
Bank. Presently, we are making arrangements with persomnnel of this
department to assist in the development of such a program.

o The stature and authority of the department within the Bank is
unclear among some of the Bank's officers and staff. The Board
should consider imstructing its senior management to convey to all
personnel the importance of the internal.audit function within the
Bank and the cooperition they are expected to receive.

° Development of an adequate working knowledge of EDP functionms,
especially if processing is established "in house', could prove to
be extremely beneficial to the department. The use of audit soft-
ware programs will allow the auditors to be more efficient and
effective in the work they perform.
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LOAN ADMINISTRATION

. : Loan Review Function .

In 1981, the Bank established a much needed loan review function which consists of
a grading system for all loams to be used to determine the necessary reserve for
loan losses at the end of each quarter. A controlled expansion of this function
will allow the Bank to challenge its reserve for adequacy om a regular basis,
which is an admirable trait of any bank. This is an extremely positive step for
the Bank, and we urge you to take full advantage of your capable staff in this

area.
Loan Documentation ‘

As was pointed out in recent regulatory examinations of the Bank, documentation of
loans and their related collateral has been:less than adequate in the past.
During the latter part of 1981, the Bank showed a marked improvement with respect
‘to loan documentation and will apparently continue to improve due primarily to the
perseverance of senior management to correct existing problems and reduce future
errors through the hiring of an excellent staff to monitor this area. This is a
critical area for any bank but especially your bank, due t; the expanding nature
of your loan operations. Therefore, we believe ié merits your utmost attention

until all problems are corrected.
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Correspondent Banking

During 1981, the Bank was involved in certain practices with respect to loa;s
participated upstream to other banks which we consider questionable. The most
significant of these involves the practice of making periodic payments of both
principal and interest to the correspondent banks without first receiving pay-
menc§ from the borrowers. The Bank is not required to do this according to the
written participation agreements, but apparently the Correspondent Banking divi-

sion has orally agreed to do this with some banks.

This practice is not desirable: for the folldwing reasons:

) It causes a continual increase in the Bank's accrued interest
receivable (a non-earning asset) which reduces the potential
earnings of the Bank.

o It also causes an unplanned strain on the Bank's liquidity since
cash is paid out before cash is received from the borrowers.

o When these transactions occur, an extension of credit has been made
to the borrower without official approval.
' .
In our opinion, discontinuance of this practice is imperative to the Bank. If it
remains necessary to continue on certain occasioms, it should require documented

approval by the credit policy committee or executive management.

Other

During our examination, we observed other practices in the area of loans which we

believe merit your attention and possible improvement:
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o As of December 31, 1981, the Bank was approximately two months
behind on preparing its daily loan reconciliatioms. We recoumend
that the loans and their related interest be reconciled on a daily .
basis without exception and that an officer scrutinize and approve
each reconciliation. Subsequent to year end, the Bank corrected,
in varying degrees, many of the problems that plagued this process;
however, we urge the Bank to devote a great deal of attention to
this area until the reconciliation process is operating smoothly.

o We noted instances where loan officers have extended loans, some as
many as 15 times, without requiring a principal reduction and many
times without requiring the payment of the accrued interest, In
addition, we noted several cases when interest is not paid, the
accrued interest is not added to the principal of the new loan. As
a result, interest income is being lost .when these ‘situations
occur. Additionally, the effects of this practice resulted in a
situation at December 31, 1981 where there was approximately five
months of interest income for the year which had not been collected
compared to three months at December 31, 1980. The effect on the
Bank is a strain om cash flow and an increase in non-earning assets, °
We recommend the Bank establish a policy of requiring interest to be
paid’ when due and exceptions to this policy only approved by the
Bank's chairman, president or Board. If the interest payment i
extended, it should be added to the principal of the note. '

o Subsequent to December 31, 1981, we observed a continual increase
in customer overdrafts. Some of the overdrafts resulted in the Bank
violating its legal lending limit to certain of these customers. We
believe the Bank. should make concentrated efforts to. not allow
thede violations to occur in the future. Also, management should
consider working with customers in an effort to reduce' the amounts
involved /in these overdrafts, especially since customers are often -
not charged for their overdrafts. To also ease the problem in the
overdraft area, we recommend that the Bank's loan officers not make
loans until funds are available for such’ loans.

-] It came to our attention during our examination that loan officers
occasionally instruct their secretaries - to prepare. and sign
official documents such as official checks and loan instruments in
their absence. In most cases, such persons have no authority to
perform such a task. We recommend, if the loan. officers are unable
to be in the Bank, they should arrange for other officers to perform
these tasks in their absence.

97-830 0 - 82 - 19
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TRAINING

As discussed earlier herein, the Bank's number of personnel have more than doubléd
in the past year. Such an increase was necessary to adequately sta‘ff the Bank in
order to handle its growth to date as well as future growth and changes which will
occur. When the Bank assimilates such a large number of personne{. in such a short
time, little time is available to properly train new personnel in the Bank's

policies, procedures, practices and philosophy of operation.

Presently, the Bank has slowed its hiring to a more normal pace. Now is a good
time to review the Bank's need to establi[sh""a formal intermal training program.

Establishment of such a program will allow the foilowing' to happen:

° All personnel can be instructed in an orderly manner regarding
recent changes which have taken place with respect to policies,
procedures and organizational changes. An excellent training
program can serve to communicate the Board's and senior manage-
ment's views on a variety of matters.

o The Bank will have a vehicle whereby once an employee is hired, he
can be taken through a new-employee oriemtation program and
adequately trained .to perform his job early in his employment,
thereby helping to avoid -unnecessary and costly errors.

) The Bank can also begin a program of cross-training for all posi-
tions in the Bank. This will provide adequate backup to ensure that
during periods of vacation or illness, an employee's daily tasks
and routines are adequately performed by another employee in the
Bank.
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OTHER MATTERS

Administrative Agreement

.

As you are well aware, the Bank has been operating under an administrative agree~
ment with the Comptroller of the Currency throughout most of 1981. Primarily,
during the later part of 1981, management of the Bank has made great strides in.
correcting or improving practically all of the areas addressed in this agreement,
Management is to be commended for their efforts and progress to correct a serious

situation in such a short period of time.

Centralized Purchasing

During this period of rapid growch, the Bank has lacked corntrol over its
purchaﬁing function. "It appears that several departments ha;e purchased fixed
assets, such as minicomputers, cars, artwork, etc. without approval of the.
purchasing officer.

Recently, con¥rols in the purchasing area have been significantly strengthened.
The Bank now reqﬁires that all purchasing be performed or ‘approved by ‘the

purchasing department. These new controls are a must before previously mentioned

budgetary controls can be effective.
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IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

As you consider the comments and recommendations made herein, please remember that
responsibility for having effective internal controls and sound operating pro-
cedures. within the Bank ultimately rests with each of you.as Directors. -In

preparing to implement some or all of the recommendations, the following should be

congidered:

o Preparation of a formal responsé to this letter for the Board by
management of the Bank;

-] Preparation of a plan for implementation on a priority basis with
definite timetables established;

-] Identification of matters which ‘can be performed by the Bank and,
those which will require outside assistance;

o Reporting periodically to the Board the progress made regarding the
implementation schedule; and ‘

o Consideration of the concept of cost versus benefit as decisions
are made regarding controls and procedures to be installed.

N .
* ok ok ok * ok ok Kk

Our examination of the Bank's financial statements is based on tests of data
supporting financial transactions and as such, you will appreciate that our exami-
nation will noé necessarily disclose the existence of irregularities, if any. The
ultima:g assurance as to the safeguarding of assets and reliability of 'the finan-
cial records and information is dependent upon an effective system of internal
con:réls, good management and the application of proper accounting principles and
procedures. We trust that the recommendations made herein will serve to
strengthen and enhance such controls in your efforts to meet your underlying

managerial responsibilities.
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Normally, the transition to a nmew accounting firm can be quite time consuming and
sometimes rather frustrating for certain of the Bank's personnel. However,* we
trust that the benefits of our first audit will)outweigh any of the negative
aspects and that on the whole, you will find it to have been .a worthwhile
experience. We have certainly emjoyed this first year in working with you and
Bank management and look forward to a lasting relationship in serving Penn Square

Bank and its related entities.

Should you have any questions concerning the matters discussed in this letter, we

shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

.

VYery truly. yours,

AL W ah ke Tl v L
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P Certified Public Accountants
» : 345:Park Avenue
Peat, Marwick, Mitchell &Co. New York, New York 10154
(212) 7589700
Office of General Counsel

October 8, 1982

The Hon, Fernand J. St Germain

Chairman

Committee on Banking, Finance -and
Urban Affairs .

U.S. House of Representatives

2129 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, D.C. 2051%

Dear Mr. Chairman:

Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. ("PMM&Co.") submits this
letter to clarify and to amplify its testimony during the
hearing on Penn Square Bank, N.A. ("Penn Square") before
your Committee on August 16. On behalf of the Firm, I request
the permission of the Committee to supplement the record of
that hearing.

During the hearing on August 16, PMM&Co.'s witnesses
respectfully declined to discuss, on the grounds of client
confidentiality, the services performed by PMM&Co.'s Oklahoma
City office for The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. ("Chase")
with respect to loan participations Chase purchased from
Penn Square, The witnesses faced a dilemma., They had ap-
peared pursuant to a subpoena which, in PMM&Co.'s view, ex-
tended to services performed for Penn Square, but not to
services ‘performed for any other client of the Firm. With
respect to services performed independently for and at the
request of another client, i.e., Chase, PMM&Co. was bound by
a professiocnal code of ethics not to disclose the services
or the resulting communications.

PMM&Co.'s predicament, of course, could be resolved
by Chase's consent. As Mr, Blanton then stated, PMM&Co. would
be pleased to provide this information to the Committee under
such circumstances. Subsequently PMM&Co. requested and re-
ceived permission from Chase for PMM&Co. to set forth its
views as to the request it received, the services performed
and the reésulting communications with Chase.
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As you, Mr., Chairman, noted during the hearing, the
assertion of client confidentiality could result, and did
result, in false accusations and misinformation being circu-
lated in the media. We believe the disclosure, with the
client's permission, of the facts relating to the services
performed for Chase amply demonstrates the propriety of
PMM&Co.'s conduct.

PMM&Co.'s New York office, for many years, has served
as Chase's independent certified public accountants. 1In
late October, before Penn Square had approached PMM&Co. to
accept the engagement as Penn Square's auditors, Chase re-
quested advice from our New York office on procedures Chase
might employ with respect to its loan participations from
Penn Square. PMMsCo.'s New York office recommended that
Chase engage Penn Square's auditors, with Penn Square's per-
mission, to conduct the anticipated procedures. Arthur Young
& Company had been, and was then assumed to be continuing
as, Penn Square's auditors. Such a recommendation and course
of action is not uncommon in the case of loan participations.

Later, when Chase determined to proceed, Penn Square
had engaged PMM&Co.'s Oklahoma City office to conduct its
audit examination as of and for the year ended December 31,
1981. Thus, in early February 1982, Chase's request was
made to PMM&Co. personnel in New York who in turn discussed
it with PMMs&Co.'s Oklahoma City office. Attached as Exhibit
A is a copy of a memorandum dated February 10, 1982 outlining
Chase's request. As expressly set forth in the memor andum,
Chase was to forward a letter of understanding to Penn Square
once the scope of the assignment was determined.

PMMsCo. personnel in New York and Oklahoma City discussed
the work to be undertaken and then PMM&Co. New York personnel
reviewed the scope of the assignment with Chase. Once PMM&CoO.,
and Chase agreed upon the specific procedures, Chase on April 8,
1982 wrote to Mr. Bill P. Jennings, Chairman and Chief Exec-
utive Officer of Penn Square, requesting Penn Square's approv-
al. Following the approval of Penn Square senior manage-

ment -- confirmed orally to PMMsCo. by Eldon Beller, Presi-
dent and Chief Administrative Officer and James Gunter, Chief
Financial Officer -- PMM&Co. began its work.

By letter dated May 21, 1982, PMM&Co.'s Oklahoma City
office forwarded a draft of the expected report, dated May 5,
1982, to PMM&Co.'s New York office. PMMsCo.'s New York office
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subsequently provided a draft to Chase for purposes of review
and discussion, and determination as to whether further proce-
dures were appropriate. The letter and draft report appear

as Exhibit B hereto. With the press of other matters, the
report was never completed nor any additional procedures
performed.

As is evident, there was nothing improper in these pro-
cedures. It is not uncommon for one financial institution
to approve the conduct of special procedures by its auditors
for a second institution when the first is servicing loans
for the other. Moreover, as the draft report indicates,
these limited, special procedures did not disclose significant
discrepancies or weaknesses. The proposed findings of the
draft report were not inconsistent with the information avail-
able at the time of the PMMsCo. report on Penn Square's fi-
nancial statements.

We believe this information will clarify the testimony
presented on August 16 and will resolve the questions raised
concerning the services Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. per-
formed for Chase with respect to the Penn Square loan partici-
pations.

Respectfully yours,

:zslgﬁéF/Ezifé725t6
Edwin D. ott

Assistant General Counsel

EDS:bw
Attachments
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Peat. Marwick.Mitchell &Ca

To: Mr. C. D. York Date: February 10, 1982
Office: Oklahoma City Steno: rms
From: J. 8. Zwaik Enc:

Office: New York . . cc;

Subject:  Performance of Agreed-upon Procedures at Request of Chase
. Maghattan Bank .

Pursuant to our telephone comversation of February 9, the purpose of

this memorandum is to ocutline certain procedures which you are being
asked to perform on behalf of The Chase Manhattan Bank. These pro-
cedures pertain to certain commercial leans (primarily production

payment loans) in which Chase is participating with Penn Square (generally
907%-99% Chase share). These loans were originated by Penn Square, who
continues to service them. Currently, Chase has approximately 150 such
loans totaling approximately $230 millionm.

Based upon discussions I have held with Chase personnel, they are
requesting the following procedures to be performed:

° review of Penn Square's credit granting policies and
procedures :
° review of Penn Square’s credit monitoring (subsequent to

eredit extension) policies and procedures

° review of Penn Square's procedures for the servicing of loans
(including, but not limited to, collecticn of payments from
boerrowers and forwarding appropriate amounts to Chase)

° confirmation of 257 of the number of lcans Chase is parti-
cipating with Penn Square (confirmation with both borrowers
and any other participants), ‘Selection to be on a random
basis,

° review of credit files for all Chase participation loans over
$5 million, plus 15 such loans under $5 million, randomly
selected. ’

[

EXHIBIT A
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Based upon the above, could you please prepare and forward to me tne
following:

o proposed draft report
"o detall procedures to be performed

o fee estimate’ 7
Based uﬂon the procedures, etc., Chase perscnnel will prepare a letter
of understanding to be sent to Penn Square.

3 .
In addition, as we discuseed, since Chase says that they will pay for

. .these procedures (Chase will address the question of passing the cost to
Penn Square with them at a later date), you should charge your time and
expenses to New York contract #176-07545-77,

I appreciate very much your cooperation in this matter. If you have any
questions, please call me at (212) 552-2873 (or 2874).
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. Foan Marwick Michell & Ca

May 21, 1982

Joegseph Chu

Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.
345 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10154

Dear Mr. Chu:

Ericlosed is a draft of our special report performed for Chase Manhatten

Bank on Penn Square Bank, N.A. Pleasé note any changes you wish to make
and provide me with the proper heading of our report and return to me as
soon as. possible.

Sincerely,

PEAT, MARWICK, MITCHELL & CO.

Kim W. Shoemake, Supervising Senior

L

KwS/éih

EXHIBIT B
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Robert L. Denner, Vice-President
Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A.
One Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, New York 10015

Dear Mr. Denner: .

As you requested, vwe have performed certain agreed procedures on behalf
of Chase Manhattan Bank (Chase) on certain loans and records of Penn
Square Bank, N,A. (Pean Square). These procedures are in accordance with
our audit program (Exhibit B) which was actached to the aurhorization
Jetter from Chase to Mr., Bill P. Jennings, Chairman of the Board, Pemm
Square Bank, N.A. Our resulting findings were as follows:

, ‘ Credit Granting

We discussed credit granting policies with Mr. John Baldwin, Senior Vice
President, who informed us at the present time any lending officer im the
Bank has authority to make a loan, if such loan does not cause the
borrower's tectal indebtedress to exceed $50,000. If such a loan does
cause total indebtedness to excaed $50,000, the loan is then approved by
eitter the Bank's credit poliry coumittee, or the Bank's president oT
Chairman. We pezformed an inspection of the loan documents on a test
Lasis to decermine vhether z11 new notes which caused total indebtedness
to exceed 550,000 vere so approved and discovered no discrepancies from -
this p.licy. The Bank has plans in the near future to establish indi-
--idual lending limits for each officer rather than the $50,000 limir for
all ofiicers.

Credit Monitoring

During 1981 the Bank established 'a strong loan review function. It is
presently a joint responsibility of the loan review department and each
individual loan officer to monitor the financizl condition of their
customers. - The loan review department performs this task by reviewing
past due reports znd overdraft lists, performing periodic ¢ollectibility
reviews and meintaining a2 problem loan list. We performed various tests
snd Teviews to ensure the completeness of this work and ‘discovered no
discrepancies. In addition, the loan review department reviews all new
lozns within 90 davs of the issuance date to ensure performance as 2grecd
on in the losn documents. The individual lean officers are resporsidle

for maintzining contact with each customer in an effort to determine

their business needs and possibly detect potential problems with & loan
when they first occur.
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Loan Servicing

We discussed with Bank officials the policies regarding servicing of the
loans participated with Chase and learned there are two types of payments
to Chase. The first type is simply when a customer makes a payment and
Penn Square wires Chase its pro-rata share. The Bank has adequate
controls over this function. The second type of payment to Chase occurs
when Penn Square wires Chase wmoney from its” own . funds to peet the
requirements of the note even though the borrower has failed to wmeet
these requirements. This procedure occurred quite frequently in 1981,
due to the lack of a policy to govern it. In 1982 a new policy was
established which requires the apptoval ‘of Penn Square's credit policy
committee and therefore, due to these stringent controls, this situvation
is occurring less frequently. : ‘

Confirmations

We randomly selected 25X of the total number of loans in which Chase is
participating with Penn Square for direct confirmation with the borrower
as of March 31, 1982. This resulted in 38 confirmations mailed and 36
being returned to us with no exceptions.. "We performed alternative
procedures to ensure validity of the notes on ‘those borrovers not
responding.

Loan Document Inspection and Pavment History

We randomly selected 25 loans participated to Chase and inspected the
lozn files for the following required documentation:

executed loan document
signed note
collateral properly perfected
appraisals when appropriate
engineering reports, including a documented -revie by Penn
Square's engineers, when appropriate
insurance coverage with Penn Square named as loss payee, when
. appropriate .
o current financial information
o properly executed extensions, when applicable-
!

o0 00 0

o .

We discovered three minor exceptions which the Bank is in the process of
cotrecting.

Also, on these 25 loans we perfeormed a pavment histery tast wiich con-
sisted of:

o

[«]
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° Determining the nuaber of times, il any, the loan Ras bDeen
extended.
° Decermining the borrower is making his required payments or if

Penn Square is making them on behalf of the borrower to Chase
(see information under loan servicing).

We discovered no significant exceptions in :his area.

Collectibility Review

Ve performed a credit file review for collegtibility om all loans in
which the portiom Chase owmed, equaled or exceeded $5,000,000, Also, we
performed such a review omn 15 additional loans- selected at rtandom in
which Chase participated in an amount less than $5,000,000, See Exhibit
A for .a derail list of loans reviewed and their related classification.

k % k % k % % %

Because these procedures do not constitute an examinatiom in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, we express no opinion on the
financial statements of Penn Square. -In comnection with the procedures
referred to. above, no significant discrepancies or weaknesses were
discovered. Had we performed additional procedures or had we made an
examination of the financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, other matters might have come to our atten—
tion that would have been reported to you. It is understood that this
report is for the exclusive information of Chase Manhacttan 2ank and is
not to be distribucted to others for any purpose. :

8

May 5, 1982
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Exhibit A

Classification

Good

Good

Good

OLEM

Good

Good

Good

OLEM

OLEM

Good

OLEM

OLEM
Substandard
Substandard
Cood
Doubtful
Substandard
OLEM

Good

* OLEM

OLEM
Substandard
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Pesn Squsre Sask, M.A. Period ended ——
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Auditing Procedure

Poriod
and Exrent

1.

Objeccives:

g audit cescs is to determine vhether or
following its owm policies and those of
te the loans chey have participated to
Chase Hanhactam Baok of New York. A special report in accordance with
SAS #16 will be prepared which covers our finding afzer applying. the
below agreed upon procedures.

Reviev existing pelicies and procsdures regarding Pemn Square Bank's
evedic granting pelicies. Discuss all pertinentc daca with apprepriace
1 and a oemo ing our finds

The objective of the followin
soc that Pens Square Bank is
deng banking vith resp

P prep

Perform the same procedures as seaticned in #1 regarding credit zonde
toring. .

Prepare a nexs regarding the sarvicing of Penn Square Bank's loans
which are participaced to Chase Manhattea Bank.

Randomly seleet 25 loans parcvicipaced to Chase and perform the
following:

1. if such

(A) Reviev and analyze loan £f11x to 4
docuseats are couwplets vich data such as:

Execucad loan documeat

Currencly signed ootes

Collacaral proparly perfected

Appraisals obtained vwhers .appropriace
£3ginearing reports obtained and revieved
by che Bank's engineers vhere appropriates
I g ined with the Baok
sanmed as loss payable payee where appropriace
Current fisameial staceseats

o If loan extersions for priscipal and/or
inceresc exisc, deter=ine they have been
properly executed.

co0000

°

o

(B) In reviewing Cthe loan documentation, compliznce cest the Sank's
acherence to the policies noced in steps 1, 2 and 3 above.

(C} Om the loans selected, perform a payment history tese of zhe
loan or crediz line sracking such infor=ation as:

o Are paydencs made vhen due for principal and inrerese?

o Determine 1f loan is curTest or past due and thar such
status is reflected oo che Baok's internal reports.

o Detarmine number of times the loas has been exceaded for
sriscipal amd/or interest. .

o Decerzine if customer is =aking the priacipal and iagerest
payrencs or if cthe 3ank is aaking them in the cuszomer's
Yehalf to Chase.

(D) If significant exceptions are found in chis tesc, call Jan Zwalk

in Yew Yotk for guidance as 0 how we snould proceed.
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PR . agreed a3 Procesures for Thase Mamnactam 3ani
=2 ot
. 3=31-82
Camoeny. Penn Sougre Sanp. A Puriod ended __2"=° €
| Pyri
i Auditing Procedure wd Tt | %87

Oc & random basis as of & randem dace, salect 252 of the total number
of loans in vhich Csase i3 participacing vith Pena Square and confir
directly vith borTowers via positive confirsations. ' Sugh lcans vere

f:-med as of December 31, 19281 and all exceptions were

previously comfis
cleared to our sscisfacctiom. The loans selacsed in (4) above should

be included im the CesC.
Send second requests is Jecessary.
Clear all exceptions to our sazisfactics.

Reviev for colleccidility all lcans vhich Chase has a participaciocan
equal to or greatsr thanm $5,000,000 plus fifteen other loans less than
$5,000,000 selacted at random., Include 2l loans classified other
than "good” ia the report to Chase.

Draft the report socing all procedures perfoTmed and any errors or
vesinesses noted during our vork. Such report will be prepired in

conformity with SAS #14.

97-830 0 - 82 - 20
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The CHAIRMAN. At this time, the Chair rgzould call Mr. Harold
Russell, managing partner of Arthur Young & Co.

Mr. BARNARD. Mr. Chairman, might I ask|a procedural question?
Because of the essence of time, might it not|be possible to question
some of the witnesses whose testimony would be a lot more perti-
nent today? j

The CHAIRMAN. I assure the gentlemen w
ness list today.

Mr. BARNARD. We are going to complete it|today?

The CuHAIRMAN. Yes, sir.

Mr. BarNArD. Thank you. You are notl going to complete it
today; you might complete it tonight or in the morning.

The CHAIRMAN. As the gentleman knows,| we from Rhode Island
feel that all hours are daytime hours. The way you enjoy life, it is
alwonderful thing, and being in Oklahoma (ity 1s such a wonderful
pleasure—— ‘

Mr. BARNARD. You are enjoying this? [Laujghter.]

The CHAIRMAN. I enjoy being with thesel wonderful people and
with you and Jim, and the rest. [Laughter.] [Witness sworn.]

TESTIMONY OF HAROLD RUSSELL, ARTHUR YOUNG & CO.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Russell, you are the gentleman with Arthur
Young & Co. who was the predecessor firm to Peat, Marwick,
Mitchell & Co., doing the auditing at Penn Square Bank?

Mr. RusserL. Yes, I am.

The CHAIRMAN. For how long a period of fime were you auditing
Penn Square?

Mr. RusseLL. We began to audit the bank in 1976. We examined
the balance sheets for 3 years, and then oh the formation of the
holding company in 1979. We reported on the holding company in
1979 and 1980. ‘

The CHAIRMAN. In addition to the bank—

Mr. RusseLL. We reported only on the holding company in 1979.

The CHAIRMAN. Would you be good enough to describe for us the
reasons given to you by the people at Penn Square when they in-
formed you that they had no further need fdr your services?

Mr. RusseLL. We really weren’t given a reason; we simply were
sent a letter saying that—I think the term|was executive manage-
ment had decided to make a change.

The CHAIRMAN. Were you here this morping when the question
was asked of Mr. Beller as to this change, pnd among the reasons
were that he could not get any return phone calls from the people
at Arthur Young & Co.?

Mr. RussgLL. I think he said Mr. Gunter ¢omplained of that. Yes,
I was here. There was a period for about a week when the individu-
al who was responsible for the day-to-day work was ill, and there
was some difficulty in getting a hold of him

The CHAIRMAN. Were the people at Penn|Square informed of the
fact that that gentleman was ill?

Mr. RusseLL. It was a woman, but yes, they were. And in fact, I
think she called them from home,

The CuairMAN. Now, your 1980 audit, I think everybody is aware
of the fact, at this point had a qualifying sthtement. Do you feel as

will complete the wit-
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though this necessarily placed doubt on the adequacy of the loan
loss reserves?

Mr. RussgLL. In the 1980 accounts?

The CHAIRMAN. Yes. -

Mr. RusserL. Yes. With respect to 1980. Of course, that is exactly
what we were qualifying for, and we said that we had a scope
qualification which is a highly unusual thing, particularly in a fi-
nancial institution. And particularly, when it goes to the reserve to
loan losses, as ours does. _

We simply indicated that the supporting documentation which
was inadequate was so inadequate that we could not make the de-
termination as to whether it was adequate or not adequate.

The CHAIRMAN. In 1979, you performed an extensive examination
of the oil and gas loans of Penn Square.

Mr. RusseLL. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN. And my information is that you found that they
were in pretty good condition?

Mr. RusseLL. In 1979, they were in excellent condition.

The CuAIRMAN. In 1980, you analyzed the loans that were criti-
cized by the Comptroller’s examiners. Did you find the Comptrol-
~ ler’s people to be evenly balanced in their approach, or in your
opinion, what was the attitude of the bank officials about those
classifications?

Mr. RusseLL. That is two questions. Yes, certainly in 1980, at the
end of the year, the Comptroller really had what I would call their
A team examining the bank.

The CHAIRMAN. Their best?

Mr. RusseLL. Some of the best people that they had because they
brought in people from the Dallas office, the Houston office and
other offices. So I think in answer to that question, they had excel-
lent people reviewing the accounts of the bank at the end of 1980.
And I have forgotten your second question.

The CHAIRMAN. As you know, that team did, indeed, classify a
number of those loans energy loans.

Mr. RusseLL. Yes, they did. -

The CHAIRMAN. Do you think that the people—that the A team
was overly harsh in their classifications of those loans?

Mr. RusseLL. Well, the bank suggested to officials that they were
overly harsh. We reviewed those classifications and we agreed with
the classifications of the Comptroller, or those examiners.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Leach?

Mr. LEacH. Let me say that in retrospect, it is quite clear that
seld]om has a caveat served an auditing company so well. [Laugh-
ter. ‘ o

Mr. RusseLL. But it is not simply a caveat. ,

Mr. LeacH. I asked the gentleman from Peat, Marwick how
common a practice it was to have a qualification in a bank audit,
and he said it was not highly unusual. You have just stated that it
is hiﬁhl}; unusual to have a scope qualification. Could you elaborate
on that?

Mr. RusseLL. Well, I don’t know how I could elaborate other than
expressing my opinion that when you havira scope qualification
that says there is inadequate documentation that goes to the re-
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serve loan losses. I doubt very much if you will find very many of
those kinds of qualifications in a bank or any financial institution.

Mr. LeacH. Out of 1,000 banks that are audited by principal au-
diting companies in America, how many will have scope of qualifi-
cations? ‘ ,

Mr. RusseLL. That run to the loan loss reserve? I would guess—
and these are hypothetical type questions—but I would guess, I
would be surprised if it exceeded five.

Mr. LeacH. Five out of 1,000 would qualify as a highly unusual
condition.

I was intrigued to read your letter of contract with the bank
dated January 6, 1981, in which you stated, and I will just quote,
“In conducting our examination, we became aware of the possibil-
ity that illegal acts may have occurred that may have a material
effect on the financial statements.” Is that standard contractual
language?

Mr. RusseLL. That is standard.

Mr. LeacH. That is not an unusual aspect?

Mr. RusseLL. No.

Mr. LEacH. In your judgment, were there illegal acts that oc-
curred?

Mr. RusseLL. Almost in any bank situation there will be some
violation, some technical violations, which would be characterized

" as illegal acts.

Mr. LeacH. Were you saying that your scope qualification indi-
cated that the possibility of illegal acts was high or low?

Mr. RusseLL. No. Our scope qualification goes to the inadequacy
of the documentation of the loan loss ratios. We are saying that the
loan files themselves were inadequate, the documentation, so we
could not make a decision.

Mr. Leach. I appreciate that and would yield briefly to the chair-
man.

The CHAIRMAN. I thank the gentleman for yielding. Now, you
said that paragraph on illegal acts is standard, and in many insti-
tutions you will find some violations, and we are aware of that. But
let’s talk about Penn Square.

You just told us that in about 5 out of 1,000 cases you would
have a scope qualification such as was contained in your report?

Mr. RusseLL. Yes, I would be surprised.

The CHAIRMAN. As to illegal procedures at Penn Square, were
they within the ordinary realm, or would you say that they were a
little higher than ordinary?

Mr. RusseLL, Well, I don’t think I can make that comparison.
There were a number of illegal acts which were identified both by
the examiners and ourselves, and I really couldn’t compare it to
other banks. I don’t think I could add anything to that.

The CHAIRMAN. Except for the fact that—well, you perhaps do
not think you could add anything, but I think you could because I
am told that you have written a few manuals on bank procedures
and are very, very knowledgeable in the area, and this is why I
asked my colleague to yield for a moment.

Mr. RusseLL. Well, I was as far as writing technically when I was
chairman of the Subcommittee for the American Institute which
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was writing the Bank Audit Guide for the Institute. That is my in-
volvement with that. ,

With respect to Penn Square at the end of 1980, I would have to
say that I think that the technical violations were probably, as far
as number, more than you would normally incur or:see in a bank.
Yes. But I think they were well documented in the examiner’s
report.

I think—as I say, I really think they did a fine job, and they sent
in excellent people to do that. So I think they did document that.

The CHAIRMAN. I thank the gentleman for yielding.

Mr. LeacH. In your judgment, do you feel the fact that you made
a qualifying statement in your audit was a factor in your not being
rehired to perform the audit the following year?

Mr. RusserL. I have no way of knowing. I have listened to the
testimony that you have heard today, and I would have to assume
that Mr. Beller would feel more comfortable with Peat, Marwick.
But beyond that, I have no knowledge. :

Mr. LeacH. Firms can only make money when they have clients.
To make an audit finding that is less than perfect and will reflect
poorly on that company takes a degree of courage. I would like to
tip my hat both to you, sir, and to your firm. And I appreciate your
willingness to appear before us today.

Mr. RusserL. Thank you. It is, indeed, an easy thing to do as a
practical matter.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Barnard? ;

Mr. BARNARD. As far as procedure is concerned, when an audit-
ing firm such as yours finds the need to make a qualifying disclo-
sure, where is it normally found?

Mr. Russerr. Well, I think you are speaking about the specific
situation. o o ‘

Mr. BARNARD. Yes. ~ .

Mr. RusseLL. Do you mean where the report is found or where
the qualifying statement is? =~

Mr. BaArRNARD. Where the qualifying statement is found.

Mr. RusseLL. The qualifying statement, when it goes to a scope
qualification, is normally found in the auditor’s opinion letter.

Mr. BARNARD. And in your particular statement, it was found in
paragraph 2, I believe.

Mr. RusseLL. That is right.

Mr. BARNARD. Paragraph 2 of your letter?

Mr. RusseLL. That is correct. It is actually in paragraph 1, which
refers you to paragraph 2. It is an “except for” letter. '

Mr. Barnarp. Is that a generally accepted procedure among all
creditable—— : o :

-~ Mr. RusseLL. As far as the way it is presented, yes, that would be
the way; what we would call the statement of auditing standards
were presented, yes, sir. :

Mr. BARNARD. That is the general modus operandi?

Mr. RussgeLL. Yes. , ,

Mr. BARNARD. The acceptable modus operandi?

Mr. RusseLL. Yes, sir. ‘ S : )

. Mr. BarNARD. So in other words; if it was on the four last pages
~of a document that had at least 20 or 25 pages, you would find that
that might be a-little unusual, right?
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Mr. RusserL. Well, that would be unusual because you would
have to have a four-page opinion letter to do that. When you have
a scope qualification it must be in the opinion letter. It cannot be
in the financial statement..

Mr. BARNARD. Would you consider, then, a statement such as
this as being a scope qualification:

It should be understood that future loan losses involved an exercise of judgment.

It is the judgment of management that the allowance is adequate at both December
31, 1981 and 1980.

Is that an explanation?

Mr. RussgLL. I think you must be reading from the Peat, Mar-
wick report.

Mr. BARNARD. Yes, I am. ’

Mr. RusseLL. No, that would normally—let me think about how I
might answer you. Well, it would not be a scope qualification. It is
more—it would be a representation of management in the financial
statements. I think you would have to characterize it as a represen-
tation of management. o

Mr. BARNARD. It is a representation of management?

Mr. RusseLL. Yes. ‘

Mr. BARNARD. But it is a statement from the auditors to whom?
The board of directors? ‘

Mr. RusseLrL. Well, the auditors, ourselves, or anyone else really
only render an opinion letter. The financial statements themselves
are supposed to be the representation of management. They have
the primary responsibility for that. So the auditors would be re-
sponsible for their opinion letter.

Mr. BARNARD. I have no further questions.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Russell, when you prepared that report that
had the qualification, were you aware of the fact that it would be
reviewed not only by the board of directors of Penn Square or the
parent holding, but by many, many people around the country who
might be giving thought to investing funds in Penn Square?

Mr. RusseLr. Well, the answer is that we were aware that it
would become public information, but it would not necessarily
become public information to the general public in that it was in-
cluded in a filing with the Federal Reserve, which is required. of a
bank holding company, and in a document entitled FRY-6 report.
So we were aware of that. :

~And obviously, we have been quite cognizant of the fact that our
report would be the only public information available—even
though it is on the holding company itself—for an investor who un-
derstood those reports to understand our qualification went to the
subsidiary bank. :

The CHAIRMAN. And so, a sophisticated money broker who was
attempting to make a determination as to whether or not advise
clients to invest funds in a particular - institution would know
enough to look at that report, would they not?

Mr. RusseLL. Well, I don’t know whether they would know or
not. It would depend upon the broker. ,

The CHAIRMAN. Would it surprise you to be told that quite a few
of the money brokers have told us that yes, indeed, they reviewed
your report and that of Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.? - .
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Mr. Russerr. I would think that brokers were sophisticated
would. know where the information was, and would make sure they
had access to it, yes, sir. ‘

The CHAIRMAN. So it would not surprise you to learn that your
report was being reviewed by those people?

Mr. RusseLL. No, I would expect it to be. -

The CHAIRMAN. Thank you. Mr. Weber?

Mr. WeBeR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Russell, your 1980 fi-
nancial statement is qualified for the reason that there was a lack
of supporting documentation of collateral values of certain loans.
Your 1979 report was not so qualified. Was there some change in
documentation between 1979 and 1980 that caused you to qualify
the 1980 report but not the 1979?

Mr. RusseLL. Yes, there was. In 1979, the bank did a very good
job in obtaining engineering reports from very reputable engineer-
ing firms like Keplinger and Lawson and others, and did that quite
well and quite thoroughly, and they were very current.

In 1980, that deteriorated and there were not current engineer-
ing reports. In some cases, there were engineering reports which
did not include an opinion of the engineer, or did not include the
assumption that the engineer used or the nature of the reserves
that he had estimated; volumetric versus historical data.

Mr. WeBER. Do you know any reason why that was permitted to
deteriorate in that fashion? ;

Mr. RussgLL. No, I do not.

Mr. WeBer. When did you first bring to management’s attention
the fact that you were giving consideration to qualifying the report
in this fashion?

Mr. RusserL. Well, we would normally begin really doing our
audit, the bulk of it, being able to look at loan reserves, after the
end of the year. So it would have been sometime prior to the issu-
ing ‘of the report obviously, but sometime in latter February or the
first part of March.

Mr. WEBER. I assume that you did discuss this with management;
the fact that you would include this type of statement?

Mr. RussgLL. Yes, we did. .

Mr. WeBger. Who specifically did you speak to?

Mr. RusseLL. Bill Jennings.

Mr. WeBer. What was his reaction?

- Mr. RussgLL. Obviously, he was not pleased with that, but the
meeting concluded on, I think, you have to. do what you think you
have to do. :

‘Mz‘.? WEBER. Did he make any statement about future employ-
ment? , :

Mr. RusseLL. No, he did not. :

Mr. WeBER. Did he make any other threat or recommendation or
pleading or arm twisting of any kind?

Mr. RusseLL. No other threat.

Mr. WeBeR. Did you perform any further services after March
13, 1981, for the bank? ;

Mr. RusseLL. Yes; we did some various little, what we would call
management services activities. One was to help them look for a
new financial vice president. There was another, dealing with some
© review of or actually just helping establish and supervising or help-
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ing direct internal auditors in a study of commitment fees. And
one was to look at some of the financial accounting and tax ramifi-
cations of some of the fringe benefits of the package.

Mr. WEBER. Did you give them any assistance in instituting pro-
cedures to remedy your qualification?

Mr. RussgLL. They did not request that.

Mr. WEBER. Are you familiar at all with the procedures which
were instituted?

Mr. RusseLL. Only as they have been. I, of course, knew that
Beller had been hired, or Mr. Beller had been hired, and that some
others had been hired, but nothing beyond that.

Mr. WeBER. Do you have sufficient knowledge of those new pro-
cedures to have an opinion as to whether or not they would have
satisfied you, had you been the ones to prepare the 1980 or 81
statement?

Mr. RusseLL. No, I wouldn’t have an opinion.

Mr. WeBER. And did you have anything to do with instituting
further corrective procedures to bring the bank into compliance
with the administrative agreement which had been executed be-
tween the board of directors and the OCC? -

Mr. RusseLL. We were not requested to do so, no, sir.

Mr. WeBER. Thank you very much, Mr. Russell.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Wortley?

Mr. WorTtLEY. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Leach, did you have anything further?

Mzr. LEacH. No, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Russell, there is another question I am
tempted to ask but I am not going to ask. Again, we want to thank
you for your patience in staying with us, and for your assistance
and willingness to cooperate.

[Subsequent to the August 16 hearing, Arthur Young & Co.
issued this statement in regard to the Lytel letter:]

PeNN SQUARE

During the Congressional hearings on Monday, the Committee introduced a copy
of a letter from John Lytel of Continental Bank to William Patterson. This letter,
which we obtained in the course of our audit, related only to loans which Michigan
National had acquired. It did not indicate that any other bank had a right to resell
loan participations to Penn Square. And, in fact, the letter suggests that it was Con-
tinental and not Penn Square which had agreed to reacquire the loans.

In the course of our audit of First Penn Corp., we confirmed well in excess of 90
percent of the participation loans with the banks who purchased participations from
Penn Square. With the exception of the Michigan National loans covered by this
letter, none of the confirmations disclosed any repurchase arrangements.

With respect to the Michigan National participation loans identified in the letter,
those loans were in fact disclosed in the footnotes to the financial statements.

The CHAIRMAN. At this point, I would like to put in the record
the following: First, the February 11, 1980 auditor’s letter from
Arthur Young & Co. regarding First Penn Corp.’s yearend 1979
consolidated statements; second, the February 18, 1980, Arthur
Young “Management Letter”; third, the January 6, 1981, letter
_from Arthur Young & Co. re: scope of yearend 1980 audit; fourth,
March 13, 1981 “qualified” audit letter; fifth, Arthur Young “Man-
agement Letter” dated May 20, 1981; sixth, filings of First Penn
Corp. with the Federal Reserve Bank, received in records section,
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June 22, 1981; seventh; letter dated November 20, 1981 from Bill P.
Jennings to Harold L. Russell, Arthur Young & Co., informing
tht:lm that Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. will do yearend 1981
audit.
[The material follows:]

ARTHUR YOUNG & COMPANY

1900 LIBERTY TOWER
OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73102

The Board of Directors
First Penn Corporation

We have examined the accompanying balance sheets (company
and consolidated) of First Penn Corporation at December 31, 1979
and the related $tatements (company and consolidated) of income,
stockholders' equity and changes in financial position for the
year then ended. Our examination was made in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, included such
tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the statements mentioned above present
fairly the financial position (company and consolidated) of First
Penn Corporation at December 31, 1979 and the results of operations
(company and consolidated) and the changes in financial position
(company and consolidated) for the year then ended, in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a basis
consistent with that of the preceding year.

Gl Gy 1 oy

February 11, 1980
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ARTHUR YOUNG & COMPANY

1900 LIBERTY TOWER
OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73102

Mr. Bill P. Jennings, Chairman of
the Board

First Penn Corporation and Penn
Square Bank N.A.

Dr. Marvin K. Margo, Chairman,
Examining Committee, Penn Square
Bank, N.A.

1919 Penn Square

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73118

Dear Mr. Jennings and Dr. Margo:

We have examined the consolidated financial statements
of First Penn Corporation for the year ended December 31, 1979,
and have issued our report thereon dated February 1k, 1980. As
part of our examination, we studied and tested the Company's system
of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary
under generally accepted auditing standards. This was done to
establish a basis for relying on such system in determining the
nature, timing and extent of the other auditing procedures necessary
to enable us to express an opinion on the Company's consolidated
financial statements and otherwise to assist us in planning and
performing our examination of the financial statements.

Our examination of the Company's consolidated financial
statements, including our study and evaluation of its system of
internal accounting control, would not necessarily bave disclosed
all conditions requiring attention in the system of intermal account-
ing control because both the audit and the study employed, as is
customary, selected tests of accounting records and related data.
However, our examination disclosed the following conditions relating
to Penn Square Bank, N.A. as to which we believe corrective action
should be taken or documentation (including cost/benefit consid-
erations) should be prepared as to the reasons why corrective
action was not considered necessary in the circumstances. (In
general, corrective action need not be taken when the cost of
installing or improving a -control procedure would exceed the
benefit expected to be derived. Since precise measurement of costs
and benefits usually is' not possible, any evaluation. of such
relationship requires estimates and judgments by management. )
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The following conditions captioned, '"Conditions Requiring
Attention" were considered, to the extent necessary in determining
the nature, timing and extent of our audit tests applied in our
examination of the Company's consolidated financial statements.

CONDITIONS REQUIRING ATTENTION

Reconciliations

The following were noted in our review of the reconcilia-
tions of various general ledger accounts at December 31, 1979.

1. Eleven official checks totaling $1,372,337 issued at
year end by the Bank were either unrecorded or recorded
in the wrong account at the time loan disbursements were
made.

2. Accrued interest receivable on investment securities
according to the general ledger exceeded the amoupt per
the investment portfolio EDP printout by $19,446. It
was also noted that during the year two unexplained
journal entries had been made, apparently in an attempt
to balance the general ledger to the investment port-
folio EDP printout. In addition, the pledging status